
AGENDA for the Joint Meeting of the 

Sierra County Board of Education 

and the 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board 

June 24, 2025 

4:00pm CLOSED Session 

5:00pm Regular Session 

Meeting Location: 

Loyalton: Sierra County Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118 

Zoom for the public: 

Link: hrtps://us02web.zoom.us/j/89621669526 

Phone dial-in: 669-900-9128 (Press *6 to unmute) 

Webinar ID: 896 2166 9526 

Board Members: 

Area 1: Patty Hall- phall@spjusd.org 

Area 2: Rhynie Hollitz (Vice President) - rhollitz@spjusd.org 

Area 3: John Martinetti (Clerk) -jmartinetti@spjusd.org 

Area 4: Kelly Champion (President) - kchampion@spjusd.org 

Area 5: Richard Jaquez -rjaquez@spjusd.org 

Any individual who requires disability-related accommodations or modifications including auxiliary aids and services in order 

to participate in the Board meeting should contact the Superintendent(s) or designee in writing. 

Any student or parent/guardian who wishes to have directory information or personal information, as defined in Education 

Code 49061 and/or 49073.2, be excluded from the minutes should contact the Superintendent(s) or designee in writing. 

Public inspection of agenda documents that are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours before the meeting, will be made 

available at Sierra County Office of Education, Room 3, 109 Beckwith Road, Loyalton, CA, 96118, and posted with the on/ine 

agenda at http://www.sierracountyschools.org (Government Code 54957.5). 

A. CALL TO ORDER

Please be advised that this meeting will be recorded.

B. ROLL CALL

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION

At this time, the meeting opens for any public comments regarding the Closed Session item(s).

E. CLOSED SESSION

The Board will move into Closed Session to discuss the following item(s):

1. Government Code 54957

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Title: District Superintendent

2. Government Code 54957.6

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS

Agency Negotiator(s) for the Board: James Berardi, County Superintendent 

Sean Snider, District Superintendent 

Page 1 of 4 
SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Agenda - June 24, 2025 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89621669526


Employee Organizations: 

Unrepresented Employees: District Superintendent 

Sierra-Plumas Teachers' Association 

Classified Employees 

Confidential Employees 

Administrative Employees 

F. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION and ADJOURN FOR BREAK

G. 6:00PM - RECONVENE

H. FLAG SALUTE

I. REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION

J. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Superintendent Reports

COUNTY-SCOE 

a. SCOE covering paving work for administrative office access**

b. COE 2025-2026 Annual Summary Report**

l:. Stipt::nd position for 2025-2026 Math, Science, Computer Science 

Coordinator** 

DISTRICT-SP JUSD 

None 

2. Business Report

a. Tenth Month SPJUSD Enrollments for the 2024-2025 School Year**

3. SPTA Report

4. Board Self Evaluation Survey Results*

5. Committee/Board Member Reports

6. Public Comment -This is an opportunity for members of the public to directly address the governing
board on any item of interest that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the governing board. Three (3)
minutes may be allotted to each speaker and a maximum of twenty (20) minutes to each subject matter.

K. CONSENT CALENDAR

l. Approval of minutes for the joint Regular Meeting held June 10, 2025**

2. Authorization to submit 2025-2026 Consolidated Applications

a. SCOE**

b. SPJUSD**

3. Approval of the California Interscholastic Federation Representatives for the 2025-2026

School Year (corrected)**

4. Approval of the Agricultural Career Technical Incentive Grant application for 2025-2026**

5. Approval of the following SPJUSD personnel items:

a. Assignment of Mirabel Hernandez, 2025-2026 Soccer Coach, Loyalton High

School

b. Assignment of Viviana Romero, Math Teacher, Downieville School, 1.0 FTE,

effective August 18, 2025

c. Resignation for Katrina Bosworth, 4-6 Teacher, Downieville School, 1.0 FTE,

effective June 30, 2025

d. Authorization to fill 4-6 Teacher, Downieville School, 1.0 FTE

Page 2 of4 
SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Agenda - June 24, 2025 



L. ACTION ITEMS

1. New Business

COUNTY & IJISTRICT-SCOE & SPJUSD

a. Adoption of the 2025-2026 SCOE/SPJUSD Local Control and Accountability Plan

(updated)**

b. Proposition 30 Education Protection Act funding for 2025-2026
The Education Protection Account (EPA) provides Local Educational Agencies (LEAs) with general

purpose state aid funding pursuant to Proposition 30, The Schools and Local Public Safety Protection

Act of 2012, approved by the voters on November 6, 2012. The EPA funding is a component ofa LEA's

Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) or charter school general purpose entitlement.

c. Adoption of the 2025-2026 Budgets and the Criteria and Standards Reports

1. SCOE**

2. SPJUSD**

d. Adoption of Dashboard Local Indicators

1. SCOE**

2. SPJUSD**

e. Approval of Electrical Work for new District Office Portable and Wellness

Center**

DISTRJCT-SPJVSD 

f. Approval oflnstructional Continuity Plan as Addendum to Comprehensive

School Safety Plan**

g. Selection of Firms for Architects pool

1. Aedis Architects

2. Interactive Resources Architects and Engineers

h. Approval of quote for geotechnical investigation under new portables**

BOARD POLICIES AND BYLAWS 

Board Bylaw 9310: "The Superintendent or designee shall develop and present a first 
reading at a public Board meeting and action may be taken on the proposed policy. 
The Board may require additional readings if necessary." 

Batch from June 1ou, -Second Reading 

1. 6142.93-Science Instruction/\/\ 

J. 6142.94-History-Social Science Instruction/\/\ 

k. 6159-Individualized Education Program/\/\ 

I. 6159.2-Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency for Special Education/\/\ 

m. 9224-Oath of Affirmation/\/\ 

n. 9260-Legal Protection/\/\ 

M. ADVANCED PLANNING

I .  The next Regular Joint Board Meeting will be held on July 29, 2025, at Sierra County 

Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118 at 6:00pm. If 

needed, Closed Session may be held before the Regular session beginning at 5:00pm. 

Zoom videoconferencing will be available for the public. 

2. Suggested Agenda Items

N. ADJOURN

Page 3 of 4 
SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Agenda - June 24, 2025 



James Berardi, 

County Superintendent 

** enclosed 

* handout

/V\ prior meeting handout 

Sean Snider, 

District Superintendent 

James Berardi, County Superintendent - jberardi@spjusd.org 

Sean Snider, District Superintendent - ssnider@spjusd.org 

Kristie Jacobsen, Executive Assistant to the Superintendents - kjacobsen@spjusd.org 

Randy Jones, Director of Business Services/CBO - rjones@spjusd.org 

Office: 530-993-1660 x0 

Email schoolinfo@spjusd.org to be added to the agenda email list. 

Page 4 of4 
SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Agenda - June 24, 2025 





 

 

  

Sierra County Office of Education 

2025-2026 

Annual Summary Report  



2 

Local Context (Optional) 

Please provide a description of the County Office of Education (COE), its districts, students and communities and/or any local 

context or priorities/challenges that guide the COE work in these areas. 

The Sierra County Office of Education serves all of Sierra County and the eastern quarter of Plumas County. Sierra County, the second 

least populous county in the state of California with about 3,200 total residents, lies north of Truckee and borders the State of Nevada 

on the east. Located in the heart of the Northern Sierra Nevada Mountains, it contains one-half million acres of forestland, forty-five 

mountain lakes, and an estimated seven hundred miles of trout streams. The eastern quarter of Plumas County lies within the 

boundaries of the Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, and children from the towns of Vinton, Chilcoot, and Beckwourth attend 

school in Loyalton. Elevations within the County range from 2000 to nearly 9000 feet. Heavy snowfall and extreme temperatures are the 

general rule during the winter at the higher elevations. Eastern Sierra and Plumas County include the great Sierra Valley, once an 

ancient lakebed but is now the largest alpine valley in the Sierra Nevada range, a natural area for agriculture, timber production and 

mineral extraction operations. The western portion of Sierra County is heavily forested, has timber management areas, and contains 

both lode and placer gold mining operations. Gold was discovered here in 1849, and the area is rich in early California history. 

Recreational activities abound including fishing, mountain biking, hunting, skiing, hiking, camping, boating, and visits to points of 

historical interest. 

 

We are comprised of 4 schools, serving approximately 400 students and employing roughly 75 staff members. Loyalton Elementary is 

the largest school, with roughly 200 students. Loyalton High School, a Necessary Small School, serves roughly 150 students in grades 

7-12, and Sierra Pass Continuation School serves high school students with a population that fluctuates between 5-10 students on 

average. Downieville School is another Necessary Small School, and the elementary and junior-senior high are located in the same 

building, serving a total of roughly 50 students TK-12. 

 

As a single school district county, our school district and county office of education work closely together to ensure our families receive 

a variety of educational services in the most effective way. SPJUSD and SCOE offer a preschool through adult education program, with 

a variety of programs, including CTE pathways, dual enrollment classes, an adult education school, a variety of special education 

services, as well as traditional programs. 

 

 

 

 



3 

EC Section 52066, http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52066 

Goal One: Approve all LCAPs. 

LCAP Support: Completing the review of LCAPs submitted by school districts [EC Section 52070]. 

Metric Action 

Not Applicable Not Applicable. As a single district county, we do not review LCAPs and our 
combined District and COE LCAP is submitted to the California Department of 
Education (CDE) for approval. 

EC Section 52070, http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52070.&lawCode=EDC 

  

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=EDC&sectionNum=52066
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52070.&lawCode=EDC


4 

Goal Two: Utilize the cycle of continuous improvement to provide technical assistance to charter schools 

and districts based on need. Technical assistance is provided to LEAs who are identified as needing 

assistance as well as those that volunteer for assistance. 

Technical Assistance: Providing technical assistance to school districts pursuant to subdivisions (a) and (b) of Ed Code 52071. 

1. When the County Superintendent does not approve a LCAP. 

2. When a district requests support. 

Metric Action 

Not Applicable Not Applicable- as a single district county, support with LCAP development comes 
directly from the CDE. SPJUSD is eligible for differentiated assistance and receives 
support from Placer County Office of Education. 

EC Section 52071, http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC  

Providing Differentiated Assistance: Providing technical assistance to school districts and charter schools pursuant to subdivision 

(c) of EC Section 52071. 

Metric Actions Source of Funding 

Participation of all 
Principals in data 
review 

Provide assessment reports from CAASPP, CA Healthy Kids Survey, ELPAC, and 
local assessments broken down by subgroup. 

Differentiated 
Assistance Base 
Grant 

Percentage of EL 
students taking ELPAC, 
Number of professional 
development sessions 

Support with administering the ELPAC, reclassifying ELs as Fluent English 
Proficient, and arranging for professional development in Designated and 
Integrated ELD 

Differentiated 
Assistance Base 
Grant 

LCAP approval and 
“Standard Met” on all 
Local Indicators 

Support with completing LCAP and Dashboard Local Indicators Differentiated 
Assistance Base 
Grant 

Aligned SPSAs that are 
Board approved 

Support with SPSA development aligned to the LCAP and state priority areas Differentiated 
Assistance Base 
Grant 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC


5 

Metric Actions Source of Funding 

Number of professional 
learning sessions 

Coordinate professional learning focused on evidence-based instructional 
practices (specifically ELA and Math) and building capacity for continuous 
improvement 

Differentiated 
Assistance Base 
Grant 

Number of coaching 
sessions with principals 

Coaching support for site Principals around instructional leadership and the 
continuous improvement process 

Differentiated 
Assistance Base 
Grant 

Number of classes 
approved for CTE 
pathways and number 
of dual enrollment 
classes 

Support with CTE pathways and dual enrollment opportunities for students Differentiated 
Assistance Base 
Grant 

Accurate data reported 
to the state through 
CALPADS 

Support with data in Student Information System Differentiated 
Assistance Base 
Grant 

EC Section 52071, http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC  

Actions the school district(s) will take independent of the COE 

Please provide a description of the actions the school district(s) will take independent of the COE to improve student outcomes. 

N/A. As a single-district county, differentiated assistance support for SPUSD and SCOE is provided by the Placer County Office of 

Education. 

For COEs who have Local Educational Agencies who meet the eligibility criteria under Ed Code 52072(a) [“Direct Technical 

Assistance” (DTA) supports] 

OPTIONAL:  Prompt for COEs with districts who meet criteria: For districts who meet eligibility criteria under Ed Code 52072 (a), 

describe how the COE is prioritizing and adjusting their support and continuous improvement actions in the areas of intensity and 

frequency: 

●  When a district fails to improve student achievement across more than one state priority for three or more student  

groups for three out of four consecutive years or more. 

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52071.&lawCode=EDC


6 

Prompt Narrative  

Optional Prompt for 
COEs with districts 
who meet criteria 

[EC Section 52072 (f)] 
 

N/A.  SPJUSD does not meet the eligibility criteria under Ed Code 52072 (a). 

EC Section 52072, https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52072&lawCode=EDC  

 

  

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?sectionNum=52072&lawCode=EDC


7 

Goal Three: Provide support for continuous improvement to all districts. 

Other Support: Providing any other support to school districts and schools within the county in implementing the provisions of EC 

Sections 52059.5-52077. 

Metric Action 

Number of Foster youth 
served  

Coordinate services and supports for Foster youth  

Number of schools 
requiring Williams 
reviews  
 

Coordinate and conduct Williams reviews  
 

 

EC Sections 52059.5–52077, 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=4.&chapter=6.1.&part=28.&lawCode=EDC&title=2.&article=4.

5. 

Collaboration 

The Sierra County Superintendent of Schools will collaborate with the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence (CCEE), 

the CDE, other county superintendents, Geographic Lead Agencies (Geo Leads), as well as System of Support (SOS) Lead 

Agencies to support school districts within the county in the following ways: 

Actions CCEE CDE County 
Superintendents 

Geo Leads SOS Leads 

CDE Webinars on new LCAP Template 
 

- Y - - - 

Level 1 webinar on state/federal 
accountability 

- Y - - - 

Single District Counties Network  

 
- - Y - - 

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=4.&chapter=6.1.&part=28.&lawCode=EDC&title=2.&article=4.5.
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displayText.xhtml?division=4.&chapter=6.1.&part=28.&lawCode=EDC&title=2.&article=4.5.


8 

Collaborate with CDE on LCAP Development / 
Coaching  

- Y - - - 

Collaborate with CAL-MSCS Steering Team on 
mathematics, science, and computer science 
professional learning plan 

- - Y - Y 

Instructions: Insert “Y” to indicate a collaborator or use “-“ to signify N/A. 

  



9 

Goal Four: Supports for Special Education  

Not Applicable until the 2025-26** LCAP Cycle per EC Section 52064. 

 

Related Expenditures-COE 
 

Please provide a description of the estimated costs related to the actions outlined in the plan above. 

2025-26 Goal 20xx-20xx Estimated Costs 

Goal 1 $0 

Goal 2 $183,700 

Goal 3 $82,000 

Goal 4 (not applicable until the 2025-2026 LCAP Cycle per EC Section 52064.3) [N/A] 

Total Estimated Cost $265,700 

 



ORGANIZATION, JOB DESCRIPTION                                    NO. 225.1 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION                 PROGRAMS 

 1 

 

  MATH, SCIENCE, COMPUTER SCIENCE COORDINATOR 
 
 
DEFINITION 
 

The Math, Science, Computer Science Coordinator is a stipend position funded by the 
CAL-MSCS statewide grant. This stipend position will last as long as the grant is 
funded. The coordinator will be responsible for administering the following:  
 
 
EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 

 
  

1. Organize a team of teachers and district leaders to be the MSCS District Team 
that informs and provides input around the needs of the school district and teachers 
in the areas of math, science, computer science.  
2. Connect with outside partner organizations to build a robust network of 
community partners.  
3. Take on the role of Family Night Coordinator districtwide and investigate, plan, 
organize and implement family nights to celebrate and raise awareness around 
math, science, and computer science for all grade levels across the district.  
4. Organize and coordinate field trips and in-class learning opportunities related to 
math, science, and computer science across the district and communicate with 
teachers about different educational opportunities for their students.  
5. Collaborate with curriculum specialists and district leadership to plan professional 
development around math, science, computer science.  
6. Supports district staff and adoption lead teacher with curriculum development 
and adoptions in math, science, computer science. 

 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS 
 

• A Valid California Teaching Credential 
 
 
 

The total amount for the yearly stipend for the academic year 2025-2026 is $10,000  
 
 
 
 

First Reading: 6/24/2025 
 

 



ENROLLMENT BY SCHOOL MONTH - 2024-2025

**As of 06/16/2025 Downieville Loyalton Downieville Loyalton Downieville Loyalton Sierra Pass Long-Term
Elementary Elementary Jr High Jr High Sr High Sr High Continuation ISP/SDC TOTAL

Ending 2023-2024 27 193 10 41 12 114 6 included in site # 403
1st Day 2024-2025 27 200 10 47 9 120 3 included in site # 416

Month
September 1 26 203 10 47 9 122 3 included in site # 420
08/21/24-09/13/24
October 2 26 203 10 47 9 118 5 included in site # 418
09/16/24-10/11/24
November 3 24 198 9 47 9 117 6 included in site # 410
10/14/24-11/08/24
December 4 23 198 9 47 9 119 5 included in site # 410
11/12/24-12/06/24
January 5 23 199 9 47 9 118 5 included in site # 410
12/09/24-01/17/25
February 6 22 202 8 46 10 117 4 included in site # 409
01/21/25-02/14/25
March 7 22 202 8 46 10 116 5 included in site # 409
02/18/25-03/14/25
April 8 22 200 9 44 10 116 5 included in site # 406
03/18/25-04/11/25
May 9 24 200 9 45 10 113 7 included in site # 408
04/14/25-05/09/25
June 10 24 200 9 45 10 113 7 included in site # 408
05/13/25-06/06/25

2023-2024 SPJUSD SCOE Washoe Long-Term ISP
P1 ADA 358.58 0.74 13.34 DES 0
P2 ADA 357.90 0.74 13.37 LES 6

Annual 358.02 0.74 13.33 DHS 0
LHS 6

2022-2023 SPJUSD SCOE Washoe
P1 ADA 354.53 0.70 13.50
P2 ADA 351.20 0.70 12.97

Annual 352.11 0.70 13.46



Board Self-Evaluation Result

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD

Number of members responded

Almost 

Always

Often Less 

Often
Rarely Not 

Sure

1. Conditions of Effective Governance

Board unity

1. The board is focused on achievement for all students.  3  1  1  0  0

2. The board is committed to a common vision.  2  1  1  0  1

3. The board stays focused on district priorities.  1  2  2  0  0

4. The board works well together.  2  2  1  0  0

5. The board commits the time to become informed.  0  3  2  0  0

6. Individual board members do not undermine board decisions.  1  2  0  1  1

Roles and responsibilities

7. Board members agree on the role and responsibilities of the board and the 

superintendent.
 2  3  0  0  0

8. Board members follow board agreements regarding speaking for the board.  2  3  0  0  0

9. Board members keep confidential matters confidential.  3  2  0  0  0

10. The board gives direction to the superintendent only at board meetings.  1  3  1  0  0

11. Individual board members do not attempt to direct the superintendent.  1  2  1  1  0

Page 1 of 56/20/2025

Area of growth for 

most members

Area of growth for 

simple majority

A strength for 

simple majority 

A strength for most 

members



Number of members responded

Almost 

Always

Often Less 

Often
Rarely Not 

Sure

1. Conditions of Effective Governance

Board culture

12. The board treats the superintendent with respect.  4  1  0  0  0

13. The board manages internal conflicts in a productive manner.  1  2  2  0  0

14. Board members follow agreements on how they will act towards each other.  2  3  0  0  0

15. Board members treat each other with respect.  3  2  0  0  0

16. Board members demonstrate they understand other perspectives.  3  0  2  0  0

17. Board members usually discuss questions about agenda items with the 

superintendent prior to the board meeting.
 3  1  0  0  1

Board operations

18. The board governs within board-adopted policies, bylaws and protocols to 

manage board operations.
 3  2  0  0  0

19. Board members receive timely information.  1  1  2  1  0

20. Board members receive adequate information.  2  0  2  1  0

21. All board members receive the same information.  2  3  0  0  0

22. Board members follow agreements about how to request clarifying or 

additional information about agenda items.
 1  4  0  0  0

23. Board members follow agreements on how to bring up new ideas.  0  3  0  0  2

24. Board members follow agreements on how concerns from the community will 

be handled.
 2  2  0  0  1

Page 2 of 56/20/2025

Area of growth for 

most members

Area of growth for 

simple majority

A strength for 

simple majority 

A strength for most 

members



Number of members responded

Almost 

Always

Often Less 

Often
Rarely Not 

Sure

1. Conditions of Effective Governance

Board meetings

25. The board agrees on the role of the board president in managing board 

meetings.
 3  2  0  0  0

26. Board meeting agendas reflect district priorities.  1  3  1  0  0

27. Board members come to meetings prepared.  2  2  1  0  0

28. The board effectively uses data in its decision-making.  1  3  0  1  0

29. The board confines its meetings to a reasonable length of time.  0  2  1  2  0

30. There is a good relationship between how long the board spends on an 

agenda item and the importance of the item.
 0  2  3  0  0

31. The board effectively manages community input at board meetings.  1  4  0  0  0

Board development

32. The board agrees on the process for identifying officers.  1  4  0  0  0

33. The board plans for the development and training of the board.  1  1  2  1  0

34. The board effectively orients new members.  1  1  1  1  1

35. The board reviews its governance agreements regularly.  2  2  0  1  0

Page 3 of 56/20/2025

Area of growth for 

most members

Area of growth for 

simple majority

A strength for 

simple majority 

A strength for most 

members



Number of members responded

Almost 

Always

Often Less 

Often
Rarely Not 

Sure

2. Board Responsibilities

Setting direction

36. The board provides opportunity for community input when developing the 

district’s mission, core beliefs and vision.
 2  1  1  1  0

37. The board adopts long-range priorities.  0  2  2  1  0

38. The board uses the district’s mission, core beliefs and vision to drive district 

performance.
 1  0  3  1  0

39. The board adopts clear and measurable indicators to assess district 

performance.
 0  1  2  1  1

Structure

40. The board adopts a fiscally responsible budget aligned to the district’s vision 

and goals.
 2  2  1  0  0

41. The board regularly monitors the fiscal health of the district.  3  0  1  0  1

42. The board has an effective process to review, revise and adopt policies.  1  3  1  0  0

43. The board establishes priorities for the district’s collective bargaining process 

that support the district vision and goals.
 1  2  1  1  0

Support

44. The board demonstrates commitment to district priorities and goals.  2  1  1  1  0

45. The board demonstrates support for the superintendent in carrying out board 

directives.
 2  3  0  0  0

46. The board is represented at key district events.  2  3  0  0  0

47. The board celebrates district accomplishments.  1  1  2  1  0

Page 4 of 56/20/2025

Area of growth for 

most members

Area of growth for 

simple majority

A strength for 

simple majority 

A strength for most 

members



Number of members responded

Almost 

Always

Often Less 

Often
Rarely Not 

Sure

2. Board Responsibilities

Accountability

48. The board monitors student progress against established benchmarks.  1  3  1  0  0

49. The board monitors progress towards district goals based on established 

success indicators.
 0  3  1  1  0

50. The board monitors the implementation of the adopted budget.  0  4  1  0  0

51. The board monitors the implementation of board policies.  0  3  1  1  0

52. The board evaluates the performance of the board.  0  0  3  2  0

53. The board evaluates the performance of the superintendent based on 

established expectations.
 3  2  0  0  0

Community leadership

54. The board uses cohesive messages to communicate district priorities, goals 

and needs.
 1  1  1  2  0

55. The board provides community leadership on educational issues.  0  1  3  1  0

56. The board pursues partnerships to support district efforts.  0  1  3  1  0

57. The board advocates on behalf of students and public education at the local, 

state and federal levels.
 1  2  1  1  0

58. The board informs the community on district priorities, progress, needs and 

opportunities for involvement.
 1  2  1  1  0

Page 5 of 56/20/2025

Area of growth for 

most members

Area of growth for 

simple majority

A strength for 

simple majority 

A strength for most 

members





 
 

School District Governance Team Board Self–Evaluation Survey 
 
 
 
Overview 
One of the primary ways a governance team can strengthen or maintain its effectiveness is to 
periodically assess its own performance. A governance team self–assessment provides the opportunity 
to step back and reflect on how well it is meeting its responsibilities. This governance team self–
assessment will provide the board and superintendent with valuable perception data, revealing the 
range of perceptions among board members regarding the performance of the board and the 
governance team.  
 
Individuals will rank the performance of the board and governance team on important characteristics. 
CSBA determined these characteristics through collaborative efforts with board members from around 
the state who defined the CSBA Professional Governance Standards for boards; and through our 
experiences providing board development to school boards across California for more than 30 years. 
 
Content 
The evaluation is divided into two parts. Part one consists of questions regarding the conditions of 
effective governance. Part two contains questions that address the board’s five major responsibilities. 
For each statement, Individuals should select the descriptor that most accurately describes the extent to 
which the board demonstrates the quality or characteristic.  
 



How to use your Board Self-Evaluation Results  
 
When?  
The board should schedule a special open-session 
conversation/discussion meeting to review the 
results of this survey. 
 
Guide to the Report  
The report provides the board with perception data 
- how trustees individually perceive the board’s 
effectiveness. The range of scores across topics will 
help the board identify areas in which board 
members might achieve greater collective clarity in 
fulfilling their governance responsibilities. The 
results are color-coded for ease of interpretation. 
 

Color Distribution of 
Ratings 

Implications 

 

All board members 
rated this item as 
Almost Always or 
Often 

A strength for all 
members 

 

A majority of board 
member rated 
these items as 
Almost Always or 
Often 
 

A strength for 
majority of 
members 

 

A majority of board 
member rated 
these items as Less 
Often or Rarely 

An area of 
growth for 
majority of 
members 

 

All board members 
rated this item as 
Less Often, Rarely, 
or Not Sure 

An area of 
growth for all 
members 

 
The board can improve its cohesiveness by 
discussing the range of responses, learning each 
member’s rationale for his/her ratings. In some 
cases, the board may find that members have 
different expectations for what deserves an ‘Almost 
always’ vs. an ‘often,’ but that there is general 
agreement on how the board is performing.  

 
How to structure the board conversation  
 
As the board discusses these results, remember a 
few critical points:  

 The report displays a range of perceptions, not 
facts.  

 Focus your discussion on what matters most.  

 Each member should practice empathetic 
listening and work to understand the views of 
other board members.  

 It’s okay to differ in opinion; you don’t always 
need to agree, but you do need to understand. 

 
Step 1: Confirm the strengths. (Green) 
 
Step 2: Confirm the areas for growth. (Red) 
 
Step 3: Identify areas where perceptions are 
mixed. (Blue or Yellow) 
 
Step 4: Focus.  
From the results from steps 2 and 3 above, the 
board should agree on the three to five most 
important areas for improving board performance. 
The board should answer the question: Which areas 
of improvement will be most beneficial to the board 
and the district?  
 
Step 5: Set goals.  
Set specific, measurable, time-bound goals with 
success indicators for improving board performance 
in each area.  
 
Step 6: Schedule board development workshops 
throughout the year and add them to your 
Governance Calendar.  
 
If you would like help: CSBA’s Governance 
Consulting Services provides board development 
coaching and guidance. If you would like to discuss 
how these services can be tailored to meet your 
particular needs, please call us at 916-669-3293 or 
to request a board self-evaluation visit 
http://bse.csba.org. 

http://www.csba.org/


Page 1 of 6 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Minutes – June 10, 2025 

MINUTES for the Joint Meeting of the 

Sierra County Board of Education 

and the 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District Governing Board 

June 10, 2025 

5:00pm CLOSED Session 

6:00pm Regular Session 

Downieville: Downieville School, 130 School St, Downieville CA 95936 

Zoom videoconferencing was also available for the public. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

President KELLY CHAMPION called the meeting to order at 5:10pm. 

B. ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Area 1: Patty Hall 

Area 2: Rhynie Hollitz (Vice President) 

Area 3: John Martinetti (Clerk) 

Area 4: Kelly Champion (President) 

ABSENT: Area 5: Richard Jaquez 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

HALL/CHAMPION 

4/0 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION 

None 

E. CLOSED SESSION 

The Board moved into Closed Session at 5:11pm to discuss the following item(s): 

1. Government Code 54957.6 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Agency Negotiator(s) for the Board:  James Berardi, County Superintendent 

     Sean Snider, District Superintendent 

Employee Organizations: 

Unrepresented Employees:  District Superintendent 

Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association 

Classified Employees 

Confidential Employees 

Administrative Employees 

2. Government Code 54957 

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 

Title: Site Administrator 

3. Government Code 54957 

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Title: District Superintendent 



Page 2 of 6 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Minutes – June 10, 2025 

 

F. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION at 6:00pm and ADJOURN FOR BREAK 

G. 6:05PM – RECONVENE 

H. FLAG SALUTE 

I. REPORT OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

MARTINETTI: All items were for discussion only. 

J. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

1. Superintendent Reports 

COUNTY—SCOE 

a. Continued Advocacy Work 

BERARDI: Continuing advocacy work with CSBA through the Superintendent 

Advisory Council for 2025-2026. Also continuing to work with the California 

County Superintendents, State Superintendent, and other local legislative 

representatives. 

b. School Attendance Review Board (SARB) 2024-2025 Annual Report 

c. SCOE Personnel Items: 

1. Assignment of Trenton Norman, Technology Specialist II, 1.0 FTE, 

effective June 02, 2025 

DISTRICT—SPJUSD 

d. Middle School update 

SNIDER: Getting into more detailed planning. A lot left to happen over the 

summer and chipping away at it. Still looking into options for relocating Sierra 

Pass at some point. 

e. End of year activities 

SNIDER: Thank you to everyone from staff to the board for another successful 

school year. 

f. Facilities update (camera system, roof bid packages, easement from City Park) 

SNIDER: In need of additional surveillance at all sites. Looking at getting 

cameras covered by a grant before moving forward with recommendation and 

purchase. Roof bid packages almost ready to be advertised and must be posted 

for 30 days. Then bids will be brought to the board. Considering drop-off and 

pickup for Middle School students as well as district office staff parking with 

request for easement from the City Park to the portables for a road and 

parking lot. 

g. Strategic Planning 

SNIDER: Would like to see a strategic plan completed during this upcoming 

school year. Received one quote so far looking at maybe bringing in a 

facilitator to help us through the process. 

2. Business Report 

a. Monthly Chronic Absenteeism Rates 

b. Ninth Month SPJUSD Enrollments for the 2024-2025 School Year 

 



Page 3 of 6 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Minutes – June 10, 2025 

3. SPTA Report 

PRESIDENT—PETTERSON: SPTA submitted the Initial Bargaining Proposal 

for 2025-2028 looking at the Collective Bargaining Agreement language. We 

wish everyone a happy and restful summer. 

4. Board Self-Evaluation 

HOLLITZ: CSBA has a tool that can be completed individually by each board 

member, and then the information is compiled and presented in a summary 

report. Would like to use this to inform board goals for the year. 

CHAMPION: Would like to try and complete this before the next board meeting 

in two weeks or in July. 

5. Committee/Board Member Reports 

CHAMPION: At the last Budget Committee meeting we discussed a few ongoing 

items such as Middle School funding. 

HOLLITZ: Held a meeting with the leadership of SPTA in response to the 

complaint filed last board meeting. We discussed meeting quarterly to 

communicate more effectively. 

HALL: Graduation was awesome. The meeting we had with SPTA, I really 

learned a lot. 

CHAMPION: Graduations on both sides were great. Thank you to JACOBSEN 

for accurate and quality minutes and agendas. 

6. Public Comment 

Paul Guffin—Downieville resident: Absenteeism report. Seems skewed when 

using percentages. Could we see absence rates in actual numbers instead of 

percentages? 

K. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Approval of minutes for the joint Regular Meeting held May 13, 2025 

2. Approval of Board Report-Checks Dated 05/01/2025 through 05/31/2025 

a. SCOE 

b. SPJUSD 

3. Acknowledgement of donation of food from Jadaa’s Kitchen to Downieville Jr/Sr High 

School students during state testing valued at $210 

4. Approval of the California Interscholastic Federation Representatives for the 2025-2026 

School Year 

5. Approval of the following SPJUSD personnel items: 

a. Assignment of Margaret Binkley, 2025-2026 Advisor Club Live, Loyalton 

Grades 7-8 

b. Approval of Teaching Principal, Loyalton Middle School, 1.0 FTE 

c. Authorization to fill Teaching Principal, Loyalton Middle School, 1.0 FTE 

d. Assignment of Laurie Petterson, Teaching Principal, Loyalton Middle School, 

1.0 FTE, effective July 01, 2025 

HOLLITZ/HALL 

4/0 

 



Page 4 of 6 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Minutes – June 10, 2025 

L. ACTION ITEMS 

1. New Business 

COUNTY & DISTRICT—SCOE & SPJUSD 

PUBLIC HEARING – SCOE/SPJUSD Local Control and Accountability Plan 

a. Public Hearing opened at 6:47pm to receive public comment on the 2025-2026 

LCAP. Closed at 6:47pm with no comment. 
The LCAP is available for public inspection online at www.sierracountyschools.org and at the 

Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Road, Room 3, Loyalton, California, during 

business hours M-F 8:00am-4:30pm. 

b. Presentation of the SCOE/SPJUSD 2025-2026 Local Control and Accountability 

Plan (LCAP) 

Presented by SNIDER. Adoption takes place at the next meeting on June 24th. 

Motion for a successful first reading by HOLLITZ. Second by HALL. 

4/0 

PUBLIC HEARING – SCOE and SPJUSD Budgets 

c. Public Hearing opened at 7:13pm to receive public comment on the 2025-2026 

SCOE and SPJUSD Budgets. Closed at 7:13pm with no comment. 
The SCOE and SPJUSD budgets are available for public inspection online at 

www.sierracountyschools.org and at the Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Road, 

Room 3, Loyalton, California, during business hours M-F 8:00am-4:30pm. 

d. Presentation of the 2025-2026 proposed Budgets 

Presented by JONES. Adoption takes place at the next meeting on June 24th. 

1. SCOE 

2. SPJUSD 

e. Adoption of Resolution 25-007C/25-010D designating additional signers via 

Office of Public School Construction Online 

HALL/MARTINETTI 

4/0 

f. Approval of Employment Agreement for Site Administrator/County 

Superintendent 

HOLLITZ/HALL 

4/0 

PUBLIC HEARING – SPTA Initial Proposal 

g. Public Hearing opened at 7:36pm to receive public comment on the Initial 

Proposal from Sierra-Plumas Teachers Association to open negotiations for 

2025-2028. Closed at 7:36pm with no comment. 

DISTRICT—SPJUSD 

h. Approval of 2024-2025 School Plan for Student Achievement for the following: 

HALL/HOLLITZ 

4/0 

1. Downieville Schools 

2. Loyalton Elementary School 

3. Loyalton High School/Sierra Pass 

i. Approval of Teacher, Loyalton Middle School, .42858 FTE (3 periods) 

HALL/CHAMPION 

4/0 

 

http://www.sierracountyschools.org/
http://www.sierracountyschools.org/


Page 5 of 6 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Minutes – June 10, 2025 

j. Authorization to fill Teacher, Loyalton Middle School, .42858 FTE (3 periods) 

HALL/CHAMPION 

4/0 

k. Approval of new Job Description for Middle School Secretary/Districtwide 

Attendance Clerk 

HALL/MARTINETTI 

4/0 

l. Approval of quotes for asbestos abatement 

Tabled 

1. Downieville Schools 

2. Loyalton Elementary School 

3. Loyalton High School 

m. Approval of quotes for carpeting 

Tabled 

1. Downieville Schools 

2. Loyalton Elementary School 

3. Loyalton High School 

n. Approval to surplus 1998 Chevrolet (LHS service truck), vin 

1GCGK24R0WZ275420 

HOLLITZ/HALL 

4/0 

BOARD POLICIES AND BYLAWS 

Board Bylaw 9310: “The Superintendent or designee shall develop and present a first 

reading at a public Board meeting and action may be taken on the proposed policy. 

The Board may require additional readings if necessary.” 

Batch from May 13th – Second Reading 

HALL/MARTINETTI 

4/0 

o. 1312.2—Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials^^ 

p. 1340—Access to District Records^^ 

q. 3311—Bids^^ 

r. 3311.1—Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Procedures^^ 

s. 3312—Contracts^^ 

t. 3516.5—Emergency Schedules^^ 

u. 3580—District Records^^ 

v. 4151~4251~4351—Employee Compensation^^ 

w. 4158~4258~4358—Employee Security^^ 

New for June 10th – First Reading 

Postponed to June 24th for Second Reading. 

x. 6142.93—Science Instruction 

y. 6142.94—History-Social Science Instruction 

z. 6159—Individualized Education Program 

aa. 6159.2—Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency for Special Education 



Page 6 of 6 

SCOE & SPJUSD Joint Meeting Minutes – June 10, 2025 

bb. 9224—Oath of Affirmation 

cc. 9260—Legal Protection 

Annual Review 2025 

CHAMPION motioned to approve dd and ee with no changes. Second by MARTINETTI. 

4/0 

dd. 5116.1—Intradistrict Open Enrollment 

ee. 6145—Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities 

M. ADVANCED PLANNING 

1. The next Regular Joint Board Meeting will be held on June 24, 2025, at Sierra County 

Office of Education, Room 4, 109 Beckwith Rd, Loyalton CA 96118 at 5:00pm. If 

needed, Closed Session may be held before the Regular session beginning at 4:00pm. 

Zoom videoconferencing will be available for the public. 

2. Suggested Agenda Items 

None 

N. ADJOURN 

CHAMPION adjourned the meeting at 8:18pm. 

 

 

 

______________________________  _______________________________ 

James Berardi,     Sean Snider, 

County Superintendent    District Superintendent 

 

 

_______________________________ 

John Martinetti, Clerk 







Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Randy Jones

Date: 6/16/2025 2:43 PM

2025–26 Certification of Assurances
Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year. A complete list of legal and program 
assurances for the fiscal year can be found at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ca24assurancestoc.asp.

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Consolidated Application Certification Statement

I hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed by this applicant; 
that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this application is correct and complete; and I 
agree to participate in the monitoring process regarding the use of these funds according to the standards and 
criteria set forth by the California Department of Education Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) Office. Legal 
assurances for all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the operation of selected projects and 
programs and copies of assurances are retained on site. I certify that we accept all assurances except for those 
for which a waiver has been obtained or requested. A copy of all waivers or requests is on file. I certify that actual 
ink signatures for this form are on file.

Authorized Representative's Full Name Randy Jones

Authorized Representative's Signature

Authorized Representative's Title Director of Business Services

Authorized Representative's Signature Date 06/16/2025

Page 1 of 6Report Date:6/16/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Randy Jones

Date: 6/16/2025 2:43 PM

2025–26 Protected Prayer Certification
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally 
protected prayer in public elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and 
provides written certification.

CDE Program Contact:
Miguel Cordova, Title I Policy, Program, and Support Office, MCordova@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0381

Protected Prayer Certification Statement

The local educational agency (LEA) hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that 
the LEA has no policy that prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in 
public schools as set forth in the "Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and 
Secondary Schools." 

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature. The ink signature copy 
shall be made available to the California Department of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a 
compliance review, or a complaint investigation.

The authorized representative agrees to the above statement Yes

Authorized Representative's Full Name Randy Jones

Authorized Representative's Title Director of Business Services

Authorized Representative's Signature Date 06/16/2025

Comment

If the LEA is not able to certify at this time, then an explanation must be 
provided in the comment field. (Maximum 500 characters)

Page 2 of 6Report Date:6/16/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Randy Jones

Date: 6/16/2025 2:50 PM

2025–26 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification

CDE Program Contact:
Local Agency Systems Support Office, LCAPAddendum@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5233

Initial Application

To receive initial funding under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), a local educational agency (LEA) must 
have a plan approved by the State Educational Agency on file with the State. Within California, LEAs that apply 
for ESSA funds for the first time are required to complete the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), the 
LCAP Federal Addendum Template (Addendum), and the Consolidated Application (ConApp). The LCAP, in 
conjunction with the Addendum and the ConApp, serve to meet the requirements of the ESSA LEA Plan.

In order to initially apply for funds, the LEA must certify that the current LCAP has been approved by the local 
governing board or governing body of the LEA. As part of this certification, the LEA agrees to submit the LCAP 
Federal Addendum, that has been approved by the local governing board or governing body of the LEA, to the 
California Department of Education (CDE) and acknowledges that the LEA agrees to work with the CDE to 
ensure that the Addendum addresses all required provisions of the ESSA programs for which they are applying 
for federal education funds.

Returning Application

If the LEA certified a prior year LCAP Federal Addendum Certification data collection form in the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System, then the LEA may use in this form the same original approval or adoption 
date used in the prior year form.

County Office of Education (COE) or District 06/25/2024

For a COE, enter the original approval date as the day the CDE approved 
the current LCAP. For a district, enter the original approval date as the day 
the COE approved the current LCAP

Direct Funded Charter

Enter the adoption date of the current LCAP

Authorized Representative's Full Name Randy Jones

Authorized Representative's Title Director of Business Services

Page 3 of 6Report Date:6/16/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and 

other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 
violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Randy Jones

Date: 6/16/2025 2:50 PM

2025–26 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Local Governing Board Approval

The local educational agency (LEA) is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding 
selections with their local governing board.

By checking this box the LEA certifies that the Local Board has approved 
the Application for Funding for the listed fiscal year

Yes

District English Learner Advisory Committee Review

Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your LEA has more than 50 English learners, 
then the LEA must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) which shall review and 
advise on the development of the application for funding programs that serve English learners.

By checking this box the LEA certifies that parent input has been received 
from the District English Learner Committee (if applicable) regarding the 
spending of Title III funds for the listed fiscal year

Yes

Application for Categorical Programs

To receive specific categorical funds for a school year, the LEA must apply for the funds by selecting Yes below. 
Only the categorical funds that the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed.

Title I, Part A (Basic Grant) Yes

ESSA Sec. 1111 et seq.
SACS 3010

Title II, Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction) Yes

ESEA Sec. 2104
SACS 4035

Title II, Part A funds used through the Alternative Fund Use Authority 
(AFUA)

Yes

Section 5211 of ESEA

Title III English Learner No

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4203

Title III Immigrant No

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4201

Title IV, Part A (Student and School Support) Yes

ESSA Sec. 4101
SACS 4127

Title IV, Part A funds used through the Alternative Fund Use 
Authority (AFUA)

Yes

Page 4 of 6Report Date:6/16/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Randy Jones

Date: 6/16/2025 2:50 PM

2025–26 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Section 5211 of ESEA

Title V, Part B Subpart 1 Small, Rural School Achievement Grant Yes

ESSA Sec. 5211 SACS 5810 
 

Page 5 of 6Report Date:6/16/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra County Office of Education (46 10462 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Randy Jones

Date: 6/16/2025 2:43 PM

2025–26 Substitute System for Time Accounting
This certification may be used by auditors and by California Department of Education (CDE) oversight personnel 
when conducting audits and sub-recipient monitoring of the substitute time-and-effort system. Approval is 
automatically granted when the local educational agency (LEA) submits and certifies this data collection.

CDE Program Contact:
Hilary Thomson, Fiscal Oversight and Support Office, HThomson@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0765

 

The LEA certifies that only eligible employees will participate in the substitute system and that the system used to 
document employee work schedules includes sufficient controls to ensure that the schedules are accurate.

Detailed information on documenting salaries and wages, including both substitute systems of time accounting, 
are described in Procedure 905 of the California School Accounting Manual posted on the CDE web site at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/.

2025–26 Request for authorization No

LEA certifies that the following is a full disclosure of any known 
deficiencies with the substitute system or known challenges with 
implementing the system

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 6 of 6Report Date:6/16/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified (46 70177 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Sean Snider

Date: 6/14/2025 10:19 AM

2025–26 Certification of Assurances
Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year. A complete list of legal and program 
assurances for the fiscal year can be found at https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/ca24assurancestoc.asp.

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Consolidated Application Certification Statement

I hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed by this applicant; 
that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this application is correct and complete; and I 
agree to participate in the monitoring process regarding the use of these funds according to the standards and 
criteria set forth by the California Department of Education Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) Office. Legal 
assurances for all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the operation of selected projects and 
programs and copies of assurances are retained on site. I certify that we accept all assurances except for those 
for which a waiver has been obtained or requested. A copy of all waivers or requests is on file. I certify that actual 
ink signatures for this form are on file.

Authorized Representative's Full Name Sean Snider

Authorized Representative's Signature

Authorized Representative's Title Superintendent

Authorized Representative's Signature Date 06/14/2025

Page 1 of 6Report Date:6/14/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified (46 70177 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Sean Snider

Date: 6/14/2025 10:19 AM

2025–26 Protected Prayer Certification
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally 
protected prayer in public elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and 
provides written certification.

CDE Program Contact:
Miguel Cordova, Title I Policy, Program, and Support Office, MCordova@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0381

Protected Prayer Certification Statement

The local educational agency (LEA) hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that 
the LEA has no policy that prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in 
public schools as set forth in the "Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and 
Secondary Schools." 

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature. The ink signature copy 
shall be made available to the California Department of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a 
compliance review, or a complaint investigation.

The authorized representative agrees to the above statement Yes

Authorized Representative's Full Name Sean Snider

Authorized Representative's Title Superintendent

Authorized Representative's Signature Date 06/06/2025

Comment

If the LEA is not able to certify at this time, then an explanation must be 
provided in the comment field. (Maximum 500 characters)

Page 2 of 6Report Date:6/14/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified (46 70177 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Sean Snider

Date: 6/14/2025 10:27 AM

2025–26 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification

CDE Program Contact:
Local Agency Systems Support Office, LCAPAddendum@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5233

Initial Application

To receive initial funding under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), a local educational agency (LEA) must 
have a plan approved by the State Educational Agency on file with the State. Within California, LEAs that apply 
for ESSA funds for the first time are required to complete the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP), the 
LCAP Federal Addendum Template (Addendum), and the Consolidated Application (ConApp). The LCAP, in 
conjunction with the Addendum and the ConApp, serve to meet the requirements of the ESSA LEA Plan.

In order to initially apply for funds, the LEA must certify that the current LCAP has been approved by the local 
governing board or governing body of the LEA. As part of this certification, the LEA agrees to submit the LCAP 
Federal Addendum, that has been approved by the local governing board or governing body of the LEA, to the 
California Department of Education (CDE) and acknowledges that the LEA agrees to work with the CDE to 
ensure that the Addendum addresses all required provisions of the ESSA programs for which they are applying 
for federal education funds.

Returning Application

If the LEA certified a prior year LCAP Federal Addendum Certification data collection form in the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System, then the LEA may use in this form the same original approval or adoption 
date used in the prior year form.

County Office of Education (COE) or District 06/25/2024

For a COE, enter the original approval date as the day the CDE approved 
the current LCAP. For a district, enter the original approval date as the day 
the COE approved the current LCAP

Direct Funded Charter

Enter the adoption date of the current LCAP

Authorized Representative's Full Name Sean Snider

Authorized Representative's Title Superintendent

Page 3 of 6Report Date:6/14/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified (46 70177 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Sean Snider

Date: 6/14/2025 10:19 AM

2025–26 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Local Governing Board Approval

The local educational agency (LEA) is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding 
selections with their local governing board.

By checking this box the LEA certifies that the Local Board has approved 
the Application for Funding for the listed fiscal year

Yes

District English Learner Advisory Committee Review

Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your LEA has more than 50 English learners, 
then the LEA must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) which shall review and 
advise on the development of the application for funding programs that serve English learners.

By checking this box the LEA certifies that parent input has been received 
from the District English Learner Committee (if applicable) regarding the 
spending of Title III funds for the listed fiscal year

Yes

Application for Categorical Programs

To receive specific categorical funds for a school year, the LEA must apply for the funds by selecting Yes below. 
Only the categorical funds that the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed.

Title I, Part A (Basic Grant) Yes

ESSA Sec. 1111 et seq.
SACS 3010

Title II, Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction) Yes

ESEA Sec. 2104
SACS 4035

Title II, Part A funds used through the Alternative Fund Use Authority 
(AFUA)

Yes

Section 5211 of ESEA

Title III English Learner No

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4203

Title III Immigrant No

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4201

Title IV, Part A (Student and School Support) Yes

ESSA Sec. 4101
SACS 4127

Title IV, Part A funds used through the Alternative Fund Use Authority 
(AFUA)

Yes

Page 4 of 6Report Date:6/14/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified (46 70177 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Sean Snider

Date: 6/14/2025 10:19 AM

2025–26 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Consolidated Application Support Desk, Education Data Office, ConAppSupport@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Section 5211 of ESEA

Title V, Part B Subpart 1 Small, Rural School Achievement Grant Yes

ESSA Sec. 5211 SACS 5810 
 

Page 5 of 6Report Date:6/14/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified (46 70177 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Sean Snider

Date: 6/14/2025 10:19 AM

2025–26 Substitute System for Time Accounting
This certification may be used by auditors and by California Department of Education (CDE) oversight personnel 
when conducting audits and sub-recipient monitoring of the substitute time-and-effort system. Approval is 
automatically granted when the local educational agency (LEA) submits and certifies this data collection.

CDE Program Contact:
Hilary Thomson, Fiscal Oversight and Support Office, HThomson@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0765

 

The LEA certifies that only eligible employees will participate in the substitute system and that the system used 
to document employee work schedules includes sufficient controls to ensure that the schedules are accurate.

Detailed information on documenting salaries and wages, including both substitute systems of time accounting, 
are described in Procedure 905 of the California School Accounting Manual posted on the CDE web site at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/.

2025–26 Request for authorization No

LEA certifies that the following is a full disclosure of any known 
deficiencies with the substitute system or known challenges with 
implementing the system

(Maximum 500 characters)

Page 6 of 6Report Date:6/14/2025
R02

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

California Department of Education Consolidated Application



Sylvia Hanna, Title I Policy, Program, and Support Office, SHanna@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0948
Rina DeRose, Title I Policy, Program, and Support Office, RDeRose@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-0472

CDE Program Contact:

In accordance with the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) sections 1117 and 8501, 
a local educational agency shall consult annually with appropriate private school 
officials and both shall have the goal of reaching agreement on how to provide 
equitable and effective programs for eligible private school children, teachers, and 
families. This applies to programs under Title I, Part A; Title I, Part C; Title II, Part A; 
Title III, English Learner; Title III, Immigrant; Title IV, Part A; Title IV, Part B; and 
section 4631, with regard to the Project School Emergency Response to Violence 
Program (Project SERV).

The enrollment numbers are reported under penalty of perjury by each private school 
on its annual Private School Affidavit. The information in the Private School Affidavit 
is not verified, and the California Department of Education takes no position as to its 
accuracy. It is expected that districts engaged in private school consultation verify the 
accuracy of student enrollment data and the tax exempt status if it is being used for 
the purpose of providing equitable services.

Private School's Believed Results of Consultation Allowable Codes

Y1: meaningful consultation occurred 
Y2: timely and meaningful consultation did not occur 
Y3: the program design is not equitable with respect to eligible private school children 

Y4: timely and meaningful consultation did not occur and the program design is not 
equitable with respect to eligible private school children

Add non-attendance area school(s) No

The local educational agency is electing to add nonprofit private schools outside of 
the district's attendance area.

Page 1 of 2Report Date:6/14/2025 R07

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified (46 70177 0000000)

2025–26 Nonprofit Private School Consultation

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: Sean Snider
Date: 6/14/2025 10:19 AM

The local educational agency shall provide, on an equitable basis, special education services or other benefits to address the needs of eligible children and staff 
enrolled in nonprofit private elementary and secondary schools under the programs listed below.



School Name School Code Enrollment Consultation 
Occurred

Was 
Consultation 

Agreement Met

Signed 
Written 

Affirmation on 
File

Consultation Code School Added

Page 2 of 2Report Date:6/14/2025 R07

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a 

violation of both state and federal law.

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified (46 70177 0000000)

2025–26 Nonprofit Private School Consultation

California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Status: Certified

Saved by: Sean Snider
Date: 6/14/2025 10:19 AM

The local educational agency shall provide, on an equitable basis, special education services or other benefits to address the needs of eligible children and staff 
enrolled in nonprofit private elementary and secondary schools under the programs listed below.



������������	
���
���������������	����
��	������������������ !"��#��#$��% &!�'�� (�% &����$���$  ��)*+�&�, )&�-)&.�+.�#. *��*+�/012/3�14�150�678�9061743�488760�:;�<=>?@�>A=:�BC:?��DE�����F�GHIJJK�LMNOPMHOQRJSTPUMUV�WJXPY�XO�MON� �ZTTOMUV[��X\\JMUOTY�OIT�]JKKĴMUV�MUYMSMY_XK̀Na�OJ�NTPST�]JP�OIT�bcbdebcbf�NHIJJK�gTXP�XN�OIT�NHIJJKhN�KTiV_T����PT\PTNTUOXOMSTj�klmnm�mko�nl�p��m�q�nm���pn�r���n�msr��p�lmm���tk�tptsnrn�utp�vwxy�z{�G|}zz~vwxy�z{��y��yGyv�w���y� ��zG���zvwLL�yGG ���|��� ���� ���������}zvy� ���{w�� �y�xw�~������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������vwxy�z{�G|}zz~vwxy�z{��y��yGyv�w���y� ����zG���zv �������wLL�yGG ��|��� �����}zvy� ����{w�� ���y�xw�~ �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������vwxy�z{�G|}zz~ �������vwxy�z{��y��yGyv�w���y� ����zG���zvwLL�yGG ��|��� ���� ��������}zvy�� ��{w�� ��y�xw�~� � ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������vwxy�z{�G|}zz~� � � � � � � � � ����������������vwxy�z{��y��yGyv�w���y� ����zG���zv ��������wLL�yGG ��|��� ����}zvy� �{w�� ���y�xw�~�]�OIT�YTNMVUXOTY�PT\PTNTUOXOMST�MN�UJO�XSXMKX�KT�]JP�X�VMSTU�KTXV_T�ZTTOMUV[�XU�XKOTPUXOT�YTNMVUTT�J]�OIT�YMNOPMHO�VJSTPUMUV��JXPY�ZXg��T�NTUO�MU�IMNQITP�\KXHT���smnt���~TXV_T�PT\PTNTUOXOMSTN�]PJZ�\_�KMH�NHIJJKN�XUY�\PMSXOT�NHIJJKN�Z_NO��T�YTNMVUXOTY�PT\PTNTUOXOMSTN�J]�OIT�NHIJJK�N�VJSTPUMUV��JXPYN�MU�JPYTP�OJ��T�TKMVM�KT�OJ�NTPST�JU�OIT�NTHOMJU�XUY�NOXOT�VJSTPUXUHT��JYMTN����G_\TPMUOTUYTUOhN�JP��PMUHM\XK�N�vXZT�� ������������GMVUXO_PT���������������������������wYYPTNN� ����� |MOg �M\�IJUT� ������������{X������������������������������������������������������� ���¡��¢��������£¤¥���¡���¦�����¡�

L̀XOTa�v̀XZT�J]�NHIJJK�YMNOPMHOQVJSTPUMUV��JXPYa� June 24, 2025Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified

Athletic Director

PO Box 37, 700 Fourth St Loyalton 96118

530-993-4454 530-993-4667

Loyalton High School

Loyalton High School

Caroline Griffin Principal

PO Box 37, 700 Fourth St Loyalton 96118

530-993-4454 530-993-4667 cgriffin@spjusd.org

Downieville School

Athletic Director

PO Box B, 130 School St Downieville 95936

530-289-3473 530-289-3693

Downieville School

James Berardi Principal

PO Box B, 130 School St Downieville 95936

530-289-3473 530-289-3693 jberardi@spjusd.org

Sean Snider, Superintendent

PO Box 955, 109 Beckwith Rd Loyalton 96118

530-993-1660 530-993-0828

Rebekah Perez

rperez@spjusd.org

Faith Edwards

fedwards@spjusd.org



















2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of Education
Page 1 of 91

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of 
Education

CDS Code: 46-70177/46-10462

School Year: 2025-26

LEA contact information:

Sean Snider

District Superintendent

ssnider@spjusd.org

530-993-1660

School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), 
other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of funding for all LEAs and extra 
funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based on the enrollment of high needs students 
(foster youth, English learners, and low-income students).

Budget Overview for the 2025-26 School Year

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office 
of Education expects to receive in the coming year from all sources.

The text description for the above chart is as follows: The total revenue projected for Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified 
School District / Sierra County Office of Education is $12,920,008, of which $8,580,376 is Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), $2,169,165 is other state funds, $1,614,117 is local funds, and $556,350 is federal funds.  Of the 



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of Education
Page 2 of 91

$8,580,376 in LCFF Funds, $362,308 is generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, 
English learner, and low-income students).



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of Education
Page 3 of 91

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school districts must 
work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
that shows how they will use these funds to serve students.

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office 
of Education plans to spend for 2025-26. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the 

LCAP.

The text description of the above chart is as follows: Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office 
of Education plans to spend $14,977,149 for the 2025-26 school year. Of that amount, $1,781,141 is tied to 
actions/services in the LCAP and $13,196,008 is not included in the LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not 
included in the LCAP will be used for the following:

The major expenditures not in the LCAP include general fund employee salaries, health and welfare benefits, 
unrestricted operational costs such as utilities, property and liability insurance, routine maintenance, and other central 
services. Restricted costs not in the LCAP include Special Education and other federal, state and local grants.       

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in the LCAP for the 2025-26 
School Year

In 2025-26, Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of Education is projecting it will receive 
$362,308 based on the enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Sierra–Plumas Joint 
Unified School District / Sierra County Office of Education must describe how it intends to increase or improve 
services for high needs students in the LCAP.  Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of 
Education plans to spend $426,855 towards meeting this requirement, as described in the LCAP.



2025-26 Local Control and Accountability Plan for Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of Education
Page 4 of 91

LCFF Budget Overview for Parents
Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2024-25

This chart compares what Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of Education budgeted 
last year in the LCAP for actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs 

students with what  Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of Education estimates it has 
spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students in the current 

year.

The text description of the above chart is as follows: In 2024-25, Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra 
County Office of Education's LCAP budgeted $367,000 for planned actions to increase or improve services for high 
needs students. Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of Education actually spent 
$312,105 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2024-25.

The difference between the budgeted and actual expenditures of $54,895 had the following impact on Sierra–Plumas 
Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of Education’s ability to increase or improve services for high needs 
students:

The total actual expenditures for actions and services to increase or improve services for high-needs students in 
2024–25 were less than originally budgeted due to a combination of staffing vacancies, adjusted timelines, and 
unanticipated external funding. For example, the bilingual aide provided services through the end of December, but 
the position remained vacant for the second half of the year. During this time, a variety of staff stepped in to support 
English learners and help maintain continuity of services. Additionally, site-level LCFF allocations were underutilized 
as schools adjusted to their new roles in planning and aligning spending with their School Plans for Student 
Achievement. While these factors led to delayed or partial implementation of some services, the district remained 
committed to supporting high-needs students and has carried over unspent funds to be used in 2025–26 to strengthen 
and expand services—particularly in the areas of academic support through instructional aides, arts access, 
attendance interventions, and credit recovery.       



















































































































Prepared & Presented by: Randy Jones, DBS/CBO  

Sierra County Office of Education 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
Adopted Budget 

2025/2026 
 
 
 
 

 
June 24, 2025 

James Berardi/Superintendent 



SCOE 2025-2026 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 2 of 5 

 

Sierra County Office of Education 
2025-2026 Adopted Budget 

Presented June 24, 2025 

 

 

Sierra County Office of Education (SCOE) is required by law to adopt a budget each year by June 30th of the preceding year. 

The budget encompasses the General Fund of the district, and is also accompanied by a cash-flow projection and a multi-year 

projection covering the 2025/26 budget and two subsequent years. 

The following narrative provides the major assumption used in the preparation of the County’s 

2025-2026 June Adopted Budget. Keep in mind that a budget and multi-year projection are 

just that-projections, not forecasts. Projections are expected to change as various factors 

change, they are not predictions. Projections are the mathematical result of today’s decisions 

based on a given set of assumptions. Forecasts, on the other hand, are predictions of the future; 

there is a higher implied reliability factor than for projections. Projections will change anytime the underlying factors change. 

 

 

 

The Big Picture 

 
On May 14, 2025, Governor Gavin Newsom released the May Revision for the proposed 2025-26 State Budget. At May Revise 

the budget includes an increase of approximately $2.9 billion in Proposition 98 guarantee funding over the three-year period 

relative to the 2024 Budget Act and a decrease of approximately $4.6 billion from the Governor’s Budget in January. The 

revision proposes to appropriate only $117.6 billion for education programs in 2024-25, instead of the current calculated 

Proposition 98 level of $118.9 billion. The difference between the appropriated and the calculated levels is less than at 

Governor’s Budget, $1.3 billion instead of $1.6 billion. This is intended to mitigate the risk of appropriating more resources than 

are ultimately available when the final calculation for 2024-25 is made during the 2025-26 fiscal year. The 2025-26 budget 

includes $114.6 billion in Proposition 98 funding for all TK-12 programs for continued fiscal stability to meet the obligations to 

TK-12 education.  

 

Although the May Revision fully funds the COLA and avoids cuts to ongoing education programs, it only does so by deferring 

$1.8 billion in LCFF payments from June to July of 2026. The financial impact of devasting wildfires in Southern California and 

federal policy and funding changes being pursued by the new federal administration bring a risk of additional state budget 

shortfalls in future years. 

 

 

 

 

❖ COLA of 2.30% projected for 25/26 

 

❖ COLA of 3.02% projected for 26/27 and 

 

❖ COLA of 3.42% projected for 27/28 



SCOE 2025-2026 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 3 of 5 

 

GENERAL FUND 
 

 
 

 

Description 2021-2022 

Actuals 

2022-2023 

Actuals 

2023-2024 

Actuals 

2024-2025 

Estimated 

Actuals 

2025-2026 

Adopted 

Budget 

LCFF Resources $1,895,364 $1,869,552 $1,646,249 $1,680,626 $1,712,134 

Federal 160,263 174,033 156,343 184,857 185,032 

Other State 902,715 1,036,287 921,045 973,033 948,848 

Other Local 467,632 1,152,771 444,132 1,043,273 810,687 

Transfers-in 58,401 85,871 118,374 46,000 70,000 

Total $3,484,375 $4,318,514 $3,286,143 $3,927,789 $3,726,701 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LCFF, $1,712,134 , 46%

Federal, 
$185,032 , 5%

Other State, 
$948,848 , 25%

Other Local, 
$810,687 , 22%

Transfer In, $70,000 , 2%
Total Resources $3,726,701



SCOE 2025-2026 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 4 of 5 

 

 

EXPENDITURES 

 

General Fund Expenditures 

 

 
 

 

Expenditures Comparison 

 

Description 2021-2022 

Actuals 

2022-2023 

Actuals 

2023-2024 

Actuals 

2024-2025 

Estimated 

Actuals 

2025-2026 

Adopted 

Budget 

Certificated $ 520,374 $ 491,859 $ 653,366 $ 755,876 $ 739,771 

Classified 526,487 577,090 616,044 780,786 703,051 

Benefits 596,509 668,703 685,511 792,921 771,416 

Books & Supplies 44,977 60,408 68,834 208,175 192,516 

Services & 
Operating 

443,085 603,118 607,724 1,059,100 1,139,054 

Capital Outlay 32,648 -0- 112,645 101,191 790,000 

Other Outgo 58,401 -0- -14,633 -20,146 -17,215 

Transfers Out -0- -0- 25,578 -0- -0- 
Total 2,222,481 2,401,178 2,755,069 3,677,903 4,318,593 

 

  

Certificate Salaries, …

Classified Salaries, 
$703,051 , 16%

Employee 
Benefits, 

$771,416 , 18%
Books and 
Supplies, 

$192,516 , 5%

Services and 
Other Operating 

Expenditures, 
$1,139,054 , 26%

Capital Outlay, 
$790,000 , 18%

Indirect Costs, $(17,215), 0%

Total Expenses $4,318,593



SCOE 2025-2026 Adopted Budget Narrative 
Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Education Protection Account (EPA) 2025-26 Spending Plan 
 

Estimated Beginning Balance $           962 

Estimated EPA Revenue $    393,003 

EPA Expenditures:  

    Certificated Salaries and Benefits $    110,436 

    Books and Supplies               $       1,100 

    Capital Outlay $    196,197 

    Transfer Out $      86,232 

Balance -0- 

 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance & Ending Fund Balance 
 

Fiscal Year Fund Balance 
Increase 

Ending Fund 
Balance 

2021-22 actuals $    1,917,336 $    5,046,255 

2022-23 actuals $       531,074 $    6,963,591 

2023-24 actuals $      249,886 $    6,119,898 

2024-25 estimated actuals $       109,180 $    6,369,784          

2025-26 projected $       127,035 $    5,777,892 

 

Personnel FTE 
Certificated 6.66  

Superintendent .17 

Administrative 2.70 23.97 FTE 

Classified 11.44  

Confidential 3.00  

 

Direct Services Contracted to provide special education services 

Speech 

Occupational Therapy 

Adapted P.E. 

 

Comments 

1. 25/26 COLA 2.30%, 26/27 COLA 3.02 and 27/28 COLA 3.42% 

2. Certificated health and welfare (H/W) soft cap selected plan employee range (14,398.50 to 

17,536.50); Certificated employees hired effective 2017/18 hard capped at $17,536; all other 

employees H/W is capped at $17,536. H/W cost is $285,357. 

3. PERS rate decrease from 27.05% to 26.81%, for a projected annual cost of $177,237. 

4. STRS rate did not change, remains at 19.10% for a projected annual cost of $197,153. 

5. Reimburse Sierra-Plumas JUSD to provide business, curriculum, and technology services. 

6. Forest Reserve Revenue budget is $70,000. Award increased for 25/26. 

7. Positive Certification 

8. Projected general fund ending cash balance: $5,485,351 



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Budget, July 1 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

2025-26 Budget 

46 10462 0000000 

Form CB 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

County Office of Education Certification 

ANNUAL BUDGET REPORl: 

July 1, 2025 Budget Adoption 

This budget was developed using the state-adopted Criteria and Standards. It includes the expenditures necessary to implement the Local Control 

and Accountability Plan (LCAP) or annual update to the LCAP that will be effective for the budget year. The budget was filed and adopted 

subsequent to a public hearing by the County Board of Education pursuant to Education Code sections 1620, 1622, 33129, 52066, 52067, and 52068. 

Public Hearing: Adoption Date: 6/24/2025 

Place: 
130 School St Downiev ille CA 

Signed: 
95936 

Date: 6/10/2025 Clerk/Secretary of the County Board 

lime: 6:00 PM (Original signature required) 

Printed Name: TIiie: 

Contact person for additional information on the budget reports: 

Name: Randy Jones 

1itle: Director of Business Services 

Telephone: 530-993-1660 X 120 

E-mail: rjones@spjusd.org 

To update our mailing database, please complete the following: 

Superintendent's 
James Berardi 

Name: 

Chief Business 
Randy Jones 

Official's Name: 

CBO's 1itle: Director of Business Services 

CBO's 
530-993-1660 X 120 

Telephone: 

Criteria and Standards Review Summary 

The follo'Mng summary is automatically completed based on data provided in the Criteria and Standards Review (Form 01CS). Criteria and standards that 

are "Not Met" and supplemental information and additional fiscal indicators that are "Yes" may indicate areas of potential concern for fiscal solvency 

purposes and should be carefully revie'Ned. 

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS Met 

1a Average Daily Attendance (ADA) - Projected County Operations Grant ADA has not been overestimated by more than 

County Operations Grant the standard for the first prior fiscal year, or t'NO or more of the previous three fiscal 

years. 

1b ADA - County Programs Projected funded ADA for county programs has not exceeded the standard for the 

budget and t'NO subsequent fiscal years. 

2 Local Control Funding Fonmula (LCFF) Projected change in LCFF revenue is within the standard for the budget and two 

Revenue subsequent fiscal years. 

3 Salaries and Benefits Projected total salaries and benefits are within the standard for the budget and t'NO 

subsequent fiscal years. 

4a Other Revenues Projected operating revenues (e.g., federal, other state, and other local) are within the 

standard for the budget and two subsequent fiscal years. 

4b Other Expenditures Projected expenditures (e.g., books and supplies, and services and other operating) 

are within the standard for the budget and t'NO subsequent fiscal years. 

5 Ongoing and Major Maintenance If applicable, required contribution to the ongoing and major maintenance account (i.e., 
n/a 

Account restricted maintenance account) is included in the budget. 

6 Deficit Spending Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard for tv-.o or more 
X 

of the last three fiscal years. 

Califomia Dept of Education 

Not Met 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CB_County, Version 6 Page 1 Printed: 6/17/2025 g;2S PM 

1 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

7a Fund Balance 

7b Cash Balance 

8 Reserves 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

S1 Contingent Liabilities 

S2 Using One-time Revenues to Fund 

Ongoing Exps. 

S3 Using Ongoing Revenues to Fund One-

time Exps. 

S4 Contingent Revenues 

S5 Contributions 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 

S6 Long-term Commitments 

S7a Postemployment Benefits Other than 

Pensions 

S7b Other Self-insurance Benefits 

S8 Status of Labor Agreements 

S9 Local Control and Accountability Plan 

(LCAP) 

S10 LCAP Expenditures 

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS 

A1 Negative Cash Flow 

A2 Independent Position Control 

A3 Declining ADA 

A4 New Charter Schools Impacting County 

Office ADA 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CB_County, Version 6 

Budget, July 1 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

2025-26 Budget 

County Office of Education Certification 

Unrestricted county school service fund beginning balance has not been 

overestimated by more than the standard for t'Ml or more of the last three fiscal 

years. 

Projected county school fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current 

fiscal year. 

Projected available reserves (e.g., reserve for economic uncertainties, 

unassigned/unappropriated amounts) meet minimum requirements for the budget and 

two subsequent fiscal years. 

Are there kno\M'l or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program audits, litigation, 

state compliance reviews) that may impact the budget? 

Are there ongoing county school service fund expenditures in excess of one percent 

of the total county school service fund expenditures that are funded with one-time 

resources? 

Are there large non-recurring county school service fund expenditures that are funded 

with ongoing county school service fund revenues? 

Are any projected revenues for the budget or two subsequent fiscal years contingent 

on reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other definitive act 

(e.g., parcel taxes, forest reserves)? 

Have contributions from unrestricted to restricted resources, or transfers to or from 

the county school service fund to cover operating deficits, changed by more than the 

standard for the budget or two subsequent fiscal years? 

Does the county office have long-term (muttiyear) 

commitments or debt agreements? 

If yes, have annual payments for the budget or two 

subsequent fiscal years increased over prior year's 

(2024-25) annual payment? 

Does the county office provide postemployment 

benefits other than pensions (OPEB)? 

If yes, are they lifetime benefits? 

If yes, do benefits continue beyond age 65? 

If yes, are benefits funded by pay-as-you-go? 

Does the county office provide other self-insurance 

benefits {e.g., mrkers' compensation, employee health 

and we� are, or property and liabiltty )? 

Are salary and benefit negotiations still open for: 

Certificated? (Section SSA, Line 1) 

Classified? (Section S8B, Line 1) 

Management/supervisor/confidential? (Section SSC, 

Line 1) 

Did or will the county office of education's 

gov eming board adopt an LCAP or an update to the 

LCAP effective for the budget year? 

Adoption date of the LCAP or an update to the 

LCAP 

Does the county office of education's budget include the expenditures necessary to 

implement the LCAP or annual update to the LCAP as described in the Local Control 

and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template? 

Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the budget year with a 

negative cash balance in the county school service fund? 

Is personnel position control independent from the payroll system? 

Is County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior fiscal year and budget 

year? 

Are any new charter schools operating in county boundaries that are impacting the 

county office's ADA, either in the prior fiscal year or budget year? 

Page 2 

46 10462 0000000 

Form CB 

GBBGURCYH5(202S-26) 

X 

X 

X 

No Yes 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

No Yes 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

n/a 

X 

06/24/2025 

X 

No Yes 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:25 PM 

                                                                 2 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

AS Salary Increases Exceed COLA 

A6 Uncapped Health Benefits 

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS (continued) 

A7 Fiscal Distress Reports 

A8 Change of CBO or Superintendent 

Califomia Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CB_County, Version 6 

Budget, July 1 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

2025-26 Budget 

County Office of Education Certification 

Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the budget or 

subsequent fiscal years of the agreement v.ould result in salary increases that are 

expected to exceed the projected state funded cost-of-living adjustment? 

Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health benefits for 

current or retired employees? 

Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? If yes, provide 

copies to the COE. 

Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business official 

(CBO) positions within the last 12 months? 

Page 3 

46 10462 0000000 

Form CB 

GBBGURCYH5(202S-26) 

X 

X 

No Yes 

X 

X 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:25 PM 

                                                                 3 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

G = General Ledger Data; S = Supplemental Data 

Form Description 

01 General Fund/County School Service Fund 

08 Student Activity Special Revenue Fund 

09 Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund 

10 Special Education Pass-Through Fund 

11 Adult Education Fund 

12 Child Development Fund 

13 Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund 

14 Deferred Maintenance Fund 

15 Pupil Transportation Equipment Fund 

16 Forest Reserve Fund 

Budget, July 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

17 Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects 

18 School Bus Emissions Reduction Fund 

19 Foundation Special Revenue Fund 

20 Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits 

21 Building Fund 

25 Capital Facilities Fund 

30 State School Building Lease-Purchase Fund 

35 County School Facilities Fund 

40 Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects 

53 Tax Override Fund 

56 Debt Service Fund 

57 Foundation Pennanent Fund 

61 Cafeteria Enterprise Fund 

62 Charter Schools Enterprise Fund 

63 Other Enterprise Fund 

66 Warehouse Revolving Fund 

67 Self-Insurance Fund 

71 Retiree Benefit Fund 

73 Foundation Private-Purpose Trust Fund 

76 WarranUPass-Through Fund 

95 Student Body Fund 

A Average Daily Attendance 

ASSET Schedule of Capital Assets 

CASH Cashflow Worksheet 

CB Budget Certification 

cc Workers' Compensation Certification 

DEBT Schedule of Long-Tenn Liabilities 

ESMOE Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort 

ICR Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet 

L Lottery Report 

MVP Multiyear Projections - General Fund 

SEA Special Education Revenue Allocations 

SEAS Special Education Revenue Allocations Setup (SELPA Selection) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: TC, Version 3 Page 1 

Data Supplled For: 

2024-25 Estimated Actuals 

GS 

G 

G 

s 

s 

GS 

G 

GS 

46 10462 0000000 

Form TC 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

2025-26 Budget 

GS 

G 

G 

s 

s 

s 

s 

GS 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:21 PM 

                                                                 4 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

SIAA Summary of lnterfund Activities -Actuals 

SIAB Summary of lnterf und Activities - Budget 

0 1 CS Criteria and Standards Review 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: TC, Version 3 

Budget, July 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page2 

G 

GS 

46 10462 0000000 

Form TC 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

G 

GS 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:21 PM 

                                                                 5 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Budget, July 1 

2025-28 Budget 

WORKERS' COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION 

ANNUAL CERTIFICATION REGARDING SELF-INSURED WORKERS' COMPENSATION CLAIMS 

48 10482 0000000 

Form CC 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Pursuant to Education Code Section 42141, if a county office of education is self-insured for \o\Orkers' compensation claims, the county superintendent of schools annually shall provide 

information to the governing board of the county board of education regarding the estimated accrued but unfunded cost of those claims. The county board of education annually shall certify 

to the Superintendent of Public Instruction the amount of money, if any, that has been reserved in the budget of the county office of education for the cost of those claims. 

To the Superintendent of Public Instruction: 

Our county office of education is self-insured for workers' compensation claims as defined in Education Code Section 42141(a): 

Total liabilities actuarially determined: 

Less: Amount of total liabilities reserved in budget: 

Estimated accrued but unfunded liabilities: 0.00 

This county office of education is self-insured for workers' compensation claims through a JPA, and offers the follO'Mng information: 

X This county office of education is not self-insured for workers' compensation claims. 

Signed 

Clerk/Secretary of the Gov eming Board 

{Original signature required) 

Printed Name: 

For additional information on this certification, please contact: 

Name: Randy Jones 

TIiie: Director of Business Services 

Telephone: 530-993-1660 x120 

E-mail: rjones@spjusd.org 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CC, Version 3 

Date of Meeting: 6/24/2025 

Title: 

Page 1 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:26 PM 

                                                                 6 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

ESTIMATES lHROUGH lHE MONlH OF: 

A. BEGINNING CASH 

B. RECEIPTS 

LCFF Sources 

Principal Apportionment 

Property Taxes 

Miscellaneous Funds 

Federal Revenue 

Other State Revenue 

Other Local Revenue 

lnterfund Transfers In 

AU Other Financing Sources 

TOTAL RECEIPTS 

C. DISBURSEMENTS 

Certificated Salaries 

Classified Salaries 

Em ploy ee Benefits 

Books and Supplies 

Services 

Capital Outlay 

Other Outgo 

I ntert und Transl ers Out 

Cal ifornia Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CASH, Version 8 

Object 

JUNE 

8010-

8019 

8020-

8079 

8080-

8099 

8100-

8299 

8300-

8599 

8600-

8799 

8900-

8929 

8930-

8979 

1000-

1999 

2000-

2999 

3000-

3999 

4000-

4999 

5000-

5999 

6000-

6999 

7000-

7499 

7600-

7629 

Budget, July 1 

2025-26 Budget 

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) 

Beginning 

Balances July August September 
(Ref. Only) 

6,077,242.92 5,962,369.92 5,615,634.92 

81,736.00 81,736.00 147,124.00 

42,114.00 33,961.00 

13,983.00 31,644.00 

123,850.00 129,680.00 178,768.00 

27,682.00 28,505.00 68,358.00 

23,348.00 39,087.00 64,062.00 

26,173.00 35,309.00 70,993.00 

19,252.00 

71,520.00 23,514.00 104,402.00 

90,000.00 350,000.00 350,000.00 

Page 1 

October 

5,117,335.92 

147,124.00 

14,361.00 

115,135.00 

171,952.00 

448,572.00 

68,358.00 

64,062.00 

70,993.00 

19,252.00 

104,402.00 

November December 

5,238,840.92 5,208,972.92 

147,124.00 147,124.00 

38,710.00 

90,383.00 101,591.00 

20,982.00 28,463.00 

297,199.00 277,178.00 

68,358.00 68,358.00 

64,062.00 64,062.00 

70,993.00 70,993.00 

19,252.00 19,252.00 

104,402.00 104,402.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form CASH 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

January February 

5,159,083.92 5,086,531.92 

147,124.00 147,124.00 

69,553.00 102,741.00 

37,838.00 130,693.00 

254,515.00 380,558.00 

68,358.00 68,358.00 

64,062.00 64,062.00 

70,993.00 70,993.00 

19,252.00 19,252.00 

104,402.00 104,402.00 

Prinled: 6/17/2025 9:25 PM 

                                                                 7 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

All Other Financing Uses 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

Assets and Deferred Outflows 

Cash Not In Treasury 

Accounts Receivable 

Due From Other Funds 

Stores 

Prepaid Expenditures 

Other Current Assels 

Lease Receivable 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 

liabilities and Deferred Inflows 

Accounts Pay able 

Due To Olher Funds 

Current Loans 

Unearned Revenues 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 

NonoP-erating 

Suspense Clearing 

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B -C + D) 

F. ENDING CASH (A+ E) 

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND 

ADJUSTMENTS 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CASH, Version 8 

Object 

7630. 

7699 

9111-

9199 

9200. 

9299 

9310 

9320 

9330 

9340 

9380 

9490 

9500. 

9599 

9610 

9640 

9650 

9690 

9910 

Budget, July 1 

2025-26 Budget 

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) 

Beginning 
Balances July August September 

(Ref. Only) 

238,723.00 476,415.00 677,067.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

(114,873.00) (346,735.00) (498,299.00) 

5,962,369.92 5,615,634.92 5,117,335.92 

Page 2 

October 

327,067.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

121,505.00 

5,238,840.92 

November December 

327,067.00 327,067.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

(29,868.00) (49,889.00) 

5,208,972.92 5,159,083.92 

46 10462 0000000 

Form CASH 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

January February 

327,067.00 327,067.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

(72,552.00) 53,491.00 

5,086,531.92 5,140,022.92 

Prinled: 6/17/2025 9:25 PM 

                                                                 8 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

A. BEGINNING CASH 

B. RECEIPTS 

LCFF Sources 

Principal Apportionment 

Property Taxes 

Miscellaneous Funds 

Federal Revenue 

Other State Revenue 

Other Local Revenue 

I nterf und Transfers In 

All Other Financing Sources 

TOTAL RECEIPTS 

C. DISBURSEMENTS 

Certificated Salaries 

Classified Salaries 

Em ploy ee Benef its 

Books and Supplies 

Services 

Capital Outlay 

Other Outgo 

I nterf und Transfers Out 

All Other Financing Uses 

California Dept of Education 

ESTIMAlES THROUGH THE MONTH OF: 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CASH, Version 8 

Object 

JUNE 

8010-

8019 

8020-

8079 

8080-

8099 

8100-

8299 

8300-

8599 

8600-

8799 

8900-

8929 

8930-

8979 

1000-

1999 

2000-

2999 

3000-

3999 

4000-

4999 

5000-

5999 

6000-

6999 

7000-

7499 

7600-

7629 

7630-

7699 

Budget, July 1 

2025-26 Budget 

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) 

March April May 

5,140,022.92 5,085,909.92 5,033,251.92 

147,124.00 147,124.00 147,124.00 

38,710.00 

6,840.00 

75,773.00 59,000.00 61,106.00 

50,056.00 22,734.00 78,024.00 

272,953.00 274,408.00 286,254.00 

68,358.00 68,358.00 68,358.00 

64,062.00 64,062.00 64,062.00 

70,993.00 70,993.00 70,993.00 

19,251.00 19,251.00 19,251.00 

104,402.00 104,402.00 104,402.00 

Page 3 

June Accruals Adjustments 

4,992,439.92 

147,126.00 0.00 

163,831.00 

197,491.00 

224,318.00 

70,000.00 

802,766.00 0.00 0.00 

68,362.00 0.00 

64,058.00 

70,997.00 

19,251.00 

104,402.00 

(17,215.00) 

46 10462 0000000 

Form CASH 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

TOTAL BUDGET 

1,634,714.00 1,634,714.00 

77,420.00 77,420.00 

0.00 0.00 

185,032.00 185,032.00 

948,848.00 948,848.00 

810,687.00 810,687.00 

70,000.00 70,000.00 

0.00 0.00 

3,726,701.00 3,726,701.00 

739,771.00 739,771.00 

703,051.00 703,051.00 

771,416.00 771,416.00 

192,516.00 192,516.00 

1,139,054.00 1,139,054.00 

790,000.00 790,000.00 

(17,215.00) (17,215.00) 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Prinled: 6/17/2025 9:25 PM 

                                                                 9 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 

D. BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

Assets and Deferred Outflows 

Cash Not In Treasury 

Accounts Receivable 

Due From Other Funds 

Stores 

Prepaid Expenditures 

Other Current Assets 

Lease Receivable 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 

Accounts Pay able 

Due To Other Funds 

Current Loans 

Unearned Revenues 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

SUBTOTAL 

NonoP-erating 

Suspense Clearing 

TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEMS 

E. NET INCREASE/DECREASE (B -C + D) 

F. ENDING CASH (A+ E) 

G. ENDING CASH, PLUS CASH ACCRUALS AND ADJUSTMENTS 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CASH, Version 8 

Object 

9111-

9199 

9200-

9299 

9310 

9320 

9330 

9340 

9380 

9490 

9500-

9599 

9610 

9640 

9650 

9690 

9910 

Budget, July 1 

2025-26 Budget 

Cashflow Worksheet - Budget Year (1) 

March April May 

327,066.00 327,066.00 327,066.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

(54,113.00) (52,658.00) (40,812.00) 

5,085,909.92 5,033,251.92 4,992,439.92 

Page 4 

June Accruals Adjustments 

309,855.00 0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

492,911.00 0.00 0.00 

5,485,350.92 

46 10462 0000000 

Form CASH 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

TOTAL BUDGET 

4,318,593.00 4,318,593.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(591,892.00) (591,892.00) 

5,485,350.92 

Prinled: 6/17/2025 9:25 PM 

                                                                 10 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Oescri ption 

County Operations Grant ADA 
(Enter projections for subsequent 
years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E; 
current year - Column A - is 
extracted from Form A, Line BS) 

(Enter projections for subsequent 
years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E; 
current year - Column A - is 
extracted) 

A. REVENUES AND O11-IER 
FINANCING SOURCES 

1. LCFF Sources 

2. Federal Revenues 

3. Other State Revenues 

4. Other Local Revenues 

5. Other Financing Sources 

a. Transfers In 

b. Other Sources 

c. Contributions 

6. Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 

B. EXPENDITURES AND O11-IER 
FINANCING USES 

1. Certificated Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost-0f-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Certificated Salaries (Sum 
lines B1a thru B1d) 

2. Classified Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost-of-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Class�ied Salaries (Sum 
lines B2a thru B2d) 

3. Employee Benefits 

4. Books and Supplies 

5. Services and Other Operating 
Expenditures 

6. Capital Outlay 

7. Other Outgo (excluding Transfers 
of Indirect Costs) 

8. Other Outgo - Transfers of 
Indirect Costs 

9. Other Financing Uses 

a. Transfers Out 

b. Other Uses 

Califomia Dept of Education 

Object 
Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

8900-8929 

8930-8979 

8980-8999 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299, 7400-7499 

7300-7399 

7600-7629 

7630-7699 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: MYP, Version 8 

Budget, July 1 
County School Service Fund 

Mulllyear Projections 
Unrestricted 

2025-26 % 
Budget Change 

(Form 01) (Cols. C-A/A) 
(A) (B) 

372.46 0.00% 

1,712,134.00 2.49% 

0.00 0.00% 

3,616.00 0.00% 

384,659.00 43.97% 

70,000.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00% 

2,170,409.00 9.76% 

363,502.00 1.68% 

504,636.00 2.80% 

431,442.00 2.46% 

27,916.00 7.47% 

463,524.00 2.48% 

510,000.00 -93.14% 

0.00 0.00% 

(124,729.00) 0.00% 

0.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00% 

Page 1 

2026-27 
Projection 

(C) 

372.46 

1,754,779.00 

0.00 

3,616.00 

553,800.00 

70,000.00 

2,382,195.00 

363,502.00 

6,095.00 

369,597.00 

504,636.00 

14,129.00 

518,765.00 

442,058.00 

30,000.00 

475,000.00 

35,000.00 

(124,729.00) 

% 

46 10462 0000000 
Form MYP 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Change 2027-28 
(Cols. E-C/C) Projection (E) 

(D) 

0.00% 372.46 

2.84% 1,804,533.00 

0.00% 0.00 

0.00% 3,616.00 

0.00% 553,800.00 

0.00% 70,000.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

2.09% 2,431,949.00 

369,597.00 

6,198.00 

1.68% 375,795.00 

518,765.00 

14,525.00 

2.80% 533,290.00 

2.75% 454,215.00 

16.67% 35,000.00 

4.21% 495,000.00 

0.00% 35,000.00 

0.00% 

0.00% (124,729.00) 

0.00% 

0.00% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:29 PM 

                                                                 11 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

10. Other Adjustments (Explain in 

Section F below) 

11. Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 

IN FUND BALANCE (Line A6 minus 

line B11) 

D. FUND BALANCE 

1. Net Beginning Fund Balance 

(Form 01, line F1e) 

2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines 

C and D1) 

3. Components of Ending Fund 

Balance 

a. Nonspendable 

b. Restricted 

c. Committed 

1. Stabilization Arrangements 

2. Other Commitments 

d. Assigned 

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

1. Reserve for Economic 

Uncertainties 

2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

f. Total Components of Ending 

Fund Balance (Line D3f must 

agree 1Mth line D2) 

E. AVAi LAB LE RESERVES 

1. County School Service Fund 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic 

Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

(Enter reserve projections for 

subsequent years 1 and 2 in 

Columns C and E; current year -

Column A - is extracted.) 

2. Special Reserve Fund -

Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17) 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic 

Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

3. Total Available Reserves (Sum 

lines E1a thru E2c) 

F. ASSUMPTIONS 

Object 
Codes 

9710-9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

9750 

9789 

9790 

9750 

9789 

9790 

Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund 

Multiyear Projections 

Unrestricted 

2025-26 % 
Budget Change 

(Form 01) (Cols. C-AIA) 
(A) (B) 

2,176,291.00 -19.79% 

(5,882.00) 

5,462,380.00 

5,456,498.00 

600.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

583,010.00 

4,872,888.00 

5,456,498.00 

0.00 

583,010.00 

4,872,888.00 

5,455,898.00 

2026-27 
Projection 

(C) 

1,745,691.00 

636,504.00 

5,456,498.00 

6,093,002.00 

600.00 

444,962.00 

5,647,440.00 

6,093,002.00 

0.00 

444,962.00 

5,647,440.00 

6,092,402.00 

% 
Change 

(Cols. E-CIC) 

(D) 

46 10462 0000000 

Form MYP 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

2027-28 
Projection (E) 

3.32% 1,803,571.00 

628,378.00 

6,093,002.00 

6,721,380.00 

600.00 

446,833.00 

6,273,947.00 

6,721,380.00 

0.00 

446,833.00 

6,273,947.00 

6,720,780.00 

Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and second subsequent fiscal years. Further, please 

include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments projected in lines B1d, B2d, and B10. For additional information, please refer to the Budget 

Assumptions section of the SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide. 

Califomia Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: MYP, Version 8 Page 2 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:29 PM 

                                                                 12 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

County Operations Grant ADA 

(Enter projections for subsequent 

years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E; 

current year - Column A - is 

extracted from Form A, Line B5) 

(Enter projections for subsequent 

years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E; 

current year - Column A - is 

extracted) 

A. REVENUES AND O11-IER 

FINANCING SOURCES 

1. LCFF Sources 

2. Federal Revenues 

3. Other State Revenues 

4. Other Local Revenues 

5. Other Financing Sources 

a. Transfers In 

b. Other Sources 

c. Contributions 

6. Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 

B. EXPENDITURES AND O11-IER 

FINANCING USES 

1. Certificated Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost--0f-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Certificated Salaries (Sum 

lines B1a thru B1d) 

2. Classified Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost--0f-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Class�ied Salaries (Sum 

lines B2a thru B2d) 

3. Employee Benefits 

4. Books and Supplies 

5. Services and Other Operating 

Expenditures 

6. Capital Outlay 

7. Other Outgo (excluding Transl ers 

of Indirect Costs) 

8. Other Outgo - Transfers of 

Indirect Costs 

9. Other Financing Uses 

a. Transfers Out 

b. Other Uses 

10. Other Adjustments (Explain in 

Section F below) 

California Dept of Education 

Object 

Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

8900-8929 

8930-8979 

8980-8999 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299, 7400-7499 

7300-7399 

7600-7629 

7630-7699 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: MYP, Version 8 

Budget, July 1 

County School Service 

Multiyear Projections 

Restricted 

2025-26 % 
Budget Change 

(Form 01) (Cols. C-AIA) 

(A) (B) 

0.00 0.00% 

185,032.00 0.00% 

945,232.00 0.00% 

426,028.00 -18.79% 

0.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00% 

1,556,292.00 -5.14% 

376,269.00 1.70% 

198,415.00 2.78% 

339,974.00 3.31% 

164,600.00 -30.13% 

675,530.00 -44.49% 

280,000.00 -91.07% 

0.00 0.00% 

107,514.00 -9.30% 

0.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00% 

Page 3 

2026-27 

Projection 
(C) 

185,032.00 

945,232.00 

345,959.00 

1,476,223.00 

376,269.00 

6,397.00 

382,666.00 

198,415.00 

5,516.00 

203,931.00 

351,213.00 

115,000.00 

375,000.00 

25,000.00 

97,515.00 

% 

46 10462 0000000 

Form MYP 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Change 2027-28 

(Cols. E-CIC) Projection (E) 

(D) 

0.00% 

0.00% 185,032.00 

0.00% 945,232.00 

0.00% 345,959.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 1,476,223.00 

382,666.00 

6,505.00 

1.70% 389,171.00 

203,931.00 

5,671.00 

2.78% 209,602.00 

3.36% 363,014.00 

-13.04% 100,000.00 

-13.33% 325,000.00 

0.00% 25,000.00 

0.00% 

-3.08% 94,515.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 g;29 PM 

                                                                 13 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

11. Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 

IN FUND BALANCE (Line A6 minus 

line B11) 

D. FUND BALANCE 

1. Net Beginning Fund Balance 

(Form 01, line F1e) 

2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines 

C and D1) 

3. Components of Ending Fund 

Balance 

a. Nonspendable 

b. Restricted 

c. Committed 

1. Stabilization Arrangements 

2. Other Commitments 

d. Assigned 

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

1. Reserve for Economic 

Uncertainties 

2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

f. Total Components of Ending 

Fund Balance (Line D3f must 

agree "1th line D2) 

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES 

1. County School Service Fund 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic 

Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

(Enter reserve projections for 

subsequent years 1 and 2 in 

Columns C and E; current year -

Column A - is extracted.) 

2. Special Reserve Fund -

Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17) 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic 

Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

3. Total Available Reserves (Sum 

lines E1a thru E2c) 

F. ASSUMPTIONS 

Object 
Codes 

9710-9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

9750 

9789 

9790 

9750 

9789 

9790 

Budget, July 1 

County School Service 

Multiyear Projections 

Restricted 

2025-26 % 
Budget Change 

(Form 01) (Cols. C-AIA) 
(A) (B) 

2,142,302.00 -27.63% 

(586,010.00) 

907,404.00 

321,394.00 

0.00 

441,949.00 

(120,555.00) 

321,394.00 

2026-27 
Projection 

(C) 

1,550,325.00 

(74,102.00) 

321,394.00 

247,292.00 

247,292.00 

0.00 

247,292.00 

% 
Change 

(Cols. E-CIC) 

(D) 

46 10462 0000000 

Form MYP 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

2027-28 
Projection (E) 

-2.84% 1,506,302.00 

(30,079.00) 

247,292.00 

217,213.00 

217,213.00 

0.00 

217,213.00 

Please provide below or on a separate attachment, the assumptions used to determine the projections for the first and second subsequent fiscal years. Further, please 

include an explanation for any significant expenditure adjustments projected in lines B1d, 82d, and B10. For additional information, please refer to the Budget 

Assumptions section of the SACS Financial Reporting Software User Guide. 

Califomia Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: MYP, Version 8 Page 4 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:29 PM 

                                                                 14 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

County Operations Grant ADA 

(Enter projections for subsequent 

years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E; 

current year - Column A - is 

extracted from Form A, Line BS) 

(Enter projections for subsequent 

years 1 and 2 in Columns C and E; 

current year - Column A - is 

extracted) 

A. REVENUES AND O11-IER 

FINANCING SOURCES 

1. LCFF Sources 

2. Federal Revenues 

3. Other State Revenues 

4. Other Local Revenues 

5. Other Financing Sources 

a. Transfers In 

b. Other Sources 

c. Contributions 

6. Total (Sum lines A1 thru A5c) 

B. EXPENDITURES AND O11-IER 

FINANCING USES 

1. Certificated Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost--0f-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Certificated Salaries (Sum 

lines B1a thru B1d) 

2. Classified Salaries 

a. Base Salaries 

b. Step & Column Adjustment 

c. Cost--0f-Living Adjustment 

d. Other Adjustments 

e. Total Class�ied Salaries (Sum 

lines B2a thru B2d) 

3. Employee Benefits 

4. Books and Supplies 

5. Services and Other Operating 

Expenditures 

6. Capital Outlay 

7. Other Outgo (excluding Transfers 

of Indirect Costs) 

8. Other Outgo - Transfers of 

Indirect Costs 

9. Other Financing Uses 

a. Transfers Out 

b. Other Uses 

10. Other Adjustments 

California Dept of Education 

Object 
Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

8900-8929 

8930-8979 

8980-8999 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299, 7400-7499 

7300-7399 

7600-7629 

7630-7699 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: MYP, Version 8 

Budget, July 1 

County School Service 

Multiyear Projections 

Unrestricted/Restricted 

2025-26 % 
Budget Change 

(Form 01) (Cols. C-A/A) 
(A) (B) 

372.46 0.00% 

1,712,134.00 2.49% 

185,032.00 0.00% 

948,848.00 0.00% 

810,687.00 10.99% 

70,000.00 0.00% 

0,00 0.00% 

0,00 0.00% 

3,726,701.00 3.53% 

739,771.00 1.69% 

703,051.00 2.79% 

771,416.00 2.83% 

192,516.00 -24.68% 

1,139,054.00 -25.38% 

790,000.00 -92.41% 

0,00 0.00% 

(17,215.00) 58.08% 

0.00 0.00% 

0.00 0.00% 

Page 5 

2026-27 
Projection 

(C) 

372.46 

1,754,779.00 

185,032.00 

948,848.00 

899,759.00 

70,000.00 

0,00 

0.00 

3,858,418.00 

739,771.00 

12,492.00 

0,00 

0,00 

752,263.00 

703,051.00 

19,645.00 

0,00 

0,00 

722,696.00 

793,271.00 

145,000.00 

850,000.00 

60,000.00 

0,00 

(27,214.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

% 

46 10462 0000000 

Form MYP 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Change 2027-28 
(Cols. E-C/C) Projection (E) 

(D) 

0.00% 372.46 

2.84% 1,804,533.00 

0.00% 185,032.00 

0.00% 948,848.00 

0.00% 899,759.00 

0.00% 70,000.00 

0.00% 0,00 

0.00% 0,00 

1.29% 3,908,172.00 

752,263.00 

12,703.00 

0,00 

0,00 

1.69% 764,966.00 

722,696.00 

20,196.00 

0,00 

0,00 

2.79% 742,892.00 

3.02% 817,229.00 

-6.90% 135,000.00 

-3.53% 820,000.00 

0.00% 60,000.00 

0.00% 0,00 

11.02% (30,214.00) 

0.00% 0.00 

0.00% 0.00 

0.00 

Printed: 6/17/2025 g;2g PM 

                                                                 15 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

11. Total (Sum lines B1 thru B10) 

C. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) 

IN FUND BALANCE (Line A6 minus 

line B11) 

D. FUND BALANCE 

1. Net Beginning Fund Balance 

(Form 01, line F1e) 

2. Ending Fund Balance (Sum lines 

C and D1) 

3. Components of Ending Fund 

Balance 

a. Nonspendable 

b. Restricted 

c. Committed 

1. Stabilization Arrangements 

2. Other Commitments 

d. Assigned 

e. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

1. Reserve for Economic 

Uncertainties 

2. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

f. Total Components of Ending 

Fund Balance (Line D3f must 

agree ><1th line D2) 

E. AVAILABLE RESERVES 

1. County School Service Fund 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic 

Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

d. Negative Restricted Ending 

Balances (Negative resources 

2000-9999) 

2. Special Reserve Fund -

Noncapital Outlay (Fund 17) 

a. Stabilization Arrangements 

b. Reserve for Economic 

Uncertainties 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated 

3. Total Available Reserves - by 

Amount (Sum lines E1a thru E2c) 

4. Total Available Reserves - by 

Percent (Line E3 divided by Line 

F3c) 

F. RECOMMENDED RESERVES 

1. Special Education Pass-through 

Exclusions 

For counties that serve as the 

administrative unit (AU) of a 

special education local plan area 

(SELPA): 

Califomia Dept of Education 

Object 
Codes 

9710-9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

9750 

9789 

9790 

9792 

9750 

9789 

9790 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: MYP, Version 8 

Budget, July 1 

County School Service 

Multiyear Projections 

Unrestricted/Restricted 

2025-26 % 
Budget Change 

(Form 01) (Cols. C-A/A) 
(A) (B) 

4,318,593.00 -23.68% 

(591,892.00) 

6,369,784.00 

5,777,892.00 

600.00 

441,949.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

583,010.00 

4,752,333.00 

5,777,892.00 

0.00 

583,010.00 

4,872,888.00 

(120,555.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

5,335,343.00 

123.54% 

Page 6 

2026-27 
Projection 

(C) 

3,296,016.00 

562,402.00 

5,777,892.00 

6,340,294.00 

600.00 

247,292.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

444,962.00 

5,647,440.00 

6,340,294.00 

0.00 

444,962.00 

5,647,440.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

6,092,402.00 

184.84% 

% 
Change 

(Cols. E-C/C) 
(D) 

46 10462 0000000 

Form MYP 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

2027-28 
Projection (E) 

0.42% 3,309,873.00 

598,299.00 

6,340,294.00 

6,938,593.00 

600.00 

217,213.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

446,833.00 

6,273,947.00 

6,938,593.00 

0.00 

446,833.00 

6,273,947.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

6,720,780.00 

203.05% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:29 PM 

                                                                 16 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

a. Do you choose to exclude 

from the reserve calculation the 

pass-through funds distributed 

to SELPA members? 

b. If you are the SELPA AU and 

are excluding special education 

pass-through funds: 

1. Enter the name(s) of the 

SELPA(s): 

2. Special education pass-

through funds 

(Column A: Fund 10, 

resources 3300-3499, 6500-

6540 and 6546, objects 

7211-7213 and 7221-7223; 

enter projections for 

subsequent years 1 and 2 

in Columns C and E) 

2. County Office's Total 

Expenditures and Other Financing 

Uses 

Used to determine the reserve 

standard percentage level on 

line F3d (Line B11, plus line 

F1b2 if line F1a is No) 

3. Calculating the Reseiv es 

a. Expenditures and Other 

Financing Uses (Line B11) 

b. Plus: Special Education Pass-

through Funds (Line F1b2, if 

Line F1a is No) 

c. Total Expenditures and Other 

Financing Uses (Line F3a plus 

line F3b) 

d. Reserve Standard 

Percentage Level (Refer to 

Form 01CS, Criterion 8 for 

calculation details) 

e. Reserve Standard - By 

Percent (Line F3c times F3d) 

I. Reserve Standard - By 

Amount (Ref er to Form 01 CS, 

Criterion 8 for calculation 

details) 

g. Reserve Standard (Greater of 

Line F3e or F3f) 

h. Available Reserves (Line E3) 

Meet Reserve Standard (Line 

F3g) 

California Dept of Education 

Object 
Codes 

Yes 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: MYP, Version 8 

Budget, July 1 

County School Service 

Multiyear Projections 

Unrestricted/Restricted 

2025-26 % 
Budget Change 

(Form 01) (Cols. C-A/A) 
(A) (B) 

0.00 

4,318,593.00 

4,318,593.00 

0.00 

4,318,593.00 

5.00% 

215,929.65 

88,000.00 

215,929.65 

YES 

Page? 

2026-27 
Projection 

(C) 

3,296,016.00 

3,296,016.00 

0.00 

3,296,016.00 

5.00% 

164,800.80 

88,000.00 

164,800.80 

YES 

% 
Change 

(Cols. E-C/C) 
(D) 

46 10462 0000000 

Form MYP 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

2027-28 
Projection (E) 

3,309,873.00 

3,309,873.00 

0.00 

3,309,873.00 

5.00% 

165,493.65 

88,000.00 

165,493.65 

YES 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:29 PM 

                                                                 17 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 

Cosls) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES AND USES (AS· B9) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES/USES 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + D4 ) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Object 
Resource Codes Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299 

7400-7499 

7300-7399 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

9791 

9793 

Budge� July 1 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2024-25 Estimated Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(A) (B) 

1,680,626.00 0,00 

0.00 184,857.00 

4,691.00 968,342.00 

387,659.00 655,614.00 

2,072,976.00 1,808,813.00 

387,429.00 368,447.00 

555,490.00 225,296.00 

449,624.00 343,297.00 

24,346.00 183,829.00 

463,324.00 595,776.00 

35,000.00 66,191.00 

0.00 0.00 

{166,010.00) 145,864,00 

1,749,203.00 1,928,700.00 

323,773,00 (119,887.00) 

46,000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 0.00 

369,773.00 (119,887.00) 

5,092,607.00 1,027,291.00 

0.00 0.00 

Page 1 

2025-26 Budget 

Total Fund 
col. A +B Unrestricted Restricted 

(C) (0) (E) 

1,680,626.00 1,712,134.00 0,00 

184,857.00 0.00 185,032.00 

973,033,00 3,616.00 945,232.00 

1,043,273.00 384,659.00 426,028.00 

3,881,789.00 2,100,409.00 1,556,292.00 

755,876.00 363,502.00 376,269.00 

780,786.00 504,636.00 198,415.00 

792,921.00 431,442.00 339,974.00 

208,175.00 27,916.00 164,600.00 

1,059,100.00 463,524.00 675,530.00 

101,191.00 510,000.00 280,000.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

(20, 146,00) (124,729.00) 107,514,00 

3,677,903.00 2,176,291.00 2,142,302.00 

203,886,00 (75,882.00) (586,010.00) 

46,000.00 70,000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 70,000.00 0.00 

249,886.00 (5,882.00) (586,010.00) 

6,119,898.00 5,462,380.00 907,404.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form01 

GBBGURCYH5(2025-26 ) 

Total Fund %Diff 
col. D + E Column 

(F) C&F 

1,712,134.00 1.9% 

185,032.00 0.1% 

948,848.00 -2.5% 

810,687.00 -22.3% 

3,656,701.00 -5.8% 

739,771.00 -2.1% 

703,051.00 -10.0% 

771,416.00 -2.7% 

192,516.00 -7.5% 

1,139,054.00 7.5% 

790,000.00 680.7% 

0.00 0.0% 

{17,215.00) -14.5% 

4,318,593.00 17.4% 

(661,892.00) 424.6% 

70,000.00 52.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

70,000.00 52.2% 

(591,892.00) -336.9% 

6,369, 784,00 4.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 18 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

c) As of July 1 - Audned (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reseive for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

G. ASSETS 

1) Cash 

a) in County Treasury 

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in 
County Treasury 

b) in Banks 

c) in Revolving Cash Account 

d) with Fiscal Agent/Trustee 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 

2) Investments 

3) Accounts Receivable 

4) Due from Grant or Gov emment 

5) Due from Other Funds 

6)Slores 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 

6) Other Current Assets 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Object 
Resource Codes Codes 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9780 

9780 

9789 

9790 

9110 

9111 

9120 

9130 

9135 

9140 

9150 

9200 

9290 

9310 

9320 

9330 

9340 

Budge� July 1 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(A) (B) 

5,092,607.00 1,027,291.00 

0.00 0.00 

5,092,607.00 1,027,291.00 

5,462,380.00 907,404.00 

600.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 907,840.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

494,474.00 0.00 

4,967,306.00 (436.00) 

5,061,641.54 1,015,601.38 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

600.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

720.00 0.00 

0.00 141,985.55 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Page 2 

2025-28 Budget 

Total Fund 
col. A +B Unrestricted Restricted 

(C) (D) (E) 

6,119,898.00 5,462,380.00 907,404.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

6,119,898.00 5,462,380.00 907,404.00 

6,369,784.00 5,456,498.00 321,394.00 

600.00 600.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

907,840.00 0.00 441,949.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

494,474.00 583,010.00 0.00 

4,966,870.00 4,872,888.00 (120,555.00) 

6,077,242.92 

0.00 

0.00 

600.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

720.00 

141,985.55 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 

col. D + E Column 
(F) C&F 

6,369,784.00 4.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

6,369,784.00 4.1% 

5,777,892.00 -9.3% 

600.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

441,949.00 -51.3% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

583,010.00 17.9% 

4,752,333.00 -4.3% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 19 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

9) Lease Receivable 

10) TOTAL, ASSETS 

H .  DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Def erred Outf lo\o\'S of Resources 

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Pay able 

2) Due to Grant or Gov emments 

3) Due to Other Funds 

4) Current Loans 

5) Unearned Revenue 

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

K. FUND EQUITY 

Ending Fund Balance, June 30 

(G10 + H2)- (16 + J2) 

LCFF SOURCES 

Principal Apportionment 

State Aid - Current Year 

Education Protection Account State Aid - Current 

Year 

State Aid - Prior Years 

Tax Relief Subventions 

Homeowners' Exemptions 

Timber Yield Tax 

Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes 

County & District Taxes 

Secured Roll Taxes 

Unsecured Roll Taxes 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Education Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Object 
Resource Codes Codes 

9380 

9490 

9500 

9590 

9610 

9640 

9650 

9690 

8011 

8012 

8019 

8021 

8022 

8029 

8041 

8042 

8043 

8044 

8045 

Budge� July 1 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(A) (B) 

0.00 0.00 

5,062,961.54 1,157,586.93 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

40,755.50 0.00 

1,457.99 77,350.71 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

42,213.49 77,350.71 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

5,020,748.05 1,080,236.22 

1.465,905.00 0.00 

137,080.00 0.00 

241.00 0.00 

500.00 0.00 

300.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

73,000.00 0.00 

2,700.00 0.00 

70.00 0.00 

850.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Page 3 

Total Fund 
col. A +B Unrestricted 

(C) (D) 

0.00 

6,220,548.47 

0.00 

0.00 

40,755.50 

78,808.70 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

119,564.20 

0.00 

0.00 

6,100,984.27 

1,465,905.00 1,497,654.00 

137,060.00 137,060.00 

241.00 0.00 

500.00 500.00 

300.00 300.00 

0.00 0.00 

73,000.00 73,000.00 

2,700.00 2,700.00 

70.00 70.00 

850.00 850.00 

0.00 0.00 

2025-28 Budget 

Restricted 
(E) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 
col. D + E Column 

(F) C&F 

1,497,654.00 2.2% 

137,060.00 0.0% 

0.00 -100.0% 

500.00 0.0% 

300.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

73,000.00 0.0% 

2,700.00 0.0% 

70.00 0.0% 

850.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 20 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Community Redevelopment Funds (SB 

617/699/1992) 

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Taxes 

Receipt from Co. Board of Sups. 

Miscellaneous Funds (EC 41604) 

Roy al ties and Bonuses 

Other In-Lieu Taxes 

Less: Non-LCFF (50%) Adjustment 

Subtotal, LCFF Sources 

LCFF Transfers 

Unrestricted LCFF Transfers - Current Year 

All Other LCFF Transfers - Current Year 

Transfers to Charter Schools in Lieu of Property 

Taxes 

Property Taxes Transfers 

LCFF Transfers - Prior Years 

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Maintenance and Operations 

Special Education Entitlement 

Special Education Discretionary Grants 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Donated Food Commodities 

Flood Control Funds 

Wildlife Reserve Funds 

FEMA 

lnteragency Contracts Betv.Een LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues from Federal Sources 

Title I, Part A, Basic 

Title I, Part D, Local Delinquent Programs 

Title II, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction 

Title I l l,  Immigrant Student Program 

Title 111, English Leamer Program 

Public Charter Schools Grant Program (PCSGP) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Object 
Resource Codes Codes 

8047 

8048 

8070 

8081 

8082 

8089 

0000 8091 

All Other 8091 

8096 

8097 

8099 

8110 

8181 

8182 

8220 

8221 

8270 

8280 

8281 

8285 

8287 

3010 8290 

3025 8290 

4035 8290 

4201 8290 

4203 8290 

4610 8290 

Unrestricted 
(A) 

Budge� July 1 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Restricted 
(B) 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

1,680,626.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

1,680,626.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 122,206.00 

0.00 35,358.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Page4 

Total Fund 
col. A +B 

(C) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,680,628.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,680,626.00 

0.00 

122,206.00 

35,358.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2025-28 Budget 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(D) (E) 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

1,712,134.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

1,712,134.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 122,206.00 

0.00 35,533.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 
col. D + E Column 

(F) C&F 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

1,712,134.00 1.9% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

1,712,134.00 1.9% 

0.00 0.0% 

122,206.00 0.0% 

35,533.00 0.5% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 21 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

Other Every Student Succeeds Act 

Career and Technical Education 

All Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

Special Education Master Plan 

Current Year 

Prior Years 

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 

All Other state Apportionments - Prior Years 

Child Nutrition Programs 

Mandated Costs Reimbursements 

Lottery - Unrestricted and Instructional Materials 

Tax Relief Subventions 

Restricted Levies - Other 

HomeO'M'lers' Exemptions 

Other Subv entions/I n-Lieu Taxes 

Pass-Through Revenues from 

State Sources 

Expanded Leaming Opportunities Program (EL� 
P) 

After School Education and Safety (ASES) 

Charter School Facility Grant 

Drug/Alcohol/Tobacco Funds 

California Clean Energy Jobs Act 

Career Technical Education Incentive Grant 
Program 

Arts and "-!sic in Schools (Prop 28) 

American Indian Early Childhood Education 

Specialized Secondary 

All Other State Revenue 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Object 
Resource Codes Codes 

3040, 3060, 3061, 
3110, 3150, 3155, 
3180, 3182, 3183, 

8290 
4037, 4038, 4123, 
4124, 4126, 4127, 
4128, 4204, 5630 

3500-3599 8290 

All Other 8290 

6500 8311 

6500 8319 

All Other 8311 

All Other 8319 

8520 

8550 

8560 

8575 

8576 

8587 

2600 8590 

6010 8590 

6030 8590 

6650, 6680, 6685, 
8590 

6690, 6695 

6230 8590 

6387 8590 

6770 8590 

7210 8590 

7370 8590 

All Other 8590 

Budge� July 1 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(A) (B) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 27,293.00 

0.00 184,857.00 

693,474.00 

766.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

1,045.00 0.00 

3,346.00 1,436.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

75,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

300.00 197,666.00 

Page 5 

Total Fund 
col. A +B 

(C) 

0.00 

0.00 

27,293.00 

184,857.00 

693,474.00 

766.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,045.00 

4,782.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

75,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

197,966.00 

2025-28 Budget 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(D) (E) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 27,293.00 

0.00 185,032.00 

690,239.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

3,616.00 1,436.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

75,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 178,557.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 

col. D + E Column 
(F) C&F 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

27,293.00 0.0% 

185,032.00 0.1% 

690,239.00 -0.5% 

0.00 -100.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 -100.0% 

5,052.00 5.6% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

75,000.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

178,557.00 -9.8% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 22 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

TOTAL, OTHER STATE REVENUE 

OTH ER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

County and District Taxes 

Other Restricted Levies 

Secured Roll 

Unsecured Roll 

Prior Years' Taxes 

Supplemental Taxes 

Non-Ad Valorem Taxes 

Parcel Taxes 

Other 

Community Redevelopment Funds Not Subject 

to LCFF Deduction 

Penalties and Interest from Delinquent Non-

LCFF Taxes 

Sales 

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 

Sale of Publications 

Food Service Sales 

All Other Sales 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of 

Investments 

Fees and Contracts 

Adult Education Fees 

Non-Resident Students 

Transportation Fees From Individuals 

I nteragency Services 

Mitigation/Developer Fees 

All Other Fees and Contracts 

Other Local Revenue 

Plus: Miscellaneous Funds Non-LCFF (50 

Percent) Adjustment 

Pass-Through Revenue from Local Sources 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Object 
Resource Codes Codes 

8615 

8616 

8617 

8618 

8621 

8622 

8625 

8629 

8631 

8632 

8634 

8639 

8650 

8660 

8662 

8671 

8672 

8675 

8677 

8681 

8689 

8691 

8697 

Unrestricted 
(A) 

Budge� July 1 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Restricted 

(B) 

4,691.00 968,342.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

180,000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

198,859.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Page6 

Total Fund 
col. A +B Unrestricted 

(C) (D) 

973,033.00 3,616.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

180,000.00 180,000.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

198,859.00 198,859.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 

2025-28 Budget 

Restricted 
(E) 

945,232.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

31,569.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 
col. D + E Column 

(F) C&F 

948,848.00 -2.5% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

180,000.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

230,428.00 15.9% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 23 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

All Other Local Revenue 

Tuition 

All Other Transfers In 

Transfers of Apportionments 

Special Education SELPA Transfers 

From Districts or Charter Schools 

From County Offices 

From JPAs 

ROC/P Transfers 

From Districts or Charter Schools 

From County Offices 

From JPAs 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 

From Districts or Charter Schools 

From County Offices 

From JPAs 

All Other Transfers In from All Others 

TOTAL, OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL, REVENUES 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' 

Salaries 

Other Certificated Salaries 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 

Classified Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 

Other Classified Salaries 

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Resource Codes 

6500 

6500 

6500 

6360 

6360 

6360 

All Other 

All Other 

All Other 

Object 
Codes 

8699 

8710 

8781-8783 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8791 

8792 

8793 

8799 

1100 

1200 

1300 

1900 

2100 

2200 

2300 

2400 

2900 

3101-3102 

Budge� July 1 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(A) (B) 

8,800.00 450,819.00 

0.00 204,795.00 

0.00 0.00 

o.oo 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

387,659.00 655,614.00 

2,072,976.00 1,808,813.00 

219,225.00 260,698.00 

4,000.00 26,437.00 

164,204.00 81,312.00 

0.00 0.00 

387,429.00 368,447.00 

26,898.00 159,636.00 

92,409.00 48,000.00 

155,217.00 0.00 

280,966.00 0.00 

0.00 17,660.00 

555,490.00 225,296.00 

72,050.00 129,058.00 

Page 7 

2025-28 Budget 

Total Fund 
col. A +B Unrestricted Restricted 

(C) (D) (E) 

459,619.00 5,800.00 189,664.00 

204,795.00 0.00 204,795.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

o.oo o.oo 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,043,273.00 384,659.00 426,028.00 

3,881,789.00 2,100,409.00 1,556,292.00 

479,923.00 200,362.00 265,830.00 

30,437.00 0.00 27,500.00 

245,516.00 163,140.00 82,939.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

755,876.00 363,502.00 376,269.00 

186,534.00 17,741.00 142,271.00 

140,409.00 86,389.00 50,432.00 

155,217.00 170,678.00 0.00 

280,966.00 229,828.00 0.00 

17,660.00 0.00 5,712.00 

780,786.00 504,636.00 198,415.00 

201,108.00 69,429.00 127,724.00 

48 10462 0000000 
Form01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 
col. D + E Column 

(F) C&F 

195,464.00 -57.5% 

204,795.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

o.oo 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

810,687.00 -22.3% 

3,656,701.00 -5.8% 

466,192.00 -2.9% 

27,500.00 -9.6% 

246,079.00 0.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

739,771.00 -2.1% 

160,012.00 -14.2% 

136,821.00 -2.6% 

170,678.00 10.0% 

229,828.00 -18.2% 

5,712.00 -67.7% 

703,051.00 -10.0% 

197,153.00 -2.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 24 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

PERS 

OASDI/Medicare/ Altemativ e 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPEB, Allocated 

OPEB, Active Employees 

Other Employee Benefits 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 

Books and Other Ref ere nee Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapitalized Equipment 

Food 

TOTAL, BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Resource Codes 

SERVICES AND OTH ER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Services 

Travel and Conferences 

Dues and Memberships 

Insurance 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized 

Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs - lnterfund 

Professional/Consulting services and Operating 

Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING 

EXPENDITURES 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Object 
Codes 

3201-3202 

3301-3302 

3401-3402 

3501-3502 

3601-3602 

3701-3702 

3751-3752 

3901-3902 

4100 

4200 

4300 

4400 

4700 

5100 

5200 

5300 

5400 - 5450 

5500 

5600 

5710 

5750 

5800 

5900 

6100 

6170 

6200 

Budge� July 1 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(A) (B) 

134,853.00 48,670.00 

46,126.00 21,207.00 

162,752.00 123,154.00 

471.00 294.00 

33,372.00 20,914.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

449,624.00 343,297.00 

0.00 9,825.00 

0.00 0.00 

17,030.00 130,675.00 

7,316.00 43,329.00 

0.00 0.00 

24,346.00 183,829.00 

0.00 121,560.00 

18,858.00 50,376.00 

33,649.00 4,157.00 

0.00 25,000.00 

1,400.00 15,000.00 

1,500.00 1,000.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

393,317.00 377,683.00 

14,600.00 1,000.00 

463,324.00 595,776.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 25,000.00 

Page 8 

2025-28 Budget 

Total Fund 
col. A +B Unrestricted Restricted 

(C) (D) (E) 

183,523.00 131,798.00 45,439.00 

67,333.00 41,937.00 18,766.00 

285,906.00 157,694.00 127,663.00 

765.00 435.00 286.00 

54,286.00 30,149.00 20,096.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

792,921.00 431.442.00 339,974.00 

9,825.00 0.00 9,388.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

147,705.00 20,600.00 124,093.00 

50,645.00 7,316.00 31,119.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

208,175.00 27,916.00 164,600.00 

121,560.00 0.00 153,129.00 

69,234.00 19,058.00 34,634.00 

37,806.00 33,649.00 4,157.00 

25,000.00 0.00 25,500.00 

16,400.00 1,400.00 24,000.00 

2,500.00 1,500.00 2,000.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

771,000.00 393,317.00 431,110.00 

15,600.00 14,600.00 1,000.00 

1,059,100.00 463,524.00 675,530.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

25,000.00 475,000.00 280,000.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 
col. D + E Column 

(F) C&F 

177,237.00 -3.4% 

60,703.00 -9.8% 

285,357.00 -0.2% 

721.00 -5.8% 

50,245.00 -7.4% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

771,416.00 -2.7% 

9,388.00 -4.4% 

0.00 0.0% 

144,693.00 -2.0% 

38,435.00 -24.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

192,516.00 -7.5% 

153,129.00 26.0% 

53,692.00 -22.4% 

37,806.00 0.0% 

25,500.00 2.0% 

25,400.00 54.9% 

3,500.00 40.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

824,427.00 6.9% 

15,600.00 0.0% 

1,139,054.00 7.5% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

755,000.00 2,920.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 25 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Books and Media for New School Libraries or 

Major Expansion of School Libraries 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

Subscription Assets 

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Resource Codes 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 

Tuition for Instruction Under lnterdistrict 

Attendance Agreements 

State Special Schools 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments to County Offices 

Payments to JPAs 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

Special Education SELPA Transfers of 

Apportionments 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

ROC/P Transfers of Apportionments 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

Other Transfers of Apportionments 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

Debt Service 

Debt Service - Interest 

Other Debt Service - Principal 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

6500 

6500 

6500 

6360 

6360 

6360 

All Other 

Object 
Codes 

6300 

6400 

6500 

6600 

6700 

7110 

7130 

7141 

7142 

7143 

7211 

7212 

7213 

7221 

7222 

7223 

7221 

7222 

7223 

7221-7223 

7281-7283 

7299 

7438 

7439 

Unrestricted 

(A) 

Budge� July 1 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Restricted 
(B) 

0.00 0.00 

20,000.00 41,191.00 

15,000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

35,000.00 66,191.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Page 9 

Total Fund 
col. A +B Unrestricted 

(C) (D) 

0.00 0.00 

61,191.00 20,000.00 

15,000.00 15,000.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

101,191.00 510,000.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

2025-28 Budget 

Restricted 
(E) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

280,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 
col. D + E Column 

(F) C&F 

0.00 0.0% 

20,000.00 -67.3% 

15,000.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

790,000.00 680.7% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 26 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of 

Indirect Costs) 

Resource Codes 

OTHER OUTGO. TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs 

Transfers of Indirect Costs - lnterfund 

TOTAL, O11--IER OUTGO • lRANSFERS OF 

INDIRECT COSTS 

TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

From: Special Reserve Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers In 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUND lRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: Child Development Fund 

To: Special Reserve Fund 

To State School Building Fund/County School 

Facilities Fund 

To: Cafeteria Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND lRANSFERS OUT 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

State Apportionments 

Emergency Apportionments 

Proceeds 

Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets 

Other Sources 

County School Bldg Aid 

Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorganized 

LEAs 

Long-Term Debt Proceeds 

Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 

Proceeds from Leases 

Proceeds from Lease Revenue Bonds 

Proceeds from SBITAs 

All Other Financing Sources 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Object 
Codes 

7310 

7350 

8912 

8919 

7611 

7612 

7613 

7616 

7619 

8931 

8953 

8961 

8965 

8971 

8972 

8973 

8974 

8979 

Budge� July 1 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(A) (B) 

0.00 0.00 

(145,864.00) 145,864.00 

(20,148.00) 0.00 

(166,010.00) 145,864.00 

1,749,203.00 1,928,700.00 

0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 0.00 

46,000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Page 10 

Total Fund 
col. A +B Unrestricted 

(C) (D) 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 (107,515.00) 

(20,148.00) (17,214.00) 

(20,146.00) (124,729.00) 

3,677,903.00 2,176,291.00 

0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 70,000.00 

46,000.00 70,000.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

2025-28 Budget 

Restricted 
(E) 

0.00 

107,514.00 

0.00 

107,514.00 

2,142,302.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

48 10462 0000000 
Form01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 
col. D + E Column 

(F) C&F 

0.00 0.0% 

(1.00) New 

(17,214.00) -14.6% 

(17,215.00) -14.5% 

4,318,593.00 17.4% 

0.00 0.0% 

70,000.00 52.2% 

70,000.00 52.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 27 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 

USES 

Transfers of Funds from Lapsed/Reorganized 

LEAs 

All Other Financing Uses 

(d) TOTAL, USES 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 

TOTAL, OTH ER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 
(a•b+c •d+e) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Resource Codes 
Object 
Codes 

7651 

7699 

8980 

8990 

Unrestricted 
(A) 

Budge� July 1 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Object 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Restricted 
(B) 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 0.00 

Page 11 

2025-28 Budget 

Total Fund 
col. A +B Unrestricted Restricted 

(C) (D) (E) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 70,000.00 0.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 

col. D + E Column 
(F) C&F 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

70,000.00 52.2% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 28 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999) 

1) Instruction 

2) Instruction - Related Services 

3) Pupil Services 

4) Ancillary Services 

5) Community Services 

6) Enterprise 

7) General Administration 

8) Plant Services 

9) Other Outgo 

10) TOTAL, El<PENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER 
EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES AND USES (A5 • B10) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES/USES 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 
BALANCE (C + 04) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Object 
Function Codes Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-8999 

7000-7999 

8000-8999 

9000-9999 
Except 7600-

7699 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

9791 

Budge� July 1 

County School Service Fund 

Unrestricted and Restricted 

Expenditures by Function 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(A) (B) 

1,680,626.00 0.00 

0.00 184,857.00 

4,691.00 968,342.00 

387,659.00 655,614.00 

2,072,976.00 1,808,813.00 

368,642.00 997,867.00 

204,534.00 252,696.00 

147,908.00 290,228.00 

0.00 36,455.00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

995,119.00 268,704.00 

33,000.00 82,750.00 

0,00 0,00 

1,749,203.00 1,928,700.00 

323,773.00 (119,887.00) 

46,000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 0.00 

369,773.00 (119,887.00) 

5,092,607.00 1,027,291.00 

Page 12 

2025-28 Budget 

Total Fund 
col. A +B Unrestricted Restricted 

(C) (D) (E) 

1,680,626.00 1,712,134.00 0.00 

184,857.00 0,00 185,032.00 

973,033.00 3,616.00 945,232.00 

1,043,273.00 384,659.00 426,028.00 

3,881,789.00 2,100,409.00 1,556,292.00 

1,366,509.00 341,041.00 956,740.00 

457,230.00 194,588.00 216,822.00 

438,136.00 164,794.00 343,232.00 

36,455.00 0.00 43,487.00 

0,00 0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,263,823.00 967,888.00 233,771.00 

115,750.00 508,000.00 348,250.00 

0,00 0,00 0,00 

3,677,903.00 2, 176,291.00 2,142,302.00 

203,886.00 (75,882.00) (586,010.00) 

46,000.00 70,000.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 70,000.00 0.00 

249,886.00 (5,882.00) (586,010.00) 

6,119,898.00 5,462,380.00 907,404.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 
col. D + E Column 

(F) C&F 

1,712,134.00 1.9% 

185,032.00 0.1% 

948,848.00 -2.5% 

810,687.00 -22.3% 

3,658,701.00 -5.8% 

1,297,761.00 -5.0% 

411,390.00 -10.0% 

508,026.00 16.0% 

43,487.00 19.3% 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

1,201,659.00 -4.9% 

856,250.00 639.7% 

0,00 0.0% 

4,318,593.00 17.4% 

(661,892.00) -424.6% 

70,000.00 52.2% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

70,000.00 52.2% 

(591,892.00) -336,9% 

6,369,784.00 4.1% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 29 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 • Audtted (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software· SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Function Codes 
Object 
Codes 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

Budge� July 1 
County School Service Fund 
Unrestricted and Restricted 
Expenditures by Function 

2024a25 Estimated Actuals 

Unrestricted Restricted 
(A) (B) 

0.00 0.00 

5,092,607.00 1,027,291.00 

0.00 0.00 

5,092,607.00 1,027,291.00 

5,462,380.00 907,404.00 

600.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 907,840.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

494,474,00 0,00 

4,967,306.00 (436.00) 

Page 13 

2025-28 Budget 

Total Fund 
col. A +B Unrestricted Restricted 

(C) (D) (E) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

6,119,898.00 5,462,380.00 907,404.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

6, 119,898,00 5,462,380.00 907,404.00 

6,369,784.00 5,456,498.00 321,394.00 

600.00 600.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 0,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

907,840,00 0,00 441,949,00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 0,00 

494,474.00 583,010,00 0,00 

4,966,870.00 4,872,888.00 (120,555.00) 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-28) 

Total Fund %Dill 
col. D + E Column 

(F) C&F 

0.00 0.0% 

6,369,784.00 4.1% 

0.00 0.0% 

6,369,784.00 4.1% 

5,777,892.00 -9.3% 

600.00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

441,949.00 -51.3% 

0.00 0.0% 

0.00 0.0% 

0,00 0.0% 

583,010.00 17.9% 

4,752,333.00 -4.3% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 30 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Resource 

6500 

9010 

Total, Restricted Balance 

California Dept of Education 

Description 

Special Education 

Other Restricted Local 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: Fund-A, Version 9 

Budget, July 1 
County School Service Fund 

Exhibit: Restricted Balance Detall 

Page 14 

2024-25 
Estimated Actuals 

173,465.00 

734,375.00 

907,840.00 

46 10462 0000000 
Form01 

GBBGURCYH5(2025-28) 

202S-26 
Budget 

35,434.00 

406,515.00 

441,949.00 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 31 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDlnJRES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS - 89) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other SourcestUses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTI-IER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 -Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

G. ASSETS 

1) Cash 

a) in County Treasury 

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 

b) in Banks 

c) in Revolving Cash Account 

d) 'Ml.h Fiscal Agent!Trustee 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: Fund-B, Version 9 

Budget, July 1 

Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

Resource Codes 

Page 1 

Object Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299, 

7400-7499 

7300-7399 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980-8999 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

9110 

9111 

9120 

9130 

9135 

2024-25 
Estimated Actuals 

0.00 

0.00 

460,903.00 

9,000.00 

469,903.00 

182,493.00 

56,351.00 

93,415.00 

30,232.00 

53,740.00 

68,806.00 

0.00 

20,146.00 

505,183.00 

(35,280.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(35,280.00) 

53,335.00 

0.00 

53,335.00 

0.00 

53,335.00 

18,055.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

18,075.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(20.00) 

3,615.43 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2025-26 
Budget 

0.00 

0.00 

460,903.00 

8,000.00 

468,903.00 

163,429.00 

48,468.00 

97,028.00 

21,162.00 

39,198.00 

4,700.00 

0.00 

17,214.00 

391,199.00 

TT,704.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

77,704.00 

18,055.00 

0.00 

18,055.00 

0.00 

18,055.00 

95,759.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

97,007.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(1,248.00) 

46 1 0462 0000000 

Form11 

GBBGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-11.1% 

-0.2% 

-10.4% 

-14.0% 

3.9% 

-30.0% 

-27.1% 

-93.2% 

0.0% 

-14.6% 

-22.6% 

-320.2% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-320.2% 

-66.1% 

0.0% 

-66.1% 

0.0% 

-66.1% 

430.4% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

436.7% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

6,140.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 32 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Descrlpllon 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 

2) Investments 

3) Accoonts Receivable 

4) Due from Grant or Gov emment 

5) Due from Other Funds 

6) Stores 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 

8) Other Current Assets 

9) Lease Recelv able 

10) TOTAL, ASSETS 

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Pay able 

2) Due to Grant or Governments 

3) Due to Other Funds 

4) Current Loans 

5) Unearned Revenue 

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

K. FUND EQUITY 

(G10 + H2) - (16 • J2) 

LCFF SOURCES 

LCFF Transfers 

LCFF Transfers - Current Year 

LCFF Transfers - Prior Years 

TOTAL, LCFF SOURCES 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

lnteragency Contracts Between LEAs 

Pass-Through Revenues from 

Federal Sources 

Career and Technical Education 

All Other Federal Revenue 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

OTHER STATE REVENUE 

Other State Apportionments 

All Other State Apportionments - Current Year 

All Other State Apportionments - Prior Years 

Pass-Through Revenues from State Sources 

Adult Education Program 

All Other State Revenue 

TOTAL. OTHER STATE REVENUE 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

Sales 

Sale of Equipment/Supplies 

Leases and Rentals 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

Fees and Contracts 

Adult Education Fees 

lnteragency Services 

Other Local Revenue 

All Other Local Revenue 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: Fund-B, Veision 9 

Budget, July 1 

Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

Resource Codes 

3500-3599 

All Other 

6391 

All Other 

Page2 

2024-25 

Object Codes Estimated Actuals 

9140 0.00 

9150 0.00 

9200 0.00 

9290 0.00 

9310 0.00 

9320 0.00 

9330 0.00 

9340 0.00 

9380 0.00 

3,615.43 

9490 0.00 

0.00 

9500 1.45 

9590 0.00 

9610 0.00 

9640 

9650 0.00 

1.45 

9690 0.00 

0.00 

3,613.98 

8091 0.00 

8099 0.00 

0.00 

8285 0.00 

8287 0.00 

8290 0.00 

8290 0.00 

0.00 

8311 0.00 

8319 0.00 

8587 0.00 

8590 301,332.00 

8590 159,571.00 

460,903.00 

8831 0.00 

8850 0.00 

8880 0.00 

8882 0.00 

8871 0.00 

8877 0.00 

8899 9,000.00 

2025-26 

Budget 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

301,332.00 

159,571.00 

460,903.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

8,000.00 

46 1 0462 0000000 

Form11 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-11.1% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 33 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Descrlpllon 

Tuition 

TOTAL, OlHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL, REVENUES 

CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

Certificated Teachers' Salaries 

Certificated Pupil Support Salaries 

Certificated Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Other Certificated Salaries 

TOTAL, CERTIFICATED SALARIES 

CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

Classified Instructional Salaries 

Classified Support Salaries 

Classified Supervisors' and Administrators' Salaries 

Clerical, Technical and Office Salaries 

Other Classified Salaries 

TOTAL, CLASSIFIED SALARIES 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

STRS 

PERS 

OASDIIMedicare/AHemativ e 

Health and Welfare Benefits 

Unemployment Insurance 

Workers' Compensation 

OPEB, Allocated 

OPEB, Active Employees 

Other Employee Benefits 

TOTAL, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

BOOKS AND SUPPLIES 

Approved Textbooks and Core Curricula Materials 

Books and Other Reference Materials 

Materials and Supplies 

Noncapitalized Equipment 

TOTAL, BOOKS ANO SUPPLIES 

SERVICES AND OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

Subagreements for Serv Ices 

Travel and Conferences 

Dues and Memberships 

Insurance 

Operations and Housekeeping Services 

Rentals, Leases, Repairs, and Noncapitalized Improvements 

Transfers of Direct Costs 

Transfers of Direct Costs • lnterfund 

Professional/Consulting Services and Operating Expenditures 

Communications 

TOTAL, SERVICES AND OlHER OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 

Land 

Land Improvements 

Buildings and Improvements of Buildings 

Equipment 

Equipment Replacement 

Lease Assets 

Subscription Assets 

TOTAL, CAPITAL OUTLAY 

OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

Tuition 

Tuition, Excess Costs, and/or Deficit Payments 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: Fund-B, Version 9 

Budget, July 1 

Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

Resource Codes 

Page 3 

Object Codes 

8710 

1100 

1200 

1300 

1900 

2100 

2200 

2300 

2400 

2900 

3101·3102 

3201·3202 

3301·3302 

3401·3402 

3501·3502 

3601·3602 

3701•3702 

3751•3752 

3901·3902 

4100 

4200 

4300 

4400 

5100 

5200 

5300 

540()..5450 

5500 

5600 

5710 

5750 

5800 

5900 

6100 

6170 

6200 

6400 

6500 

6600 

6700 

2024-25 
Estimated Actuals 

0.00 

9,000.00 

469,903.00 

64,522.00 

0.00 

117,971.00 

0.00 

182,493.00 

104.00 

6,304.00 

0.00 

49,943.00 

0.00 

56,351.00 

34,204.00 

15,215.00 

8,393.00 

26,602.00 

123.00 

8,878.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

93,415.00 

0.00 

0.00 

23,412.00 

6,820.00 

30,232.00 

0.00 

7,404.00 

1,600.00 

0.00 

10,000.00 

1,200.00 

0.00 

0.00 

30,388.00 

3,148.00 

53,740.00 

0.00 

0.00 

68,806.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

68,806.00 

2025-26 
Budget 

0.00 

8,000.00 

468,903.00 

43,100.00 

0.00 

120,329.00 

0.00 

163,429.00 

0.00 

15,078.00 

0.00 

33,390.00 

0.00 

48,468.00 

30,475.00 

8,952.00 

7,889.00 

41,895.00 

107.00 

7,710.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

97,028.00 

0.00 

0.00 

18,808.00 

2,354.00 

21,162.00 

0.00 

5,500.00 

1,600.00 

0.00 

8,000.00 

1,200.00 

0.00 

0.00 

19,750.00 

3,148.00 

39,196.00 

0.00 

0.00 

4,700.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

4,700.00 

46 1 0462 0000000 

Form11 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

•11.1% 

-0.2% 

-33.2% 

0.0% 

2.0% 

0.0% 

.10.4% 

.100.0% 

139.2% 

0.0% 

·33.1% 

0.0% 

•14.0% 

•10.9% 

•41.2% 

-6.0% 

57.5% 

·13.0% 

·13.2% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

3.9% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

·19.7% 

-65.5% 

·30.0% 

0.0% 

·25.7% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

.2Q.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-35.0% 

0.0% 

•27.1% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

•93.2% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

•93.2% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 34 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Descrlpllon 

Payments to Districts or Charter Schools 

Payments to County Offices 

Payments to JPAs 

Other Transfers Out 

Transfers of Pass•Through Revenues 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

Debt Service 

Debt Service • Interest 

Other Debt Service. Principal 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

Transfers of Indirect Costs • lnterfund 

TOTAL, OTHER OUTGO· TRANSFERS OF INDIRECT COSTS 

TOTAL, DPENDITIJRES 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers In 

(a) TOTAL, INlERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

To: Stale School Building Fund/County School Facilities Fund 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

(b) TOTAL, INlERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

OTHER SOURCES/USES 

SOURCES 

Long•Tern, Debt Proceeds 

Proceeds from Certificates of Participation 

Proceeds from Leases 

Proceeds from SBITAs 

All Other Financing Sources 

(c) TOTAL, SOURCES 

USES 

All Other Financing Uses 

(di TOTAL, USES 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues 

Contributions from Restricted Revenues 

(e) TOTAL, CONTRIBUTIONS 

TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (a· b + c • d + e) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: Fund-B, Veision 9 

Budget, July 1 

Adult Education Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

Resource Codes 

Page4 

Object Codes 

7141 

7142 

7143 

7211 

7212 

7213 

7438 

7439 

7350 

8919 

7613 

7619 

6971 

6972 

6974 

6979 

7699 

8980 

8990 

2024-25 
Estimated Actuals 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

20,146.00 

20,146.00 

505,183.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2025-26 
Budget 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

17,214.00 

17,214.00 

391,199.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 1 0462 0000000 

Form11 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

•14.6% 

•14.6% 

•22.6% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 35 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Descrlpllon 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999) 

1) Instruction 

2) Instruction - Related Services 

3) Pupil Services 

4) Ancillary Services 

5) Community Services 

6) Enterprise 

7) General Administration 

8) Plant Services 

9) Other Outgo 

10) TOTAL, E»'ENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS· B10) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a)Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTiiER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + 04) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: Fund-B, Version 9 

Budget, July 1 

Adult Education Fund 

Expendlturea by Function 

Function Codes Object Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

1000-1999 

200().2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7000-7999 

800().8999 

9000-9999 
Except 7600-

7699 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

898().8999 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

Page5 

2024-25 
Estimated Actuals 

0.00 

0.00 

460,903.00 

9,000.00 

469,903.00 

144,718.00 

251,583.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

20,146.00 

88,736.00 

0.00 

505,183.00 

(35,280.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(35,280.00) 

53,335.00 

0.00 

53,335.00 

0.00 

53,335.00 

18,055.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

18,075.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(20.00) 

2025-26 
Budget 

0.00 

0.00 

460,903.00 

8,000.00 

468,903.00 

95,999.00 

247,286.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

17,214.00 

30,700.00 

0.00 

391,199.00 

77,704.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

77,704.00 

18,055.00 

0.00 

18,055.00 

0.00 

18,055.00 

95,759.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

97,007.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(1,248.00) 

46 1 0462 0000000 

Form 11 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-11.1% 

-0.2% 

-33.7% 

-1.7% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-14.6% 

-65.4% 

0.0% 

-22.6% 

-320.2% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

-320.2% 

-66.1% 

0.0% 

-66.1% 

0.0% 

-66.1% 

430.4% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

436.7% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

6,140.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 36 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Resource Description 

8010 Other Restricted Local 

Total, Restricted Balance 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Rnancial Reporting Software -SACS V12 

File: Fund-B, Version 9 

Budget, July 1 

Adult Education Fund 

Exhibit: Rutrlcted Balance Datall 

Page6 

21124-2!1 
Estimated 
Actuals 

46 10462 0000000 

Form11 

GBBGURCYH5(2025-26) 

2025-26 

Budget 

18,075.00 97,007.00 

18,075.00 97,007.00 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:23 PM 

                                                                 37 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES 

1) Certificated Salaries 

2) Classified Salaries 

3) Employee Benefits 

4) Books and Supplies 

5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 

6) Capital Outlay 

7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 

9) TOTAL, EXPENDlnJRES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 

FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS - 89) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a) Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other SourcestUses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTI-IER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 -Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

G. ASSETS 

1) Cash 

a) in County Treasury 

1) Fair Value Adjustment to Cash in County Treasury 

b) in Banks 

c) in Revolving Cash Account 

d) 'Ml.h Fiscal Agent!Trustee 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: Fund-B, Version 9 

Budget, July 1 

Forest Reserve Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

Resource Codes 

Page 1 

Object Codes 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

1000-1999 

2000-2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7100-7299, 

7400-7499 

7300-7399 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

8980.8999 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

9110 

9111 

9120 

9130 

9135 

2024-25 
E•tlmated Actuals 

0.00 

146,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

146,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

100,000.00 

0.00 

100,000.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(46,000.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2025-26 
Budget 

0.00 

270,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

270,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

200,000.00 

0.00 

200,000.00 

70,000.00 

0.00 

70,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(70,000.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 1 0462 0000000 

Form 16 

GBBGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

84.9% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

84.9% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

100.0% 

0.0% 

100.0% 

52.2% 

0.0% 

52.2% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

52.2% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:24 PM 

                                                                 38 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Descrlpllon 

e) Collections Awaiting Deposit 

2) Investments 

3) Accoonts Receivable 

4) Due from Grant or Gov emment 

5) Due from Other Funds 

6) Stores 

7) Prepaid Expenditures 

8) Other Current Assets 

9) Lease Recelv able 

10) TOTAL, ASSETS 

H. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Outflows of Resources 

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 

I. LIABILITIES 

1) Accounts Pay able 

2) Due to Grant or Governments 

3) Due to Other Funds 

4) Current Loans 

5) Unearned Revenue 

6) TOTAL, LIABILITIES 

J. DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

1) Deferred Inflows of Resources 

2) TOTAL, DEFERRED INFLOWS 

K. FUND EQUITY 

(G10 + H2) - (16 • J2) 

FEDERAL REVENUE 

Forest Reserve Funds 

Pass-Through Revenues from 

Federal Sources 

TOTAL, FEDERAL REVENUE 

OTHER LOCAL REVENUE 

Other Local Revenue 

Interest 

Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 

TOTAL, OlHER LOCAL REVENUE 

TOTAL, REVENUES 

OTHER OUTGO (excludlng Transfers of Indirect Coats) 

Other Transfers Out 

Transfers of Pass-Through Revenues 

To Districts or Charter Schools 

To County Offices 

To JPAs 

All Other Transfers 

All Other Transfers Out to All Others 

TOTAL, OlHER OUTGO (excluding Transfers of Indirect Costs) 

TOTAL, EJ<PENDITURES 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers In 

(a) TOTAL, INTERFUNO TRANSFERS IN 

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

Other Authorized lnterfund Transfers Out 

(b) TOTAL, INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: Fund-B, Veision 9 

Budget, July 1 

Forest Reserve Fund 

Expenditures by Object 

Resource Codes 

Page2 

Object Codes 

9140 

9150 

9200 

9290 

9310 

9320 

9330 

9340 

9380 

9490 

9500 

9590 

9610 

9640 

9650 

9690 

8260 

8287 

8660 

8662 

7211 

7212 

7213 

7281-7283 

7299 

8919 

7619 

2024-25 
Estimated Actuals 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

100,000.00 

146,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

146,000.00 

100,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

100.000.00 

100,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

46,000.00 

2025-26 
Budget 

70,000.00 

200,000.00 

270,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

270,000.00 

200,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

200,000.00 

200,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

70,000.00 

70,000.00 

46 1 0462 0000000 

Form 16 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Percent 
Difference 

52.2% 

100.0% 

84.9% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

84.9% 

100.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

52.2% 

52.2% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:24 PM 

                                                                 39 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Descrlpllon 

A. REVENUES 

1) LCFF Sources 

2) Federal Revenue 

3) Other State Revenue 

4) Other Local Revenue 

5) TOTAL, REVENUES 

B. EXPENDITURES (Objects 1000-7999) 

1) Instruction 

2) Instruction - Related Services 

3) Pupil Services 

4) Ancillary Services 

5) Community Services 

6) Enterprise 

7) General Administration 

8) Plant Services 

9) Other Outgo 

10) TOTAL, E»'ENDITURES 

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY} OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER 
FINANCING SOURCES AND USES (AS - 810) 

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

1) lnterfund Transfers 

a)Transfers In 

b) Transfers Out 

2) Other Sources/Uses 

a) Sources 

b) Uses 

3) Contributions 

4) TOTAL, OTI-IER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (C + D4) 

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES 

1) Beginning Fund Balance 

a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 

b) Audit Adjustments 

c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 

d) Other Restatements 

e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 

2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 

Components of Ending Fund Balance 

a) Nonspendable 

Revolving Cash 

Stores 

Prepaid Items 

All Others 

b) Restricted 

c) Committed 

Stabilization Arrangements 

Other Commitments (by Resource/Object) 

d) Assigned 

Other Assignments (by Resource/Object) 

e) Unassigned/Unappropriated 

Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: Fund-B, Version 9 

Budget, July 1 

Forest Reserve Fund 

Expendlturn by Function 

Function Codes Object Codn 

8010-8099 

8100-8299 

8300-8599 

8600-8799 

1000-1999 

2000.2999 

3000-3999 

4000-4999 

5000-5999 

6000-6999 

7000-7999 

800().8999 

9000-9999 
Except 7600-

7699 

8900-8929 

7600-7629 

8930-8979 

7630-7699 

898().8999 

9791 

9793 

9795 

9711 

9712 

9713 

9719 

9740 

9750 

9760 

9780 

9789 

9790 

Page 3 

2024-25 
Estimated Actuals 

0.00 

146,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

146,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

100,000.00 

100,000.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(46,000.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

2025-26 
Budget 

0.00 

270,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

270,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

200,000.00 

200,000.00 

70,000.00 

0.00 

70,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(70,000.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 1 0462 0000000 

Form 16 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Percent 
Difference 

0.0% 

84.9% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

84.9% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

100.0% 

100.0% 

52.2% 

0.0% 

52.2% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

52.2% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

0.0% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:24 PM 

                                                                 40 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Resource Description 

Total, Restricted Balance 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Rnancial Reporting Software -SACS V12 

File: Fund-B, Version 9 

Budget, July 1 

Forest Reserve Fund 

Exhibit: Rutrlcted Balance Datall 

Page4 

21124-2!1 
Estimated 
Actuals 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 16 

GBBGURCYH5(2025-26) 

2025-26 
Budget 

0.00 0.00 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:24 PM 

                                                                 41 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

Description 

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

1. County Program Alternative Education Grant ADA 

a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils 

b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps 

c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole, Expelled per EC 

48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4XA)[ 

d. Total, County Program Alternative Education ADA (Sum 
of Lines 81a through 81c) 

2. District Funded County Program ADA 

a. County Community Schools 

b. Special Educatlon-Speclal Day Class 

c. Special Education-NPS/LCI 

d. Special Education Extended Year 

e. Other County Operated Programs: Opportunity Schools and 
Full Day Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary Schools 

f. County School Tuition Fund (Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 
46380) 

g. Total, District Funded County Program ADA (Sum of 
Lines 82a through B2f) 

3. TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA (Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 

4. Adults In Correctional Facilities 

5. County Operations Grant ADA 

6. Charter School ADA (Enter Charter School ADA using Tab 
C. Charter School ADA) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: A, Version 2 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 

2024-25 Estimated Actuals 

P-2ADA Annual ADA 

0.00 0.00 

1.01 1.01 

16.34 16.34 

17.35 17.35 

17.35 17.35 

372.46 372.46 

Page 1 

Estimated P-2 
Funded ADA 

ADA 

0.00 0.00 

1.01 1.01 

16.34 16.34 

17.35 17.35 

17.35 17.35 

372.46 372.46 

46 10462 0000000 
Form A 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

202>26 Budget 

Estimated Estimated 
Annual ADA Funded ADA 

0.00 0.00 

1.01 1.01 

16.34 16.34 

17.35 17.35 

17.35 17.35 

372.46 372.46 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:24 PM 

                                                                 42 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Budget, July 1 

2024-25 Estimated Actuals 

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort 
Expenditures 

Funds 01, 09, and 62 

Section I • Expenditures Goals Functions 

A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE (Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 

C. Less state and local expenditures not allomd for MOE: (All resources, except federal 

as identified in Line B) 

1. Community Services All 5000-5999 

2. Capital Outlay 
All except 7100- All except 5000-

7199 5999 

3. Debt Service All 9100 

4. Other Transl era Out All 9200 

5. lnterfund Transfers Out All 9300 

9100 

6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 

7. Nonagency 7100-7199 
All except 5000-

5999, 9000-9999 

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate costs of services for which 
All All 

tuition is received) 

Objects 

1000-7999 

1000-7999 

1000-7999 

6000-6999 

46 10462 0000000 

Form ESMOE 

GBBGURCYH5(2025-26) 

2024-25 
Expenditures 

3,677,903.00 

409,914.00 

0.00 

except 6600, 

6700, 6910, 

6920 101,191.00 

5400-5450, 

5800, 7430-7439 0.00 

7200-7299 0.00 

7600-7629 0.00 

7699 

7651 0.00 

1000-7999 
334,822.00 

8710 
204,795.00 

9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a Presidentially declared disaster 
Manually entered. Must not include expenditures in lines 

10. Total state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE calculation (Sum lines C1 

through C9) 

D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 

1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services (Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then 

zero) 

2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities 

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE (Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and 

D2) 

Section II • Expenditures Per ADA 

A. Average Daily Attendance (Fom, A, Annual ADA column, sum of lines B1d and C9) 

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A) 

Section Ill • MOE Calculation (For data collec1ion only. Final determination will be 
done by CDE) 

A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures from prior year official COE MOE 

calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not met, CDE has adjusted the prior year 

base to 90 percent of the preceding prior y ear amount rather than the actual prior year 

expenditure amount.) 

1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for LEAs failing 

prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1) 

B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 

C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line 11.B) 

D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C) (If negative, then zero) 

E. MOE determination (If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE 

requirement is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If 

either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is incomplete.) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: ESMOE, Version 13 Page 1 

B, C1-C8, D1, or D2. 

640,808.00 

1000-7143, 

All All 
7300-7439 

minus 8000-

8699 0.00 

Manually entered. Must not include expenditures in lines 

A or D1. 

2,627,181.00 

2024-25 Annual 
ADA/Exps. Per 

ADA 

0.00 

0.00 

Total Per ADA 

2,135,096.72 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

2,135,096.72 0.00 

1,921,587.05 0.00 

2,627,181.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

MOE Met 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:27 PM 

                                                                 43 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Budget, July 1 

2024-25 Estimated Actuals 

Every Student Succeeds Act Maintenance of Effort 
Expenditures 

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero (Line D divided by Line B) 

(Funding under ESSA covered programs in FY 2026-27 may be reduced by the lower of 

the tv.o percentages) 

SECTION IV. Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section Ill, Line A.1) 

Description of Adjustments 

Total adjustments to base expenditures 

Califomia Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V12 

File: ESMOE, Version 13 Page 2 

Total Expenditures 

46 10462 0000000 

Form ESMOE 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

0.00% 0.00% 

Expenditures 
Per ADA 

0.00 0.00 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:27 PM 

                                                                 44 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

A. AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR 

1. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 

2. State Lottery Revenue 

3. Other Local Revenue 

4. Transfers from Funds of Lapsed/Reorganized Districts 

5. Proceeds from SBITAs 

6. Contributions from Unrestricted Resources (Total must be 

zero) 

7. Total Available (Sum Lines A1 through A6) 

B. EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

1. Certificated Salaries 

2. Classified Salaries 

3. Employee Benefrts 

4. Books and Supplies 

5. a. Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Resource 

1100) 

b. Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Resource 

6300) 

c. Duplicating Costs for Instructional Materials (Resource 

6300) 

6. Capital Outlay 

7. Tuition 

8. lnteragency Transfers Out 

a. To Other Districts, County Offices, and Charter Schools 

b. To JPAs and All Others 

9. Transfers of Indirect Costs 

10. Debt Service 

11. All Other Financing Uses 

12. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Sum Lines 

B1 through B11 ) 

C. ENDING BALANCE (Must equal Line A7 minus Line 

B12) 

D. COMMENTS: 

Amount recorded is for purchased instructional materials. 

Budget, July 1 

2024-25 Estimated Actuals 

LOTTERY REPORT 

Revenues, Expenditures and 

Ending Balances• All Funds 

Lottery: 
Object Codes Unrestricted 

(Resource 1100) 

9791-9795 0.00 

8560 3,346.00 

8600-8799 0.00 

8965 0.00 

8974 0.00 

8980 0.00 

3,346.00 

1000-1999 0.00 

2000-2999 0.00 

3000-3999 0.00 

4000-4999 3,346.00 

5000-5999 0.00 

5000-5999, except 

5100, 5710, 5800 

5100, 5710, 5800 

6000-6999 0.00 

7100-7199 0.00 

7211, 7212, 7221, 

7222, 7281, 7282 0.00 

7213, 7223, 7283, 

7299 0.00 

7300-7399 0.00 

7400-7499 0.00 

7630-7699 0.00 

3,346.00 

9792 0.00 

Transferred to 
Other 

Resources for 
Expenditure 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Data from this report will be used to prepare a report to the Legislature as required by Control Section 24.60 of the Budget Act. 

46 10462 0000000 

Form L 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Lottery: 

Instructional 
Totals 

Materials 
(Resource 6300)" 

7,953.00 7,953.00 

1,436.00 4,782.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0,00 0,00 

0,00 

9,389.00 12,735.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

9,825.00 13,171.00 

0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

9,825.00 
13,171.00 

(436.00) (436.00) 

"Pursuant to Government Code Section 8880.4(a)(2)(B) and the definition in Education Code Section 60010(h), Resource 6300 funds are to be used for the purchase of 

instructional materials only. Any amounts in the shaded cells of this column should be reviewed for appropriateness. 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: LOTTERY, Version 4 Page 1 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:29 PM 

                                                                 45 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

01 COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

08 STUDENT ACTIVITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

09 CHARTER SCHOOLS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

10 SPECIAL EDUCATION PASS-THROUGH FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

11 ADULT EDUCATION FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

12 CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

13 CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

14 DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

15 PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

16 FOREST RESERVE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

17 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR OTHER THAN CAPITAL 

OUTLAY 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

California Dept of E ducation 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V 12 

File: SIAA, Version 2 

Budget, July 1 

2024-25 Estimated Actuals 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 

FOR ALL FUNDS 

Direct Costs - Indirect Costs 

lnterfund lnterfund 

Transfers Transfers Transfers Transfers 
In Out In Out 

5750 5750 7350 7350 

0.00 0.00 0.00 (20, 146.00) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 20,146.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Page 1 

lnterfund 

Transfers 
In 

6900-8929 

46,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form SIAA 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Due Due 

lnterfund From To 

Transfers other other 

Out Funds Funds 

7600-7629 9310 9610 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:30 PM 

                                                                 46 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Fund Reconciliation 

18 SCHOOL BUS EMISSIONS REDUCTION FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

19 FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

20 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT 

BENEFITS 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

2 1  BUILDING FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

25 CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

30 STATE SCHOOL BUILDING LEASE/PURCHASE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

35 COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

40 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY 

PROJECTS 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

53 TAX OVERRIDE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

56 DEBT SERVICE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

57 FOUNDATION PERMANENT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Califomia Dept of E ducation 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: SIAA, Version 2 

Budget, July 1 

2024-25 Estimated Actuals 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 

FOR ALL FUNDS 

Direct Costs - Indirect Costs -

lnterfund lnterfund 

Transfers Transfers Transfers Transfers 

In Out In Out 

5750 5750 7350 7350 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page2 

lnterfund 

Transfers 

In 

8900-8929 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

-

46 10462 0000000 

FormSIAA 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Due Due 

lnterfund From To 

Transfers Other Other 

Out Funds Funds 

7600-7629 9310 9610 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:30 PM 

                                                                 47 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

61 CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

62 CHARTER SCHOOLS ENTERPRISE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

63 OTHER ENTERPRISE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

66 WAREHOUSE REVOLVING FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

67 SELF-INSURANCE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

71 RETIREE BENEFIT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

73 FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

76 WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

95 STUDENT BODY FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

TOTALS 

Califomia Dept of E ducation 

SACS Financial Reporting Software- SACS V 12 

File: SIAA, Version 2 

Budget, July 1 

2024-25 Estimated Actuals 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 

FOR ALL FUNDS 

Direct Costs - Indirect Costs -
lnterfund lnterfund 

Transfers Transfers Transfers Transfers 
In Out In Out 

5750 5750 7350 7350 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 20,146.00 (20,146.00) 

Page 3 

lnterfund 

Transfers 
In 

8900-8929 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form SIAA 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Due Due 

lnterfund From To 

Transfers Other Other 

Out Funds Funds 
7600-7629 9310 9610 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

46,000.00 0.00 0.00 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:30 PM 

                                                                 48 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

01 COUNTY SCHOOL SERVICE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

08 STUDENT ACTIVITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

09 CHARTER SCHOOLS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

10 SPECIAL EDUCATION PASS.THROUGH FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

11 ADULT EDUCATION FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

12 CHILD DEVELOPMENT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

13 CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

14 DEFERRED MAINTENANCE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

15 PUPIL TRANSPORTATION EQUIPMENT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Delail 

Fund Reconciliation 

16 FOREST RESERVE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

17 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR OTHER THAN CAPITAL 

OUlLAY 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

California Dept of E ducation 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: SIAB, Version 1 

Budget, July 1 

2025•26 Budget Budget, July 1 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 

FOR ALL FUNDS 

Direct Indirect 
Costs• 

Transfers 
Costs-

lnterfund 
Out 5750 

lnterfund 
Transfers Transfers 
In 5750 In 7350 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 17,214.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

--

Page 1 

lnterfund 
Transfers Transfers 
Out 7350 In 8900· 

8929 

(17,214.00) 

70,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

, ___

46 10462 0000000 

Form SIAB 

G8 BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

lnterfund 
Due Due 

Transfers 
From To 

Out 7600· 
Other Other 

7629 
Funds Funds 

9310 9610 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

70,000.00 

0.00 

- ,_ 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:30 PM 

                                                                 49 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

18 SCHOOL BUS EMISSIONS REDUCTION FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

19 FOUNDATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

20 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR POSTEMPLOYMENT 

BENEFITS 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

21 BUILDING FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

25 CAPITAL FACILITIES FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

30 STATE SCHOOL BUILDING LEASE/PURCHASE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

35 COUNTY SCHOOL FACILITIES FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

40 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY 

PROJECTS 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

53 TAX OVERRIDE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

56 DEBT SERVICE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

57 FOUNDATION PERMANENT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: SIAB, Version 1 

Budget, July 1 

2025-26 Budget Budget, July 1 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 

FOR ALL FUNDS 

Direct Indirect 

Costs-
Transfers 

Costs• 

lnterfund 
Out 5750 

lnterfund 

Transfers Transfers 

In 5750 In 7350 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Page 2 

lnterfund 

Transfers Transfers 

Out 7350 In 8900-

8929 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form SIAB 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

lnterfund 
Due Due 

Transfers 
From To 

Out 7600-
Other Other 

7629 
Funds Funds 

9310 9610 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

-

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:30 PM 

                                                                 50 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Description 

61 CAFETERIA ENTERPRISE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

62 CHARTER SCHOOLS ENTERPRISE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

63 OTHER ENTERPRISE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

66 WAREHOUSE REVOLVING FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

67 SELF-INSURANCE FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

71 RETIREE BENEFIT FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

73 FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

76 WARRANT/PASS-THROUGH FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

95 STUDENT BODY FUND 

Expenditure Detail 

Other Sources/Uses Detail 

Fund Reconciliation 

TOTALS 

California Dept of E ducation 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: SIAB, Version 1 

Budget, July 1 

2025-26 Budget Budget, July 1 

SUMMARY OF INTERFUND ACTIVITIES 

FOR ALL FUNDS 

Direct Indirect 
Costs-

Transfers 
Costs• 

lnterfund 
Out 5750 

lnterfund 
Transfers Transfers 
In 5750 In 7350 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 17,214.00 

P age 3 

lnterfund 
Transfers Transfers 
Out 7350 In 8900-

8929 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(17,214.00) 70,000.00 

46 10462 0000000 

Form SIAB 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

lnterfund 
Due Due 

Transfers 
From To 

Out 7600-
Other Other 

7629 
Funds Funds 
9310 9610 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

70,000.00 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:30 PM 

                                                                 51 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

Provide methodology and assumptions used to estimate ADA, enrollment, revenues, expenditures, reserves and fund balance, and multiyear commitments (including cost-of-living 
adjustments). 

Deviations from the standards must be explained and may affect the approval of the budget. 

CRITERIA AND STANDARDS 

1. CRITERION: Average Dally Attendance 

A. STANDARD: Projected County Operations Grant average daily attendance (ADA) has not been overestimated in 1) the first prior fiscal year OR in 2) tv.o or more of 
the previous three fiscal years by more than the follO'Ning percentage levels: 

Percentage Lev el 

3.0% 

2.0% 

1.0% 

County Office ADA (Form A, Estimated Funded ADA column, Line B5): 

I
372 

County Office County Operations Grant ADA Standard Percentage Laval: �'""

-

-_-_-_-_-_-3�._0-0�%������� 

1A·1. Calculating the County Office's County Operations Grant ADA Variances 

County Operations Grant ADA 

Oto 6,999 

7,000 to 59,999 

60,000 and over 

DATA ENTRY: Enter the County Operations Grant Funded ADA in the Original Budget column for all fiscal years. All other data are extracted or calculated. 

Fiscal Year 

Third Prior Year (2022-23) 

Second Prior Year (2023-24) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

County Operations Grant Funded ADA 

Original Budget Estimated/Unaudited 
Actuals 

(Form A, Line B5) 

364,87 

372.01 

372.46 372.46 

1A·2. Comparison of County Office County Operations Grant ADA to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

ADA Variance Lev el (If 
Budget is greater 

than Actuals, else NIA) 

100.00% 

100.00% 

N/A 

Status 

Not Mel 

Not Met 

Met 

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected County Operations Grant ADA has not been overestimated by more than the standard percentage level for the first prior year. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

1b. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected County Operations Grant ADA was estimated above the standard for tv.o or more of the previous three years. Provide reasons for 
the overestimate, a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting ADA, and what changes will be made to improve the accuracy of projections in this 
area. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT mel) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 

SACS system error not pulling in 2022-23 and 2023-24 Estimated Actuals data. 

Page 1 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 52 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 
County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

1. CRITERION: Average Daily Attendance (continued) 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

B. STANDARD: Projected funded ADA for county operated programs for any of the budget year or tv.o subsequent fiscal years has not increased from the historical 
average from the three prior fiscal years by more than two percent (2%) each year. 

1Ba1. Calculating the County Office's Historical Average Projected ADA for County Operated Programs 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. 

Average Daily Attendance (Form A, Estimated Actuals, Funded ADA) 

Fiscal Year 

Third Prior Year (2022-23) 

Second Prior Year (2023-24) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Historical Average: 

County Office's County Operated Programs ADA Standard: 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

(historical average plus 2%): 

1st Subsequent Year (2026.27) 

(historical average plus 4%): 

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

(historical average plus 6%): 

County and Charter School 
Alternative Education Grant ADA 

(Form A, Lines B1d and C2d) 

,01 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1Ba2. Calculating the County Office's Projected ADA for County Operated Programs 

District Funded County 
Program ADA (Form A, 

Line B2g) 

14.39 

14.11 

17.35 

15.28 

15.59 

15.89 

16.20 

County Operations Grant 
ADA (Form A, Line B5) 

372.46 

124.15 

126.64 

129.12 

131.60 

Charter School ADA 
and Charter School 

Funded County 
Program ADA (Form 
A, Lines C1 and C3f) 

0,00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

o.oo 

DATA ENTRY: Budget year data IMII be extracted from Form A. Enter the remaining data in each of the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If Form MVP exists, County Operations Grant 
ADA will be extracted for the two subsequent fiscal years. 

Average Daily Attendance (Form A, Estimated Funded ADA) 

Fiscal Year 

Budgel Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

Status: 

County and Charter School 
Altemativ e Education Grant ADA 

(Form A, Lines B1d and C2d) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Met 

1Ba3. Comparison of County Office Projected County Operated Programs ADA to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

District Funded County 
Program ADA (Form A, 

Line B2g) 

17.35 

17.35 

17.35 

Not Mel 

County Operations Grant 
ADA (Form A, Line B5) 

372.46 

372.46 

372.46 

Not Met 

Charter School ADA 
and Charter School 

Funded County 
Program ADA (Form 
A, Lines C1 and C3f) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Mel 

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected ADA for county operated programs is above the standard for one or more of the budget or two subsequent fiscal years. Provide 
reasons why the projection(s) exceed the standard, a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting ADA. and what changes, if any, IMII be made to 
bring the projected ADA IMthin the standard. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

I
SACS system error. 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page2 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 53 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

2. CRITERION: LCFF Revenue 

STANDARD: Projected local control funding formula (LCFF) revenue for any of the budget year or tv.o subsequent fiscal years has not changed from the prior fiscal 

year by more than the change in population, plus the county office's cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) plus or minus one percent. 

For excess property tax counties, projected LCFF revenue has not changed from the prior fiscal year by more than the percent change in property tax revenues plus 

or minus one percent. 

2A. County Office's LCFF Revenue Standard 

Indicate which standard applies: 

LCFF Revenue 

Excess Property Tax/Minimum State Aid 

The County office must select which LCFF revenue standard applies. 

LCFF Revenue Standard selected: LCFF Revenue 

2A-1. Calculating the County Office's LCFF Revenue Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Section I, enter applicable data for all fiscal years. Section I-a is completed by a county office funded at Target, and Section 1-b Is completed by a county office funded 

at Hold Harmless. Per AB 181, Chapter 52, Statutes of 2022, hold harmless COEs include a COLA add-on. Section l-b1, enter the projected County Operations Grant for all fiscal years 

and Section l-b2, enter the projected Alternative Education Grant for all fiscal years to calculate the add-on COLA amount. Section II, enter data in Step 2b1 for all fiscal years. Section Ill, 

all data are extracted or calculated. Section IV, enter data In Step 1a for the two subsequent fiscal years, Step 2b1 f or all fiscal years, and Step 2b3 for current year only. All other data 

are extracted or calculated. 

NOTE: Enter data in Section I, Line c1 and Section IV only if the county office has charter school funded county program ADA corresponding to financial data reported in Fund 01. 

Regardless of the standard selected, criterion 2A-1 must be completed to obtain the total change in population and funding level. 

Projected LCFF Revenue 

Select County Office's LCFF revenue funding status: 

I. LCFF Funding 

a. COE funded at Target LCFF 

a1. County Operations Grant 

a2. Alternative Education Grant 

At Target 

Hold Harmless 

Status: 

b. COE funded at Hold Harmless LCFF 

b1. County Operations Grant (informational only) 

b2. Alternative Education Grant (informational only) 

c. Charter Funded County Program 

c1. 

d. 

LCFF Entitlement 

Total LCFF (Sum of a or b, and c} 

II. County Operations Grant 

Step 1 - Change in Population 

At Target 

Prior Year 

(2024-25) 

1,276,477.00 

0.00 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

1,680,385.00 

2,956,862.00 

a. ADA (Funded) (Form A, line B5 and Criterion 

18-2) I 372.46 

b. Prior Year ADA (Funded) 

c. Difference (Step 1a minus Step 1b (At Target) or 

d. Percent Change Due to Population (Step 1c div id 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 

0 (Hold Harmless)) 

ed by Step 1 b) 

Page 3 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

1,305,836.00 

0.00 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

1,712,134.00 

3,017,970.00 

372.46 

372.46 

0.00 

0.00% 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

1,345,271.00 

0.00 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

1,754,779.00 

3,100,050.00 

372.46 

372.46 

0.00 

0.00% 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

1,391,280.00 

0.00 

NIA 

NIA 

NIA 

1,804,533.00 

3,195,813.00 

372.46 

372.46 

0.00 

0.00% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 54 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 
County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Step 2 - Change in Funding Lev el 

a. Prior Year LCFF Funding (Section l-a1 At Target or Section l-b1 Hold Harmless), prior 
year column 

b1. COLA percentage 

b2. COLA amount (proxy for purposes of this criterion) 

c. Total Change (Step 2b2) 

d. Percent Change Due to Funding Level (Step 2c divided by Step 2a) 

Step 3 - Weighted Change in Population and Funding Level 

a. Percent change in population and funding level (Step 1d plus Step 2d) 

b. LCFF Percent allocation (Section l-a1 divided by Section 1-d (At Target) or Section 1-b 
divided by Section 1-d (Hold Harmless)) 

c. Weighted Percent change (Step 3a x Step 3b) 

Ill. Alternative Education Grant 

Step 1 - Change in Population Prior Year (2024-25) 

a. ADA (Funded) (Form A, lines B1d, C2d, and 
Criterion 1 B-2) I 

b. Prior Year ADA (Funded) 

c. Difference (Step 1a minus Step 1b) 

d. Percent Change Due to Population (Step 1c div id 

Step 2 - Change in Funding Lev el 

ed by Step 1 b) 

0.00 

a. Prior Year LCFF Funding (Section 1-a2 At Target or Section 1-b2 Hold Harmless), prior 
year column 

b1. COLA percentage (Section II-Step 2b1) 

b2. COLA amount (proxy for purposes of this criterion) 

c. Total Change (Step 2b2) 

d. Percent Change Due to Funding Level (Step 2c divided by Step 2a) 

Step 3 - Weighted Change in Population and Funding Level 

a. Percent change in population and funding level (Step 1d plus Step 2d) 

b. 
LCFF Percent allocation (Section l-a2 divided by Section 1-d (At Target) or Section 1-b 
divided by Section 1-d (Hold Harmless)) 

c. Weighted Percent change (Step 3a x Step 3b) 

IV. Charter Funded County Program 

Step 1 - Change in Population Prior Year (2024-25) 

a. ADA (Funded) (Fonn A, line C3f) I 
b. Prior Year ADA (Funded) 

c. Difference (Step 1a minus Step 1b) 

d. Percent Change Due to Population (Step 1c div id 

Step 2 - Change in Funding Lev el 

ed by Step 1b) 

a. Prior Year LCFF Funding (Section l-c1, prior year column) 

b1. COLA percentage 

b2. COLA amount (proxy for purposes of this criterion) 

c. Percent Change Due to Funding Level (Step 2c divided by Step 2a) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page4 

0.00 

1,276,477.00 

2.3% 

29,358.97 

29,358.97 

2.30% 

2.30% 

43.27% 

1.00% 

Budgel Year (2025-26) 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00% 

0.00 

2.30% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

0 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00% 

1,680,385.00 

0.00% 

0,00 

0.00% 

1,305,836.00 

3.2% 

41,786.75 

41,786.75 

3.20% 

3.20% 

43.40% 

1.39% 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2026-27) 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00% 

0.00 

3.20% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2026-27) 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00% 

1,712,134.00 

0.00% 

0,00 

0.00% 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

1,345,271.00 

3.4% 

46,008.27 

46,008.27 

3.42% 

3.42% 

43.53% 

1.49% 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2027-28) 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00% 

0.00 

3.42% 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2027-28) 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0.00% 

1,754,779.00 

0,00 

0.00% 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 55 of 81



2025-26 B udget, July 1 
County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Step 3 - Weighted Change in Population and Funding Level 

a. Percent change in population and funding level (Step 1d plus Step 2c) 

b. LCFF Percent allocation (Section l-c1 divided by Section I-d) 

c. Weighted Percent change (Step 3a x Step 3b) 

V. Weighted Change 

a. Total weighted percent change (Step 3c in sections II, Ill and IV) 

0.00% 

56.73% 

0.00% 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1.00% 

0.00% 

56.60% 

0.00% 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2026-27) 

1.39% 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

0.00% 

56.47% 

0.00% 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2027-28) 

1.49% 

LCFF Revenue Standard (line V.a, plus/minus 1%): LI __ o_o/o_, _to_2_ .o_ o_ % __ _._ __ o _.3_9_%_ t_o _2 _.3_9_% _ __, __ o_.4_9%_ t_o_2_.49_% _ _. 

2B. Alternate LCFF Revenue Standard a Excess Property Tax I Minimum State Aid 

DATA ENTRY: If applicable to your county office, input data in the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years for projected local property taxes; all other data are extracted or calculated. 

Exce&& Property Tax or Minimum State Aid County Office Projected LCFF Revenue 

Prior Year (2024-25) 

Projected local property taxes (Form 01, Objects 8021 - 8089) I 77.420.00 

imum State Aid Standard Excess Property Tax/Min 

(Percent change over previo us year, plus/minus 1%): 

2C. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change In LCFF Revenue 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

77,420.00 

N/A 

DATA ENTRY: Enter data in the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years for LCFF Revenue; all other data are extracted or calculated. 

1. LCFF Revenue (Fund 01, Objecls 8011, 8012, 8020-8089) 

County Office's Projected 

20. Comparison of County Office LCFF Revenue to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

I 

Prior Year (2024-25) 

1,680.385.00 

Change in LCFF Revenue: 

Standard: 

Status: 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1,712,134.00 

1.89% 

0% to 2.00% 

Met 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2026-27) 

77,420.00 

N/A 

1st Subsequent Year 
(2026-27) 

1.754,779.00 

2.49% 

0.39% to 2.39% 

Not Met 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2027-28) 

77,420.00 

N/A 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2027-28) 

1.804,533.00 

2.84% 

0.49% to 2.49% 

Not Met 

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected change in LCFF revenue is outside the standard in one or more of the budget or too subsequent fiscal years. Provide reasons why 
the projection(s) exceed the standard(s) and a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting LCFF revenue. 

Explanation 

(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 

COL.A is greater than the standard amounts. 

Page5 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 56 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

3. CRITERION: Salaries and Benefits 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

STANDARD: Projected total salaries and benefits for any of the budget year or tlM.'.) subsequent fiscal years has not changed from the prior fiscal year amount by 

more than the change in funded COLA plus or minus five percent. 

3A. Calculating the County Office's Salaries and Benefits Standard Percentages 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. 

Budget Year (2025-26) 
1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

1. County Office's Change in Funding Level (Criterion 2C): 1.89% 2.49% 2.84% 
>---------+----------<--------! 

2. County Office's Salaries and Benefits Standard (Line 1, plus/minus 5%): -3.11% to 6.89% -2.51% to 7.49% -2.16% to 7.84% 
'----------'---------'-------_, 

3B. Calculating the County Office's Projected Change In Salaries and Benefits 

DATA ENTRY: If Fom, MYP exists, Salaries and Benefits for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years will be extracted; if not, enter data for the t'NO subsequent years. All other data are 

extracted or calculated. 

Fiscal Year 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

3C. Comparison of County Office Change in Salaries and Benefits to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Salaries and Benefits 

(Fom, 01, Objects 1000- Percent Change Over 

3999) (Form MYP, Lines Previous Year 

B1-B3) 

2,329,583.00 

2,214,238.00 (4.95%) 

2,268,230.00 2.44% 

2,325,087.00 2.51% 

Status 

Not Met 

Met 

Met 

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected ratio(s) of salary and benefit costs to total expenditures are outside the standard in one or more of the budget or too subsequent 

fiscal years. Provide reasons why the projection(s) exceed the standard, a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting salaries and benefits, and 

what changes, if any, vvill be made to bring the projected salary and benefit costs IMthin the standard. 

Explanation: 

(required ff NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 

Prior year settlement included a one-time off-schedule payment. 

Page6 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 57 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

4. CRITERION: Other Revenues and Expenditures 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

STANDARD: Projected operating revenues (including federal, other state, and other local) or expenditures (including books and supplies, and services and other 

operating), for any of the budget year or tv.o subsequent fiscal years, have not changed from the prior fiscal year amount by more than the change in funded COLA 

plus or minus ten percent. 

For each major object category, changes that exceed the percentage change in the funded COLA plus or minus five percent must be explained. 

4A. Calculating the County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Ranges 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. 

1. County Office's Change in Funding Level (Criterion 2C): 

2. County Office•• Other Revenues and Expenditures Standard Percentage Range (Line 1, 
plus/minus 10%): 

3. County Office's Other Revenues and Expenditures Explanation Percentage Range (line 1, plus/minus 

5%): 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1.89% 

-8.11% to 11.89% 

-3.11% to 6.89% 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2.49% 

-7.51% to 12.49% 

-2.51 % to 7.49% 

4B. Calculating the County Office's Change by Major Object Category and Comparison to the Explanation Percentage Range (Section 4A, Line 3) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

2.84% 

-7.16% to 12.84% 

-2.16% to 7.84% 

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYP exists, the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Year data for each revenue and expenditure section will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years. All 

other data are extracted or calculated. 

Explanations must be entered for each category if the percent change for any year exceeds the county office's explanation percentage range. 

Object Range / Fiscal Year 

Federal Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8100-8299) (Form MVP, Line A2) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

2nd Subsequenl Year (2027-28) 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes) 

Other State Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8300-8599) (Form MVP, Line A3) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes) 

Other Local Revenue (Fund 01, Objects 8600-8799) (Form MVP, Line A4) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes) 

Local mental health grants are declining/ending. 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page? 

Amount 

184,857.00 

185,032.00 

185,032.00 

185,032.00 

973,033.00 

948,848.00 

948,848.00 

948,848.00 

1,043,273.00 

810,687.00 

899,759.00 

899,75g.oo 

Percent Change Over 

Previous Year 

0.09% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

-2.49% 

0.00% 

0.00% 

-22.29% 

10.99% 

0.00% 

Change Is Outside 

Explanation Range 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Yes 

Yes 

No 

Printed: 6/17/2025 g,31 PM 

                                                                 58 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Books and Supplies (Fund 01, Objects 4000-4999) (Form MVP, Line B4) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

2nd Subsequenl Year (2027-28) 

(required if Yes) 

208, 175,00 

192,516.00 

145,000.00 

135,000.00 

-7.52% 

-24.68% 

-6.90% 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Explanation: 

I
Declining/ending grants. 

�--------------------------------------� 

Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Fund 01, Objects 5000-5999) (Form MVP, Line B5) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes) I
Declining/ending grants. 

4C. Calculating the County Office's Change In Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures {Section 4A, Line 2) 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. 

1,059, 100,00 

1,139,054.00 

850,000.00 

820,000.00 

Object Range / Fiscal Year Amount 

Total Federal, Other State, and Other Local Revenue (Section 4B) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year {2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

Total Books and Supplies, and Services and Other Operating Expenditures (Section 4B) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

2,201,163.00 

1,944,567.00 

2,033,639.00 

2,033,639.00 

1,267,275.00 

1,331,570.00 

995,000.00 

955,000.00 

40. Comparison of County Office Total Operating Revenues and Expenditures to the Standard Percentage Range 

DATA ENTRY: Explanations are linked from Section 4B if the status in Section 4C is not met; no entry is allo\Yed below. 

7.55% 

-25.38% 

-3.53% 

Percent Change 

Over Previous Year 

-11.66% 

4.58% 

0.00% 

5.07% 

-25.28% 

-4.02% 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Status 

Not Met 

Met 

Met 

Met 

Not Met 

Met 

1a. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating revenues have changed by more than the standard in one or more of the budget or t\liO subsequent fiscal years. 

Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and v.tiat changes, if any, will be made to bring the projected 

operating revenues within the standard must be entered in Section 4B above and will also display in the explanation box below. 

California Dept of Education 

Explanation: 

Federal Revenue 

(linked from 4B 

ij NOT met) 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page8 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 59 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

Explanation: 

Other State Revenue 

Oinked from 4B 

if NOT met) 

Explanation: 

Other Local Revenue 

(linked from 4B 

if NOT met) 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Local mental health grants are declining/ending. 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

1b. STANDARD NOT MET - Projected total operating expenditures changed by more than the standard in one or more of the budget or t'NO subsequent fiscal years. 
Reasons for the projected change, descriptions of the methods and assumptions used in the projections, and what changes, if any, \Nill be made to bring the projected 
operating expenditures within the standard must be entered in Section 4B above and 'MIi also display in explanation box below. 

Explanation: 

Books and Supplies 

(linked from 48 

if NOT met) 

Explanation: 

Seiv ices and Other Exps 

Oinked from 4B 

if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page9 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 60 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

5. CRITERION: Facilities Maintenance 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

STANDARD: Confirm that the annual contribution for facilities maintenance funding is not less than the amount required pursuant to Education Code Section 17070.75, 
if applicable, and that the county office is providing adequately to preserve the functionality of its facilities for their normal life in accordance 'Mth Education Code 
seclions 52066(d)(1) and 17002(d)(1). 

Determining the County Office's Compliance with the Contribution Requirement for EC Section 17070.75 - Ongoing and Major Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account 
(OMMA/RMA) 

NOTE: EC Section 17070. 75 requires the county office to deposit into the account a minimum amount equal to or greater than three percent of the total unrestricted general 
fund expenditures and other financing uses for that fiscal year. 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. If standard is not met, enter an X in the appropriate box and enter an explanation, if applicable. 

Ongoing and Major Maintenance/Restricted Maintenance Account 

Budgeted Unrestricted 
Expenditures and Other 

Financing Uses (Form 01, 
Resources 0000-1999, 

Objects 1000-7999) 

2. 176,291.00 1 

3% Required Minimum 
Contribution 

(Unrestricted Budget 
times 3%) 

65,288.731 

If standard is not met, enter an X in the box that best describes 'Mly the minimum required contribution was not made: 

Budgeted Contribution 1 
to the Ongoing and Major 

Maintenance Account 

o.oo 1 

Status 

Not Met 

1 Fund 01, Resource 8150, Objects 8900-8999 

...,_ __ 
x 
__ 

---<] Not applicable (county office does not participate in the Leroy F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998) 

I Other (explanation must be provided} 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met 

and Other is marked) 

California Dept of Education 
SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 
File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 10 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 61 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund 
46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 
G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

6. CRITERION: Deficit Spending 

STANDARD: Unrestricted deficit spending (total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses is greater than total unrestricted revenues and other financing sources), as a 

percentage of total unrestricted expenditures and other financing uses, has not exceeded one-third of the county office's available reserves' as a percentage of total expenditures and 

other financing uses2, in tv.o out of three prior fiscal years. 

6A. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. 

1. County Office's Available Reserve Amounts (resources 0000-1999) 

a. Stabilization Arrangements (Funds 01 and 17, Object 9750) 

b. Reserve for Economic Uncertainties (Funds 01 and 17, Object 9789) 

c. Unassigned/Unappropriated (Funds 01 and 17, Object 9790) 

d. Negative County School Service Fund Ending Balances in Restricted 

Resources (Fund 01, Object 9792, if negative, foreach of resources 2000-

9999) 

e. Available Reserves (Lines 1a through 1d) 

2. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

a. County Office's Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Fund 01, 

objects 1000-7999) 

b. Plus: Special Education Pass-through Funds (Fund 10, resources 3300-

3499, 6500-6540 and 6546, objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223) 

c. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Line 2a plus Line 2b) 

3. County Office's Available Reserve Percentage (Line 1e divided by Line 2c) 

Third Prior Year (2022-23) 

0.00 

325,000.00 

5,734,625.89 

0.00 

6,059,625.89 

2,401,178.35 

0.00 

2,401,178.35 

252.40% 

84.10% 

Second Prior Year (2023-24) First Prior Year (2024-25) 

0.00 0.00 

372,000.00 494,474.00 

4,550,943.85 4,967,306.00 

0.00 (436.00) 

4,922,943.85 5,461,344.00 

2,755,069.04 3,677,903.00 

0.00 0.00 

2,755,069.04 3,677,903.00 

178.70% 148.50% 

59.60% 49.50% 

County Office's Deficit Spending Standard Percentage Levels (Line 31 times1/3J: 
'-----------�----------�----------� 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 

1 Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reservefor 

Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County School Service Fund 

and the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reserves will be 

reduced by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the County School Service Fund. 

2 A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit (AU) of a Special Education Local Plan 

Area(SELPA) may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members. 

Page 11 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 62 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

6B. Calculating the County Office's Deficit Spending Percentage& 

DATA ENTRY: All data are extracted or calculated. 

Fiscal Year 

Third Prior Year (2022-23) 

Second Prior Year (2023-24) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budget Year (2025-26) (Information only} 

6C. Comparison of County Office Deficit Spending to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Net Change in 

Unrestricted Fund 

Balance (Form 01, 

Section E) 

1,329,253.25 

390,806.64 

369,773.00 

(5,882.00) 

Total Unrestricted 

Expenditures and Other 

Financing Uses (Form 

01, Objects 1000-7999) 

1,194,183.79 

1,663,877.52 

1,749,203.00 

2,176,291.00 

Deficit Spending Lev el 

(If Net Change in 

Unrestricted Fund 

Balance is negative, else 

N/A) 

N/A 

N/A 

N/A 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

Status 

Met 

Met 

Mel 

1a. STANDARD MET - Unrestricted deficit spending, if any, has not exceeded the standard percentage level in hw or more of the three prior years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 12 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 63 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

7. CRITERION: Fund and Cash Balances 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

A. STANDARD: Budgeted beginning unrestricted county school service fund balance has not been overestimated for t\Ml out of three prior fiscal years by more than the 
following percentage levels: 

County Office's Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Criterion 8A1), plus SELPA 
Pass-through 

(Criterion 7A2b) if Criterion 7A, Line 1 is No: 

County Office's Fund Balance Standard Percentage Level: 

Percentage Lev el 

1.7% 

1.3% 

1.0% 

0.7% 

County Office Total Expenditures 

0 

$7,736,000 

$19,344,000 

$87,045,001 

and Other Financing Uses 2 

to $7,735.999 

to $19,343,999 

to $87,045,000 

and over 
1 Percentage levels equate to a rate of deficit spending 'Mlich would eliminate 
recommended reserves for economic uncertainties over a three year period. 
2 A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit of a Special 
Education Local Plan Area may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of 
funds to its participating members. 

4,318,593.00 
1-----------1 

1.70% 

7A•1. Calculating the County Office's Special Education Pass.through Exclusions (only for county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA) 

DATA ENTRY: For SELPA AUs, if Form MYP exists, all data will be extracted including the Yes/No button selection. If not, click the appropriate Yes or No button for item 1 and, if Yes, 
enter data for item 2a and for the hYo subsequent years in item 2b; Budget Year data are extracted. 

For county offices that serve as the AU of a SELPA (Form MYP, Lines F1a, F1b1, and F1b2): 

1. 
Do you choose to exclude pass-through funds distributed to SELPA members from the calculations for fund balance and 
reserves? 

2. If you are the SELPA AU and are excluding special education pass-through funds: 

a. Enter the name(s) of the SELPA(s): 

Budget Year (2025-26) 1st Subsequent Year (2026-
27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 
(2027-28) 

b. Special Education Pass.through Funds (Fund 10, resources 3300-3499, 6500-6540 I I and 6546, objects 7211-7213 and 7221-7223): 
L. _______ o _

.
o_o_,_ _________ _,_ ______ __. 

7A•2. Calculating the County Office's Unrestricted County School Service Fund Beginning Balance Percentages 

DATA ENTRY: Enter data in the Original Budget column for the First, Second, and Third Prior Years; all other data are extracted or calculated. 

Fiscal Year 

Third Prior Year (2022-23) 

Second Prior Year (2023-24) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budget Year (2025-26) (Information only) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 

Unrestricted County School Service Fund Beginning 
Balance (Form 01, Line F1e, Unrestricted Column) 

Original Budget 

3,592,074.00 

5,155,435.00 

6,937,605.00 

5,462,380.00 

Estimated/Unaudited 
Actuals 

4,793,766.64 

4,701,600.56 

5,092,607.00 

Beginning Fund Balance 
Variance Lev el 

(If overestimated, else NIA) 

N/A 

8.8% 

26.6% 

Status 

Met 

Not Met 

Not Met 

, Adjusted beginning balance, including audit adjustments and other restatements 
(objects 9791-9795) 

Page 13 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 64 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

7A.J. Comparison of County Office Unrestricted Beginning Fund Balance to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

1a. STANDARD NOT MET- Unrestricted county school service fund beginning balance was estimated above the standard for hvo or more of the previous three years. 

Provide reasons for the overestimate, a description of the methods and assumptions used in projecting the beginning unrestricted fund balance, and what changes, if 

any, will be made to improve the accuracy of projecting the unrestricted beginning fund balance. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

There ""8re accounting issues in books in the previous years. 

B. Cash Balance Standard: Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year. 

7B-1. Determining if the County Office's Ending Cash Balance is Positive 

DATA ENTRY: If Form CASH exists, data �II be extracted; if not, data must be entered below. 

Fiscal Year 

Current Year (2025-26) 

Ending Cash Balance 

County School Service Fund 

(Form CASH, Line F, June Column) 

5,485,350.92 

7B-2. Comparison of the County Office's Ending Cash Balance to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

Status 

Met 

1a. STANDARD MET- Projected county school service fund cash balance will be positive at the end of the current fiscal year. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 14 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 65 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

8. CRITERION: Reserves 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

STANDARD: Available reseives1 for any of the budget year or tv.o subsequent fiscal years are not less than the following percentages or amounts as applied to total expenditures and 
other financing uses2

: 

(Criterion 7A2b) if Criterion 7A, Line 1 is No: 

Percentage Lev eP 

5% or $88,000 (greater of) 

4% or $387,000 (greater of) 

3% or $774,000 (greater of) 

2% or $2,611,000 (grealer of) 

County Office Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 3 

0 

$7,736,000 

$19,344,000 

$87,045,001 

lo $7,735,999 

to $19,343,999 

lo $87,045,000 

and over 
1Available reserves are the unrestricted amounts in the Stabilization Arrangements, Reseive for 
Economic Uncertainties, and Unassigned/Unappropriated accounts in the County School Seiv ice Fund 
and the Special Reseive Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects. Available reseives will be reduced 
by any negative ending balances in restricted resources in the County School Seivice Fund. 

2 A county office of education that is the Administrative Unit of a Special Education Local Plan Area 
may exclude from its expenditures the distribution of funds to its participating members. 

3 Dollar amounts to be adjusted annually by the prior year statutory cost-of-living adjustment, as 
referenced in Education Code Section 2574, rounded to the nearest thousand. 

Budgel Year (2025-26) 

4,318,593.00 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

3,296,016.00 3,309,873.00 

County Office's Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (Criterion 8A1), 

I plus SELPA Pass-through 

'-------------'-----------'------------' 

County Office's Reserve Standard Percentage Level: .... [ _____ 5._0 _0% ____ __. _____ s_. _o o_% ____ _. _____ 5 _.o_ o _% ____ _, 

SA. Calculating the County Office's Reserve Standard 

DATA ENTRY: If Form MYP exists. 1st and 2nd Subsequent Year data for line 1 will be extracted; if not, enter data for the two subsequent years. All other data are extracted or 
calculated. 

1. Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

(Fund 01, objecls 1000-7999) (Fonn MYP, Line B11) 

2. Plus: Special Education Pass-through 

(Criterion 7A, Line 2b if Criterion 7A, Line 1 is No) 

3. Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 

(Line A 1 plus Line A2) 

4. Reserve Standard Percentage Level 

5. Reserve Standard - by Percent 

(Line A3 times Line A4) 

6. Reserve Standard - by Amount 

(From percentage level chart above) 

7. County Office's Reserve Standard 

(Greater of Line AS or Line A 6) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 

Budgel Year (2025-26) 

4,318,593.00 

0.00 

4,318,593.00 

5.00% 

215,929.65 

88,000.00 

215,929.65 

Page 15 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

3,296,016.00 3,309,873.00 

3,296,016.00 3,309,873.00 

5.00% 5.00% 

164,800.80 165,493.65 

88,000.00 88,000.00 

164,800.80 165,493.65 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 66 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

8B. Calculating the County Office's Budgeted Reserve Amount 

DATA ENTRY: If Fom, MYP exists, 1st and 2nd Subsequent Year data for lines 1 through 7 will be extracted; if not, enter data for the t'M'.> subsequent years. 

All other data are extracted or calculated. 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

Reserve Amounts (Unrestricted resources 0000-1999 except lines 4, 8, and 9): Budget Year (2025-26) 1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

1. County School Service Fund - Stabilization Arrangements 

(Fund 01, Object 9750) (Form MVP, Line E1a) 

2. County School Service Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

(Fund 01, Object 9789) (Form MVP, Line E1b) 

3. County School Service Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

(Fund 01, Object 9790) (Form MVP, Line E1c) 

4. County School Service Fund - Negative Ending Balances in Restricted 

Resources (Fund 01, Object 9792, if negative, for each 

of resources 2000-9999) (Fom, MYP, Line E1d) 

5. Special Reserve Fund - Stabilization Arrangements 

(Fund 17, Object 9750) (Form MVP, Line E2a) 

6. Special Reserve Fund - Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 

(Fund 17, Object 9789) (Form MVP, Line E2b) 

7. Special Reserve Fund - Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 

(Fund 17, Object 9790) (Form MVP, Line E2c) 

8. County Office's Budgeted Reserve Amount 

(Lines 81 thru 87) 

9. County Office's Budgeted Reserve Percentage (Information only) 

(Line 8 divided by Section 8A, Line 3) 

County Office's Reserve Standard 

(Section 8A, Lino 7): 

Status: 

SC. Comparison of County Office Reserve Amount to the Standard 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if the standard is not met. 

0.00 

583,010.00 

4,872,888.00 

(120,555.00) 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

5,335,343.00 

123.54% 

215,929.65 

Mel 

1a. STANDARD MET - Projected available reserves have met the standard for the budget and tVvO subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 16 

444,962.00 446,833.00 

5,647,440.00 6,273,947.00 

0.00 0.00 

6,092,402.00 6,720,780.00 

184.84% 203.05% 

164,800.80 165,493.65 

Met Met 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 67 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items S1 through S4. Enter an explanation for each Yes ans'Ner. 

S1. Contingent Liabilities 

1a. 
Does your county office have any kn0Vv11 or contingent liabilities (e.g., financial or program 

audits, litigation, 

state compliance revieY-15) that may impact the budget? 

1b. If Yes, identify the liabilities and how they may impact the budget: 

S2. Use of One-time Revenues for Ongoing Expenditures 

1a. 
Does your county office have ongoing county school service fund expenditures in the 

budget in excess of 

one percent of the total county school service fund expenditures that are funded with one

time resources? 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

1b. If Yes, identify the expenditures and explain how the one-time resources 'MIi be replaced to continue funding the ongoing expenditures in the following fiscal years: 

S3. Use of Ongoing Revenues for One•time Expenditures 

1a. 
Does your county office have large non-recurring county school service fund expenditures 

that are funded 

with ongoing county school service fund revenues? 

1b. If Yes, identify the expenditures: 

S4. Contingent Revenues 

1 a. 
Does your county office have projected revenues for the budget year or either of the tv.o 

subsequent fiscal 

years contingent on reauthorization by the local government, special legislation, or other 

definitive act 

(e.g., parcel taxes, forest reserves)? 

1b. If Yes, identify any of these revenues that are dedicated for ongoing expenses and explain how the revenues will be replaced or expenditures reduced: 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 17 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 68 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

S5. Contributions 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

Identify projected contributions from unrestricted resources in the county school service fund to restricted resources in the county school service fund for the budget year 

and t'Ml subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if contributions have changed from prior fiscal year amounts by more than $20,000 and more than ten percent. 

Explanation should include whether contributions are ongoing or one-time in nature. 

Identify projected transfers to or from the county school service fund to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund for the budget 

year and t\W subsequent fiscal years. Provide an explanation if transfers have changed from prior fiscal year amounts by more than $20,000 and more than ten percent. 

Explanation should include whether transfers are ongoing or one-time in nature. 

Estimate the impact of any capital projects on the county school service fund operational budget. 

County Office's Contributions and Transfers Standard: 
-10.0% to +10.0% or -$20, 000 

to +$20, 000 

SSA. Identification of the County Office•s Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects that may Impact the County School Service Fund 

DATA ENTRY: For Contributions, enter data in the Projection column for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Contributions for the First Prior Year and Budget Year data will be extracted. 

For Transfers In and Transfers Out, the First Prior Year and Budget Year data will be extracted. If Form MYP exists, the data will be extracted for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. If 

Fann MYP does not exist, enter data for the 1st and 2nd Subsequent Years. Click the appropriate button for 1d. All other data are extracted or calculated. 

Description I Fiscal Year Projection Amount of Change 

1a. Contributions, Unrestricted County School Service Fund {Fund 01, Resources 0000-1999, Object 8980) 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budgel Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

1b. Transfers In, County School Service Fund .. 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budgel Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

1c. Transfers Out, County School Service Fund .. 

First Prior Year (2024-25) 

Budget Year (2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year (2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year (2027-28) 

1d. Impact of Capital Projects 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

46,000.00 

70,000.00 

70,000.00 

70,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0,00 

Do you have any capital projects that may impact the county school service fund operational budget? 

* Include transfers used to cover operating deficits in either the county school service fund or any other fund. 

S5B. Status of the County Office's Projected Contributions, Transfers, and Capital Projects 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Not Met for items 1a-1c or if Yes for item 1d. 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

24,000.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0,00 

0,00 

1a. MET - Projected contributions have not changed by more than the standard for the budget and t\W subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 18 

Percent Change Status 

0.0% Mel 

0.0% Mel 

0.0% Mel 

52.2% Not Met 

0.0% Mel 

0.0% Mel 

0.0% Mel 

0.0% Mel 

0.0% Mel 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 69 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

1b. NOT MET - The projected transfers in to the county school service fund have changed by more than the standard for one or more of the budget or subsequent hvo fiscal 
years. Identify the amount(s) transferred, by fund, and whether transfers are ongoing or one-time in nature. If ongoing, explain the county office's plan, with timelines, for 
reducing or eliminating the transfers. 

Explanation: 

l

�i-n -cr-ea_ s_e - in-fo-re_s _t _re-se_ rv_e -re-v-en_ u _e _. 
-------------------------------

(required if NOT met) 

. 

1c. MET- Projected transfers out have not changed by more than the standard for the budget and two subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if NOT met) 

1d. YES - Capital projects exist that may impact the county school service fund operational budget. Identify each project, including a description of the project, estimated 
completion date, original project budget, original source of funding, and estimated fiscal impact on the county school service fund. 

Project Information: 

(required if YES) 

California Dept of Education 

A new COE administration double portable building is being placed in Loyalton. Estimated completion is Aug 2025, a $475,000 original 
project budget funded from unrestricted funds. 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 19 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 70 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

56. Long-term Commitments 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

Identify all existing and new multiyear commitments1 and their annual required payment for the budget year and tv,.o subsequent fiscal years. Explain how any increase 

in annual payments 'Nill be funded. 

Also, explain how any decrease to funding sources used to pay lonirterm commitments 'MIi be replaced. ' Include multiyear commitments, multiyear debt agreements, 

and new programs or contracts that result in long-term obligations. 

S6A. Identification of the County Office•• Long-term Commitments 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in item 1 and enter data in all columns of item 2 for applicable long-tenn commitments; there are no extractions in this section. 

1. Does your county office have lonirterm (multiyear) commitments? 

(If No, skip item 2 and sections S6B and S6C) Yes 

2. If Yes to item 1, list all new and existing multiyear commitments and required annual debt service amounts. Do not include lonirterm commitments for 
postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB); OPEB is disclosed in Criterion S7A. 

Type of Commitment 

Leases 

Certificates of Participation 

General Obligation Bonds 

Supp Ear1y Retirement Program 

State School Building Loans 

Compensated Absences 

Other Lonirterm Commitments (do not include OPEB): 

TOTAL: 

# of Years 

Remaining 

Ongoing 

SACS Fund and Object Codes Used For: 

Funding Sources (Revenues) Debt Service (Expenditures) 

General Fund - Unrestricted 

Principal Balance 

as of July 1, 2025 

0 

Prior Year 

(2024-25) 

Annual Payment 

(P&I) 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

Annual Payment 

(P&I) 

1st Subsequent Year 2nd Subsequent Year 

Type of Commitment (continued) 

Leases 

Certificates of Participation 

General Obligation Bonds 

Supp Ear1y Retirement Program 

State School Building Loans 

Compensated Absences 

Other Lonirterm Commitments (continued): 

Total Annual 

Payments: 0 

Has total annual payment Increased over prior year (2024-25)? 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 20 

0 

No 

(2026-27) (2027-28) 

Annual Payment Annual Payment 

(P& I) (P& I) 

0 

No No 

0 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 71 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

S6B. Comparison of County Office's Annual Payments to Prior Year Annual Payment 

DATA ENTRY: Enter an explanation if Yes. 

1a. NO-Annual payments for long-term commitments have not increased in one or more of the budget and tv.o subsequent fiscal years. 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes to increase 

in total annual payments) 

S6C. Identification of Decreases to Funding Sources Used to Pay Long-term Commitments 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in item 1; if Yes, an explanation is required in item 2. 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH5(2025-26) 

1. Will funding sources used to pay long-term commitments decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, or are they one-time sources? 

No 

2. NO - Funding sources will not decrease or expire prior to the end of the commitment period, and on�time funds are not being used for long-term commitment annual 

payments. 

California Dept of Education 

Explanation: 

(required if Yes) 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 21 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 72 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

S7. Unfunded Liabilities 

Estimate the unfunded liability for postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) based on an actuarial valuation, if required, or other method; identify or 

estimate the actuarially determined contribution (if available); and indicate how the obligation is funded (pay-as-you�o. amortized over a specific period, etc.). 

Estimate the unfunded liability for self-insurance programs such as workers' compensation based on an actuarial valuation, if required, or other method; identify or 

estimate the required contribution; and, indicate how the obligation is funded (level of risk retained, funding approach, etc.). 

S7A. Identification of the County Office's Estimated Unfunded Liability for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB) 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in item 1 and enter data in all other applicable items; there are no extractions in this section except the budget year data on line Sb. 

Does your county office provide postemployment benefits other 

than pensions (OPEB)? (If No, skip items 2-5) 

2. For the county office's OPEB: 

a. Are they lifetime benefits? 

b. Do benefits continue past age 65? 

Yes 

No 

No 

c. Describe any other characteristics of the county office's OPEB program including eligibility criteria and amounts, if any, that retirees are required to contribute 

toward their own benefits: 

a. Are OPEB financed on a pay-as-you-go, actuarial cost, or other method? 

b. Indicate any accumulated amounts earmarked for OPEB in a self-insurance or 

government fund 

4. OPEB Liabilities 

a. Total OPEB liability 

b. OPEB plan(s) fiduciary net position (if applicable) 

c. Total/Net OPEB liability (Line 4a minus Line 4b) 

d. Is total OPEB liability based on the county office's estimate 

or an actuarial valuation? 

e. If based on an actuarial valuation, indicate the measurement date of the OPEB valuation. 

5. OPEB Contributions 

a. OPEB actuarially determined contribution (ADC), if available, per 

actuarial valuation or Alternative Measurement 

Melhod 

b. OPEB amount contributed (for this purpose, include premiums paid to a 

self-insurance fund) (funds 01-70, objects 3701-3752) 

c. Cost of OPEB benefits (equivalent of ·pay-as-you-go· amount) 

d. Number of retirees receiving OPEB benefits 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 22 

Pay-as-you-go 

Self-Insurance Fund Government Fund 

72,251.00 

0,00 

72,251.00 

0 0 

Jun 30, 2022 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

7,411.00 

0,00 

21,115.00 

1.00 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

7,411.00 

0,00 

21,115.00 

1.00 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

7,411.00 

0,00 

21,115.00 

1.00 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 73 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 
Sierra County 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

S7B. Identification of the County Office•a Unfunded Liability for Self.Insurance Programs 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in item 1 and enter data in all other applicable items; there are no extractions in this section. 

No 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

Does your county office operate any self-insurance programs such as workers' 

I 

"compensation, employee health and welfare, or property and liability? (Do not include OPES, which 
is covered in Section 7A) (If No, skip items 2-4t 

,._ ______ __, 

Describe each self-insurance program operated by the county office, including details for each such as level of risk retained, funding approach, basis for the valuation 
(county office's estimate or actuarial valuation), and date of the valuation: 

3. Self-Insurance Liabilities 

a. Accrued liability for self-insurance programs 

b. Unfunded liability for self-insurance programs 

4. Self-Insurance Contributions 

a. Required contribution (funding) for self-insurance programs 

b. Amount contributed (funded) for self-insurance programs 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 23 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 74 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

S8. Status of Labor Agreements 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 
County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 
Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

Analyze the status of all employee labor agreements. Identify new labor agreements, as \Yell as new commitments provided as part of previously ratified multiyear 
agreements; and include all contracts, including all administrator contracts (and including all compensation). For new agreements, indicate the date of the required board 
meeting. Compare the increase in new commitments to the projected increase in ongoing revenues, and explain how these commitments will be funded in future fiscal 
years. 

If salary and benefit negotiations are not finalized at budget adoption, upon settlement with certificated or classified staff: 

The county office of education must determine the cost of the settlement, including salaries, benefits, and any other agreements that change costs, and provide the 
California Department of Education (COE) with an analysis of the cost of the settlement and its impact on the operating budget. 

The CDE shall review the analysis relative to the criteria and standards, and may provide written comments to the president of the governing board and the county 
superintendent of schools. 

S8A. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Certificated (Non-management) Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Enter all applicable data items; there are no extractions in this section. 

Prior Year (2nd Interim) 

(2024-25) 

Number of certificated (non-management) full - time -
equiv alent(FTE) positions 

Certificated (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations 

1. Are salary and benefit negotiations settled for the budget year? 

7.81 1 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have not 
been filed with the COE, complete questions 2-4. 

7.81 I 

Yes 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

7.81 I 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

7.81 I 

If No, identify the unsettled negotiations including any prior year unsettled negotiations and then complete questions 5 and 6. 

Negotiations Settled 

2. Per Government Code Section 3547.S(a), date of public 

disclosure board meeting: 

3. Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date: �1------� 
4. Salary settlement: 

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the budget and multiy ear 

projections (MY Ps )? 

One Year Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 

% change in salary schedule from prior year 

or 

Multiyear Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 

% change in salary schedule from prior year (may enter 
text, such as ·Reopener") 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments: 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 24 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 75 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Negotiations Not Settled 

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 

Certificated (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits 

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the budget and MYPs? 

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer 

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 

Certificated (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements 

Are any new costs from prior year settlements included in the budget? 

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the budget and MYPs 

If Yes, explain the nature of the new costs: 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

I 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

I 

.------------------------------------------� 

Certificated (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments 

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the budget and MYPs? 

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 

Certificated (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) 

1. 

2. 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

Are savings from attrition included in the budget and MYPs? 

I 
Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired employees included 

in the budget and MYPs? 
'------------L---------'------------' 

Certificated (Non-management) - Other 

List other significant contract changes and the cost impact of each change (i.e., class size, hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.): 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 25 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 76 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

SSB. Coat Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Clasaified (Non-management) Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Enter all applicable data items; there are no extractions in this section. 

Prior Year (2nd Interim) 

(2024-25) 

Number of classified (non-management) FTE positions 

Classified (Non-management) Salary and Benefit Negotiations 

1. Are salary and benefit negotiations settled for the budget year? 

14 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

14 

Yes 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

14 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

14 

If Yes, and the corresponding public disclosure documents have not been filed with the COE, complete questions 2-4. 

If No, identify the unsettled negotiations including any prior year unsettled negotiations and then complete questions 5 and 6. 

Negotiations Settled 

2. Per Government Code Section 3547.5(a), date of public disclosure board meeting: 

3. 

4. 

Period covered by the agreement: Begin Date: 

Salary settlement: 

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the budget and multiyear 

projections (MYPs)? 

One Year Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 

% change in salary schedule from prior year 

or 

Multiyear Agreement 

Total cost of salary settlement 

% change in salary schedule from prior year (may enter 

text, such as "Reopener·) 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

Identify the source of funding that will be used to support multiyear salary commitments: 

Negotiations Not Settled 

5. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 

6. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 

Classified (Non-management) Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits 

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the budget and MYPs? 

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer 

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 26 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 77 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

Claasified (Non-management) Prior Year Settlements 

Are any new costs from prior year settlements included in the budget? 

If Yes, amount of new costs included in the budget and MYPs 

If Yes. explain the nature of the new costs: 

Classified (Non-management) Step and Column Adjustments 

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the budget and MYPs? 

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 

Classified (Non-management) Attrition (layoffs and retirements) 

1. Are savings from attrition included in the budget and MYPs? 

2. Are additional H&W benefits for those laid-off or retired employees 

included in the budget and MYPs? 

Classified (Non-management) • Other 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

List other significant contract changes and the cost impact of each change (i.e., hours of employment, leave of absence, bonuses, etc.): 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 27 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

I 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

I 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 78 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

SSC. Cost Analysis of County Office's Labor Agreements - Management/Supervisor/Confidential Employees 

DATA ENTRY: Enter all applicable data items; there are no extractions in this section. 

Prior Year (2nd Interim) 

(2024-25) 

Number of management, supeiv isor, and confidential FTE 

positions 

Management/Supervisor/Confidential 

Salary and Benefit Negotiations 

1. Are salary and benefit negotiations settled for the budget year? 

If Yes, complete question 2. 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

N/A 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

If No, identify the unsettled negotiations including any prior year unsettled negotiations and then complete questions 3 and 4. 

If n/a, skip the remainder of Section SBC. 

Negotiations Settled 

2. Salary settlement: 

Is the cost of salary settlement included in the budget and multiyear 

projeclions (MYPs)? 

Total cost of salary settlement 

% change in salary schedule from prior year (may enter 

text, such as "Reopener") 

Negotiations Not Settled 

3. Cost of a one percent increase in salary and statutory benefits 

4. Amount included for any tentative salary schedule increases 

Management/Supervlsor/Confldentlal 

Health and Welfare (H&W) Benefits 

1. Are costs of H&W benefit changes included in the budget and MYPs? 

2. Total cost of H&W benefits 

3. Percent of H&W cost paid by employer 

4. Percent projected change in H&W cost over prior year 

Management/Supervisor/Confidential 

Step and Column Adjustments 

1. Are step & column adjustments included in the budget and MYPs? 

2. Cost of step & column adjustments 

3. Percent change in step & column over prior year 

Management/Supervisor/Confidential 

Other Benefits {mileage, bonuses, etc.) 

1. Are costs of other benefits included in the budget and MYPs? 

2. Total cost of other benefits 

3. Percent change in cost of other benefits over prior year 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 28 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

Budget Year 

(2025-26) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

1st Subsequent Year 

(2026-27) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

2nd Subsequent Year 

(2027-28) 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 79 of 81



2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

S9. Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 

Confinn that the county office of education's governing board has adopted an LCAP or an update to the LCAP effective for the budget year. 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button in item 1, and enter the date in item 2. 

1. Did or will the county office of education's governing board adopt an LCAP or an update to the LCAP effective for the budget year? 

2. Adoption date of the LCAP or an update to the LCAP. 

S10. LCAP Expenditures 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

Yes 

Jun 24, 2025 

Confinn that the county office of education's budget includes the expenditures necessary to implement the LCAP or annual update to the LCAP. 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button. 

Does the county office of education's budget include the expenditures necessary to implement the LCAP or annual update to the LCAP as 

described in the Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update T emplate? 

California Dept of Education 

Yes 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 29 Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 80 of 81



Sierra County Office of Education 

Sierra County 

ADDITIONAL FISCAL INDICATORS 

2025-26 Budget, July 1 

County School Service Fund 

County Office of Education Criteria and Standards Review 

46 10462 0000000 

Form 01CS 

G8BGURCYH!;i2025-26) 

The following fiscal indicators are designed to provide additional data for reviewing agencies. A "Yes• answer to any single indicator does not necessarily suggest a cause for concern, but 

may alert the reviewing agency to the need for additional review. DATA ENlRY: Click the appropriate Yes or No button for items A1 through A8 except item A3, which is automatically 

completed based on data in Criterion 1. 

A1. 

A2. 

A3. 

A4. 

Do cash flow projections show that the county office will end the budget year with a negative cash balance in the 

county school service fund? 

Is the system of personnel position control independent from the payroll system? 

Is the County Operations Grant ADA decreasing in both the prior fiscal year and budget year? (Data from 

Criterion 1, Sections 1B-1 and 18-2, County Operations Grant ADA column, are used to detennine Yes or No) 

Are new charter schools operating in county off ice boundaries that impact the county off ice's ADA, either in the 

prior fiscal year or budget year? 

Has the county office entered into a bargaining agreement where any of the budget or subsequent years of the 

AS. agreement would result in salary increases that are expected to exceed the projected state funded cost-of-living 

adjustment? 

A&. Does the county office provide uncapped (100% employer paid) health benefits for current or retired employees? 

A7. Does the county office have any reports that indicate fiscal distress? 

(If Yes, provide copies to COE) 

A8. 
Have there been personnel changes in the superintendent or chief business official positions within the last 12 

months? 

When providing comments for additional fiscal indicators, please include the item number applicable to each comment. 

Comments: 

(optional) 

End of County Office Budget Criteria and Standards Review 

California Dept of Education 

SACS Financial Reporting Software-SACS V12 

File: CS_County, Version 8 Page 30 

1-7 
c=J 

No 

No 

No 

No 

No 

Yes 

Printed: 6/17/2025 9:31 PM 

                                                                 81 of 81



Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Adopted Budget 

2025/26 
 
 
 
 

 
June 24, 2025 

Sean Snider/Superintendent 
 

 

Prepared & Presented by: Randy Jones, DBS/CBO 



SPJUSD Adopted Budget Narrative 2025-2026 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 
2025-2026 Adopted Budget 

Presented June 24, 2025 

 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District (SPJUSD) is required by law to adopt a budget each year by June 30th of the 

preceding year. The budget encompasses the General Fund of the district, and is also accompanied by a cash- 

flow projection and a multi-year projection covering the 2025/26 budget and two subsequent years. 

 

The following narrative provides the major assumption used in the preparation of the District’s 2025-2026 

June Adopted Budget. Keep in mind that a budget and multi-year projection are just that-projections, not 

forecasts. Projections are expected to change as various factors change, they are not predictions. 

Projections are the mathematical result of today’s decisions based on a given set of assumptions. Forecasts, 

on the other hand, are predictions of the future; there is a higher implied reliability factor than for 

projections. Projections will change anytime the underlying factors change. 

 

 
Student Attendance/Enrollment 

 

Attendance: 
2019/20 

P2 
2020/21 

P2 
2021/22 

P2 
2022/23 

P2 
2023/24 

P2 
2024/25 

P2 
2025/26 

Projected 

Downieville Elementary 29.86 29.86 24.19 27.43 24.19 27.43 27.43 

Downieville Jr. High 6.65 6.65 5.43 1.87 5.43 1.87 1.87 

Downieville Sr. High 20.53 20.53 12.61 9.99 12.61 9.99 9.99 

Loyalton Elementary 186.47 186.47 169.32 163.04 169.32 163.04 163.04 
Loyalton Middle (LHS 7-8) 56.98 56.98 58.83 55.20 58.83 55.20 55.20 

Loyalton High 108.32 108.32 93.67 89.08 93.67 89.08 89.08 
Sierra Pass – Continuation 0.49 0.49 6.05 4.59 6.05 4.59 4.59 

District Total 409.30 409.30 370.1 351.2 357.9 378.46 378.46 
 20.43 20.43 14.96 13.67 14.11 17.35 17.35 

Enrollment: CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS CBEDS 

District Total 432 395 394 400 403 414 416 

 

GENERAL FUND 

 

LCFF, $6,868,242 , 74%

Federal, $371,318 , 4%

Other State, $1,220,317 , 13%

Other Local, $803,430 , 9% Transfer In, $- , 0%

Total Resources 2025-26 Adopted Budget



SPJUSD Adopted Budget Narrative 2025-2026 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
Revenue Comparison Chart 

 

 

 

Description 2021-2022 
Actuals 

2022-2023 
Actuals 

2023-2024 
Actuals 

2024-2025 

Estimated 

Actuals 

2025-2026 

Adopted 

Budget 

LCFF $6,515,753 $5,049,959 $6,947,190 $6,559,377 $6,868,242 

Federal 651,202 713,218 1,248.463 380,725 380,318 

Other State 849,329 1,928,133 989,394 1,980,308 1,220,317 

Local 182,674 627,938 649,275 349,827 803,430 

Transfer in 0 0 0 0 0 

Other Sources 0 0 0 0 0 

Total $8,198,958 $8,319,248 $9,834,322 $9,270,237 $9,263,307 

 
 

Revenue Changes 
 

• Decrease in "Other State" is a result of one-time grants (Golden State Pathway grant in the amount of 

$433,491 and Middle College Early College grant in the amount of $225,000) being received in 2024-

2025, so they are not recorded as revenue again in 2025-2026. 

• Increase in "Local" revenue for 2025–2026 is due to additional Mental Health Student Services Act 

(MHSSA) funding, to help cover the Wellness Center building.  

 

 
General Fund Expenditures and Financing Uses: 

 
Expenditures: 

 

Description 2021-2022 

Actuals 

2022-2023 

Actuals 

2023-2024 

Actuals 

2024-2025 

Estimated 

Actuals 

2025-2026 

Adopted 

Budget 

Certificated 2,160,863 2,480,098 2,918,211 2,763,049 3,201,124 

Classified 796,917 889,219 958,512 905,177 1,101,067 

Benefits 1,628,729 1,971,679 1,959,552 1,895,352 2,204,878 
Books & Supplies 396,366 542,466 416,686 567,041 872,919 
Services & 
Operating 

1,441,129 1,815,305 2.037,124 2,060,253 2,023,740 

Capital Outlay 87,056 106,593 334,544 705,493 900,308 

Other Outgo 71,977 106,554 111,430 299,857 268,288 

Transfer-Out 73,435 791,958 308,858 2,070,411 86,232 

Total $6,656,472 $8,703,872 $9,044,917 11,262,633 10,658,556 

 



SPJUSD Adopted Budget Narrative 2025-2026 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 
Expenditure Changes 
 

• The increase in Certificated Salaries is due to the addition of temporary grant-funded positions from the 

Golden State Pathways Grant ($250,000), the North State Together [Sierra Strong] Grant ($76,439), and 

the Middle College Early College Grant ($60,000), as well as the remaining 2% salary increase from recent 

negotiations. 

• The increase in the Books and Supplies budget is primarily due to one-time expenses funded by several 

grants, including $157,221 from the Golden State Pathway Grant, $105,000 from the Art, Music, and 

Instructional Materials Discretionary Block Grant, $70,689 from the North State Together [Sierra Strong] 

Grant, and $21,192 from the Middle College Early College Grant. 

• The increase in Capital Outlay is due to one-time expenditures supported by the North State Together 

Grant and MHSSA Grant, totaling $477,638. 

 
  

                       

Certificate 
Salaries, 

$3,201,124 , 30%

Classified 
Salaries, 

$1,101,067 , 10%

Employee Benefits, $2,204,878 , 21%

Books and Supplies, 
$872,919 , 8%

Services and 
Other 

Operating 
Expenditures, 
$2,023,740 , 

19%

Capital Outlay, $900,308 , 8%

Other Outgo, $268,288 , 3%
Transfers Out, $86,232 , 1%

Total Expenditures and Other 
Financing Uses $10,658,556



SPJUSD Adopted Budget Narrative 2025-2026 

Page 5 of 6 
 

 

 
 

 
Education Protection Account (EPA) 2025-26 Spending Plan 

 

Estimated Beginning Balance                 $           962 

Estimated EPA Revenue $    393,003 

EPA Expenditures:  

    Certificated Salaries and Benefits               $    110,436 

    Books and Supplies $        1,100 

    Capital Outlay $    196,197  

    Transfers Out $      86,232 

Balance $             -0- 

 
 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance and Ending Fund Balance 

 

Fiscal Year Net Increase 

(Decrease) in Fund 
Balance 

Ending Fund 

Balance 

2020-21 Actuals 381,605 3,774,343 

2021-22 Actuals 1,583,886 5,358,229 

2022-23 Actuals 381,605 3,774,343 

2023-24 Actuals 1,583,886 5,358,228 

2024-25 Estimated Actuals (1,996,396) 3,708,722 

2025-26 Adopted Budget (1,395,249) 2,112,479 

2026-27 Projected 201,195 2,313,674 

2027-28 Projected 340,364 2,654,038 

The primary cause of the fund balance decrease in 2024–2025 is the $2,000,000 transfer to Fund 40 and the purchase 

of two new buses. In 2025–2026, the decrease is mainly due to planned spending from one-time funding sources, 

including the UPK Planning Grant, Golden State Pathway Grant, Art, Music, and Instructional Materials Discretionary 

Block Grant, MHSSA Grant and the North State Together [Sierra Strong] Grant. 



SPJUSD Adopted Budget Narrative 2025-2026 

Page 6 of 6 
 

 

Multi-Year 

 

Planning Factor 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 

COLA 2.30% 3.02% 3.42% 3.31% 

STRS Employer Rates 19.10% 19.10% 19.10% 19.10% 

PERS Employer Rates 26.81% 26.90% 27.80% 27.40% 

Lottery - unrestricted per ADA* $191 $191 $191 $191 

Lottery - Prop 20 per ADA* $82 $82 $82 $82 

Minimum Proportionality Percentage (MPP) 

Supplemental Funds 

6.08% 
$362,308 

5.88% 
$344,762 

5.88% 
$356,234 

5.88% 
$368,304 

Certificated based on Premier $17,536 $17,536 $17,536 $17,536 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Comments 

 

➢ Positive general fund cash flow for fiscal year 2025-2026 with a projected ending cash balance of 
$3,677,682. 

➢ The Board’s required reserve of 12.5%, $1,158,320, is met in the current budget year, 2025–26, as well as 

in the first and second out years, 2026–27 and 2027–28.  

➢ Health Care premium increases projected to be 16.9% for members. 

 

 

 
Personnel FTE 

Certificated 26.00 

Administration 4.00   

Classified                        22.90 

Total FTE: 52.90 



1 of 91



                                                                 2 of 91



                                                                 3 of 91



                                                                 4 of 91



                                                                 5 of 91



                                                                 6 of 91



                                                                 7 of 91



                                                                 8 of 91



                                                                 9 of 91



                                                                 10 of 91



                                                                 11 of 91



                                                                 12 of 91



                                                                 13 of 91



                                                                 14 of 91



                                                                 15 of 91



                                                                 16 of 91



                                                                 17 of 91



                                                                 18 of 91



                                                                 19 of 91



                                                                 20 of 91



                                                                 21 of 91



                                                                 22 of 91



                                                                 23 of 91



                                                                 24 of 91



                                                                 25 of 91



                                                                 26 of 91



                                                                 27 of 91



                                                                 28 of 91



                                                                 29 of 91



                                                                 30 of 91



                                                                 31 of 91



                                                                 32 of 91



                                                                 33 of 91



                                                                 34 of 91



                                                                 35 of 91



                                                                 36 of 91



                                                                 37 of 91



                                                                 38 of 91



                                                                 39 of 91



                                                                 40 of 91



                                                                 41 of 91



                                                                 42 of 91



                                                                 43 of 91



                                                                 44 of 91



                                                                 45 of 91



                                                                 46 of 91



                                                                 47 of 91



                                                                 48 of 91



                                                                 49 of 91



                                                                 50 of 91



                                                                 51 of 91



                                                                 52 of 91



                                                                 53 of 91



                                                                 54 of 91



                                                                 55 of 91



                                                                 56 of 91



                                                                 57 of 91



                                                                 58 of 91



                                                                 59 of 91



                                                                 60 of 91



                                                                 61 of 91



                                                                 62 of 91



                                                                 63 of 91



                                                                 64 of 91



                                                                 65 of 91



                                                                 66 of 91



                                                                 67 of 91



                                                                 68 of 91



                                                                 69 of 91



                                                                 70 of 91



                                                                 71 of 91



                                                                 72 of 91



                                                                 73 of 91



                                                                 74 of 91



                                                                 75 of 91



                                                                 76 of 91



                                                                 77 of 91



                                                                 78 of 91



                                                                 79 of 91



                                                                 80 of 91



                                                                 81 of 91



                                                                 82 of 91



                                                                 83 of 91



                                                                 84 of 91



                                                                 85 of 91



                                                                 86 of 91



                                                                 87 of 91



                                                                 88 of 91



                                                                 89 of 91



                                                                 90 of 91



                                                                 91 of 91



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 1 of 20

2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Contact Name and Title Email and Phone

Sierra County Office of Education           James Berardi          
County Superintendent

jberardi@spjusd.org          
530-289-3473

Introduction
The California State Board of Education (SBE) approved standards for the local indicators that support a local 
educational agency (LEA) in measuring and reporting progress within the appropriate priority area.  

This template is intended as a drafting tool and based on the Local Performance Indicator Quick Guide published by 
CDE in January 2024.

Performance Standards
The approved performance standards require an LEA to:

Annually measure its progress in meeting the requirements of the specific Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF) priority.
Report the results as part of a non-consent item at the same public meeting of the local governing board/body 
at which the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) is adopted.
Report results to the public through the Dashboard utilizing the SBE-adopted self-reflection tools for each 
local indicator.

This Quick Guide identifies the approved standards and self-reflection tools that an LEA will use to report its progress 
on the local indicators.

Local Indicators
The local indicators address the following state priority areas:

Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-Aligned Instructional 
Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities (LCFF Priority 1)

LEAs will provide the information below:

Number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned instructional materials 
for use at school and at home

Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard (including deficiencies 
and extreme deficiencies)

Note: The requested information are all data elements that are currently required as part of the School Accountability 
Report Card (SARC).

Note: LEAs are required to report the following to their local governing board/body in conjunction with the adoption of 
the LCAP:



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 2 of 20

The LEA’s Teacher Assignment Monitoring and Outcome data available at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/tamo.asp.

The number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned instructional 
materials for use at school and at home, and

The number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard (including 
deficiencies and extreme deficiencies)

Implementation of State Academic Standards (LCFF Priority 2)

The LEA annually measures its progress implementing state academic standards; the LEA then reports the results to 
its local governing board/body at the same public meeting at which the LCAP is adopted and reports to educational 
partners and the public through the Dashboard.



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 3 of 20

Parent and Family Engagement (LCFF Priority 3)

This measure addresses Parent and Family Engagement, including how an LEA builds relationships between school 
staff and families, builds partnerships for student outcomes and seeks input for decision-making.

LEAs report progress of how they have sought input from parents in decision-making and promoted parent participation 
in programs to its local governing board or body using the SBE-adopted self-reflection tool for Priority 3 at the same 
public meeting at which the LEA adopts its LCAP, and reports to educational partners and the public through the 
Dashboard.

School Climate (LCFF Priority 6)

The LEA administers an annual local climate survey that captures a valid measure of student perceptions of school 
safety and connectedness, in at least one grade within each grade span(s) the LEA serves (e.g., TK-5, 6-8, 9-12), and 
reports the results to its local governing board/body at the same public meeting at which the LCAP is adopted and to 
educational partners and the public through the Dashboard.

Access to a Broad Course of Study (LCFF Priority 7)

The LEA annually measures its progress in the extent to which students have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad 
course of study that includes the adopted courses of study specified in the California Education Code (EC) for Grades 
1-6 and Grades 7-12, as applicable, including the programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated 
students and individuals with exceptional needs; the LEA then reports the results to its local governing board/body at 
the same public meeting at which the LCAP is adopted and reports to educational partners and the public through the 
Dashboard.

Coordination of Services for Expelled Students – County Office of Education (COE) 
Only (LCFF Priority 9)

The COE annually measures its progress in coordinating services for foster youth; the COE then reports the results to 
its local governing board/body at the same public meeting at which the LCAP is adopted and reports to educational 
partners and the public through the Dashboard.

Coordination of Services for Foster Youth – COE Only (LCFF Priority 10)

The COE annually measures its progress in coordinating services for foster youth; the COE then reports the results to 
its local governing board/body at the same public meeting at which the LCAP is adopted and reports to educational 
partners and the public through the Dashboard.



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 4 of 20

Self-Reflection Tools
An LEA uses the self-reflection tools included within the Dashboard to report its progress on the local performance 
indicator to educational partners and the public.

The self-reflection tools are embedded in the web-based Dashboard system and are also available in Word document 
format. In addition to using the self-reflection tools to report its progress on the local performance indicators to 
educational partners and the public, an LEA may use the self-reflection tools as a resource when reporting results to its 
local governing board. The approved self-reflection tools are provided below.

Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-Aligned Instructional 
Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities (LCFF Priority 1)

LEAs will provide the information below:

Number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned instructional 
materials for use at school and at home
Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard (including 
deficiencies and extreme deficiencies)

Note: The requested information are all data elements that are currently required as part of the School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 

Note: LEAs are required to report the following to their local governing board/body in conjunction with the 
adoption of the LCAP: 

The LEA’s Teacher Assignment Monitoring and Outcome data available at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/tamo.asp. 
The number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned instructional 
materials for use at school and at home, and 
The number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard (including 
deficiencies and extreme deficiencies)

Academic 
Year

Total 
Teaching FTE

Clear Out-of-
Field

Intern Ineffective Incomplete Unknown N/A

2022-2023 24.7 66.1% 19.4% 2.7% 6.8% 5% 0% 0.2%

Access to Instructional Materials Number Percent

Students Without Access to Own Copies of Standards-Aligned Instructional 
Materials for Use at School and at Home

0 0%

Facility Conditions Number

Identified Instances Where Facilities Do Not Meet The “Good Repair” Standard (Including 
Deficiencies and Extreme Deficiencies)

1



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 5 of 20

Implementation of State Academic Standards (LCFF Priority 2)

LEAs may provide a narrative summary of their progress in the implementation of state academic standards based on 
locally selected measures or tools (Option 1). Alternatively, LEAs may complete the optional reflection tool (Option 2).

OPTION 1: Narrative Summary (Limited to 3,000 characters)
In the narrative box provided on the Dashboard, identify the locally selected measures or tools that the LEA 
is using to track its progress in implementing the state academic standards adopted by the state board and 
briefly describe why the LEA chose the selected measures or tools.

Additionally, summarize the LEA’s progress in implementing the academic standards adopted by the SBE, 
based on the locally selected measures or tools. The adopted academic standards are:

English Language Arts (ELA) – Common Core State Standards for  ELA
English Language Development (ELD) (Aligned to Common Core State Standards for ELA)
Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
Next Generation Science Standards
History-Social Science
Career Technical Education
Health Education Content Standards
Physical Education Model Content Standards
Visual and Performing Arts
World Language

       

Implementation of State Academic Standards (LCFF Priority 2)

OPTION 2: Reflection Tool

Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks

1. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing professional learning for teaching to the recently adopted academic 
standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below.

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):
1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA
X

5      

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)
X

3      

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
X

2      

Next Generation Science Standards
X

4      

History-Social Science
X

4      



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 6 of 20

2. Rate the LEA’s progress in making instructional materials that are aligned to the recently adopted academic 
standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below available in all classrooms where the subject is 
taught.

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):
1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA
X

5      

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)
X

5      

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
X

5      

Next Generation Science Standards
X

5      

History-Social Science
X

5      

3. Rate the LEA’s progress in implementing policies or programs to support staff in identifying areas where 
they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the recently adopted academic standards and/or 
curriculum frameworks identified below (e.g., collaborative time, focused classroom walkthroughs, teacher 
pairing).

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):
1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA
X

4      

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)
X

3      

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
X

4      

Next Generation Science Standards
X

3      

History-Social Science
X

3      



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 7 of 20

Other Adopted Academic Standards

4. Rate the LEA’s progress implementing each of the following academic standards adopted by the state board 
for all students.

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):
1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5 N/A

Career Technical Education
X

4      

Health Education Content Standards
X

3      

Physical Education Model Content Standards
X

4      

Visual and Performing Arts
X

4      

World Language
X

3      

Support for Teachers and Administrators

5. Rate the LEA’s success at engaging in the following activities with teachers and school administrators 
during the prior school year (including the summer preceding the prior school year).

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):
1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5

Identifying the professional learning needs of groups of teachers or staff as a whole
X

5      

Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers
X

5      

Providing support for teachers on the standards they have not yet mastered
X

3      

Optional Narrative (Limited to 1,500 characters)
6. Provide any additional information in the text box provided in the Dashboard that the LEA believes is 

relevant to understanding its progress implementing the academic standards adopted by the state board.

Parental Involvement and Family Engagement (LCFF Priority 3)

Introduction
Family engagement is an essential strategy for building pathways to college and career readiness for all students and 
is an essential component of a systems approach to improving outcomes for all students. More than 30 years of research 
has shown that family engagement can lead to improved student outcomes (e.g., attendance, engagement, academic 
outcomes, social emotional learning, etc.).

Consistent with the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Family Engagement Toolkit: 1



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 8 of 20

• Effective and authentic family engagement has been described as an intentional partnership of educators, 
families and community members who share responsibility for a child from the time they are born to becoming 
an adult. 

• To build an effective partnership, educators, families, and community members need to develop the knowledge 
and skills to work together, and schools must purposefully integrate family and community engagement with 
goals for students' learning and thriving.  

The LCFF legislation recognized the importance of family engagement by requiring LEAs to address Priority 3 within 
their LCAP. The self-reflection tool described below enables LEAs to reflect upon their implementation of family 
engagement as part of their continuous improvement process and prior to updating their LCAP.

For LEAs to engage all families equitably, it is necessary to understand the cultures, languages, needs and interests of 
families in the local area. Furthermore, developing family engagement policies, programs, and practices needs to be 
done in partnership with local families, using the tools of continuous improvement.

Instructions
This self-reflection tool is organized into three sections. Each section includes research and evidence-based practices 
in family engagement:

1. Building Relationships between School Staff and Families 
2. Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes 
3. Seeking Input for Decision-Making

Based on an evaluation of data, including educational partner input, an LEA uses this self-reflection tool to report on its 
progress successes and area(s) of need related to family engagement policies, programs, and practices. This tool will 
enable an LEA to engage in continuous improvement and determine next steps to make improvements in the areas 
identified. The results of the process should be used to inform the LCAP and its development process, including 
assessing prior year goals, actions and services and in modifying future goals, actions, and services in the LCAP.

LEAs are to implement the following self-reflection process:

1. Identify the diverse educational partners that need to participate in the self-reflection process in order to ensure 
input from all groups of families, staff and students in the LEA, including families of unduplicated students and 
families of individuals with exceptional needs as well as families of underrepresented students. 

2. Engage educational partners in determining what data and information will be considered to complete the self-
reflection tool. LEAs should consider how the practices apply to families of all student groups, including families 
of unduplicated students and families of individuals with exceptional needs as well as families of 
underrepresented students. 

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the 
LEA’s current stage of implementation for each of the 12 practices using the following rating scale (lowest to 
highest):

1 – Exploration and Research 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability

4. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, respond to each of the prompts pertaining to 
each section of the tool.

5. Use the findings from the self-reflection process to inform the annual update to the LCAP and the LCAP 
development process, as well as the development of other school and district plans.



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 9 of 20

Sections of the Self-Reflection Tool 

Section 1: Building Relationships Between School Staff and Families

Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the LEA’s 
current stage of implementation for each practice in this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest):

1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Practices
Rating Scale 

Number

1. Rate the LEA’s progress in developing the capacity of staff (i.e., administrators, teachers, 
and classified staff) to build trusting and respectful relationships with families.

5

2. Rate the LEA’s progress in creating welcoming environments for all families in the 
community.

5

3. Rate the LEA’s progress in supporting staff to learn about each family’s strengths, cultures, 
languages, and goals for their children.

5

4. Rate the LEA’s progress in developing multiple opportunities for the LEA and school sites 
to engage in 2-way communication between families and educators using language that 
is understandable and accessible to families.

5

Building Relationships Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters)

1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s current strengths and 
progress in Building Relationships Between School Staff and Families.

We place a strong emphasis on building positive partnerships with families, as outlined in LCAP Goal #3: “All families 
and the larger school community will have increased levels of engagement with our schools, and families will feel 
welcomed to be an active participant in their child’s education.”

All elementary teachers, as well as some junior high and high school teachers, hold parent-teacher conferences for 
every student to discuss strengths and areas for growth. In addition, our schools regularly conduct Student Study 
Team (SST), 504, and IEP meetings that involve teachers, administrators, families, and students- all centered 
around improving student outcomes. At Loyalton High School, staff meet individually with each student and their 
family to review the student’s personalized 4-year plan for graduation and postsecondary goals.

We maintain active school site councils, booster clubs, parent clubs, and welcome numerous parent volunteers who 
support our schools in meaningful ways. We’ve also strengthened communication through the use of electronic 
school message boards, which help keep families informed of upcoming events and key announcements.

In addition to traditional engagement efforts, we have broadened opportunities for family and community input 
through a variety of advisory and community forums. These include CTE advisory committee meetings, an ethnic 
studies curriculum advisory committee, and town hall meetings on important school topics such as the reopening of 
the middle school and improvements to the girls’ softball field.

Together, these actions reflect our ongoing commitment to fostering strong, inclusive relationships between school 
staff and families.
       



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 10 of 20

2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for 
improvement in Building Relationships Between School Staff and Families.

Our focus areas for the 2025-2026 school year include continuing to improve our school and district websites, 
improving communication to ensure all families are aware of school activities and events, and efforts to improve 
parent involvement at the high school level.       

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe how the LEA will improve 
engagement of underrepresented families identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Building 
Relationships Between School Staff and Families.

To improve engagement of underrepresented families, we are committed to strengthening personal outreach and 
increasing inclusive communication. Although our bilingual aide transitioned into a different role within the district 
during the second half of the 2024–25 school year, we continue to utilize her as needed to make personal contact 
with Spanish-speaking families and ensure they feel connected to their child’s school and informed about their 
education.

Looking ahead, we will re-administer the EL Parent Survey and site-specific climate surveys to gather input and 
identify areas for continued growth. We will continue to increase bilingual communication and prioritize more one-on-
one meetings with families, particularly those from underrepresented groups.

Our Foster and Homeless Liaison will also continue to reach out personally to families under her purview, ensuring 
they are aware of and connected to school and community supports. In partnership with the School Attendance 
Review Board (SARB) team, we will continue to connect families with available resources to reduce barriers and 
strengthen their involvement in their child’s education.
       

Section 2: Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes

Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the LEA’s 
current stage of implementation for each practice in this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest):

1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Practices
Rating Scale 

Number

5. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing professional learning and support to teachers and 
principals to improve a school’s capacity to partner with families.

2

6. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing families with information and resources to support 
student learning and development in the home.

3

7. Rate the LEA’s progress in implementing policies or programs for teachers to meet with 
families and students to discuss student progress and ways to work together to support 
improved student outcomes.

5

8. Rate the LEA’s progress in supporting families to understand and exercise their legal 
rights and advocate for their own students and all students. 

4

Building Partnerships Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters)



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 11 of 20

1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s current strengths and 
progress in Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes.

We have many strengths in the area of building partnerships with families to support student outcomes. Our 
communication systems ensure consistent and transparent information flow between the school and families. These 
include weekly all-calls, a text and email communication system, weekly menus, newsletters, updated school and 
district websites, Facebook, and parent-teacher conferences.
We have also implemented a variety of family engagement initiatives, such as Back to School Night, Open House, 
Senior Variety Show, and Tech-Wise Family Night, which are designed to involve parents in the educational process 
and empower them with tools to support their children’s learning at home. SPJUSD actively involves families in 
decision-making through committees and councils, promoting a sense of ownership and collaboration in school 
improvement efforts.

In 2025–26, we will begin sharing new, easy-to-read parent reports generated from our Amplify DIBELS assessment 
system, helping families better understand their child’s literacy progress and how they can support learning at home.

We also created an attendance clerk position to strengthen home-school partnerships around student attendance. 
This staff member makes personal contact with families when students are absent to identify challenges, offer 
support, and reinforce the importance of consistent attendance as a key component of academic success.

Additionally, we offer a range of supports such as counseling services, academic interventions, and community 
partnerships to address diverse family needs, creating a collaborative and inclusive environment. Collectively, these 
efforts help build strong school-family partnerships that directly enhance student learning and success.
       

2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for 
improvement in Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes.

One of our key focus areas for improvement in building partnerships for student outcomes is increasing the number 
of opportunities for families to engage with their child’s learning. In particular, our goal is to offer more parent 
workshops and family nights that are focused on providing families with tools and strategies to support student 
learning at home.

Through a new grant received by the County Office of Education, we are planning to host family math, science, and 
computer science nights across our schools. These events will be designed to engage students and their families in 
hands-on learning experiences while fostering stronger connections between school, home, and the curriculum.

By expanding these offerings, we hope to strengthen our partnerships with families and better equip them to support 
student achievement across subject areas.
       

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe how the LEA will improve 
engagement of underrepresented families identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Building 
Partnerships for Student Outcomes.

To improve engagement of underrepresented families, we will continue to prioritize personalized outreach and 
inclusive communication strategies. Although our bilingual aide position was vacant during the second half of the 
2024–25 school year due to a staffing change, we continue to utilize the staff member in her new role to support 
communication with Spanish-speaking families as needed. This personal outreach remains a key strategy for 
ensuring families feel informed, welcomed, and connected to their child’s education.

We will re-administer the EL Parent Survey, along with school-specific climate surveys, to gather feedback and 
identify areas for continued improvement. We will also increase communication in both Spanish and English and 
expand opportunities for one-on-one meetings with families to strengthen relationships and promote student 
success.



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 12 of 20

In addition, our Foster and Homeless Liaison will continue to reach out personally to the families she supports, 
ensuring they are aware of and connected to school and community resources. We will also work with our School 
Attendance Review Board (SARB) team to provide families with needed support and to remove barriers that may be 
preventing full engagement in the educational process.
       

Section 3: Seeking Input for Decision-Making

Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the LEA’s 
current stage of implementation for each practice in this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest):

1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Practices
Rating Scale 

Number

9. Rate the LEA’s progress in building the capacity of and supporting principals and staff to 
effectively engage families in advisory groups and with decision-making. 

5

10. Rate the LEA’s progress in building the capacity of and supporting family members to 
effectively engage in advisory groups and decision-making. 

4

11. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing all families with opportunities to provide input on 
policies and programs, and implementing strategies to reach and seek input from any 
underrepresented groups in the school community. 

4

12. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing opportunities to have families, teachers, principals, 
and district administrators work together to plan, design, implement and evaluate family 
engagement activities at school and district levels. 

5

Seeking Input for Decision-Making Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters)

1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s current strengths and 
progress in Seeking Input for Decision-Making.

We have many strengths when it comes to seeking input for decision-making. We have active School Site Councils, 
advisory boards, booster clubs, and parent groups where families are engaged and regularly contribute to decisions 
that impact their child’s school. We conduct surveys and host LCAP community input sessions to gather feedback on 
key priorities. In addition, we maintain open and transparent communication channels, providing families with timely 
updates and multiple opportunities to share input during public meetings.

We have expanded our engagement efforts in several meaningful ways. We hosted a public meeting in partnership 
with County Public Health to support the development of the Community Health Improvement Plan, inviting 
community members to share their perspectives and priorities. We held town hall meetings to solicit parent and 
community feedback on two major initiatives: the reopening of the middle school and ensuring that our girls have 
access to a dedicated softball field.

To support digital literacy and responsible technology use, we hosted Tech-Wise Family Nights, where parents and 
students could engage in dialogue around managing screen time, device use, and balancing technology in family life. 
Additionally, we launched an Ethnic Studies Curriculum Advisory Committee to involve staff and community 
members in shaping the content and implementation of this important new course offering.

These efforts demonstrate our commitment to inclusive and responsive decision-making that values the voices of our 
educational partners at every level.



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 13 of 20

       

2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for 
improvement in Seeking Input for Decision-Making.

While we have strong systems in place for gathering input, we recognize the need to broaden participation and 
increase the number of families engaged in our decision-making processes. Based on feedback and participation 
data, our focus area for improvement is expanding outreach to engage more parents and guardians. This includes 
exploring flexible meeting times, virtual participation options, and more personalized communication strategies. We 
also want to provide information about how input is used, so families see the impact of their involvement.       

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe how the LEA will improve 
engagement of underrepresented families identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Seeking Input for 
Decision-Making.

We will continue to emphasize personal outreach as a key strategy for engaging families. Although our bilingual aide 
position was vacant for the second half of the year, we have continued to use her as needed to reach out to families 
and ensure they feel connected to their child’s school and informed about their education. Families have expressed 
appreciation that our surveys, emails, and text messages now go home in both Spanish and English, and that 
materials sent home in hard copy are also provided in Spanish when needed.

We will continue administering the EL Parent Survey and each school’s climate survey to gather input. Our Foster 
and Homeless Liaison will also continue personally connecting with families to help them access support services 
and stay informed. Additionally, we will work with the School Attendance Review Board (SARB) team to connect 
families with community resources and provide appropriate supports.
       

School Climate (LCFF Priority 6)

Introduction

The initial design of the Local Control Funding Formula recognized the critical role that positive school conditions and 
climate play in advancing student performance and equity. This recognition is grounded in a research base 
demonstrating that a positive school climate directly impacts indicators of success such as increased teacher retention, 
lower dropout rates, decreased incidences of violence, and higher student achievement.

In order to support comprehensive planning, LEAs need access to current data. The measurement of school climate 
provides LEAs with critical data that can be used to track progress in school climate for purposes of continuous 
improvement, and the ability to identify needs and implement changes to address local needs.

Introduction
LEAs are required, at a minimum, to annually administer a local climate survey. The survey must:

• Capture a valid measure of student perceptions of school safety and connectedness in at least one grade within 
each grade span the LEA serves (e.g. TK-5, 6-8, 9-12); and

• At a minimum, report disaggregated data by student groups identified in California Education Code 52052, when 
such data is available as part of the local school climate survey.

Based on the analysis of local data, including the local climate survey data, LEAs are to respond to the following three 
prompts. Each prompt response is limited to 3,000 characters. An LEA may provide hyperlink(s) to other documents as 
necessary within each prompt:



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 14 of 20

Prompt 1 (DATA): Describe the local climate survey data, including available data disaggregated by student groups. 
LEAs using surveys that provide an overall score, such as the California Healthy Kids Survey, are encouraged to report 
the overall score for all students as well as available student group scores. Responses may also include an analysis of 
a subset of specific items on a local survey and additional data collection tools that are particularly relevant to school 
conditions and climate.

The California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) was administered in Spring 2024 to students in 7th, 9th, and 11th 
grades. The results reveal some consistent patterns across grade levels, with key shifts emerging between middle 
and high school years. Among 7th graders, 54% reported feeling connected to school, and 56% said they were 
motivated academically. Sixty-five percent felt there were caring adults at school, and 67% reported feeling safe. 
However, bullying appeared to be a significant issue at this grade level: 50% reported experiencing some form of 
harassment or bullying, 78% said they had been the subject of mean rumors or lies, and 50% reported experiencing 
cyberbullying.

In 9th grade, student perceptions of school climate dropped in nearly every category. Only 42% of 9th graders 
reported feeling connected to school, and just 38% said they were motivated academically. Fewer than half (49%) 
felt there were caring adults on campus, and only 57% reported feeling safe. Reports of harassment or bullying 
declined slightly to 38%, with 36% indicating they had been the subject of rumors or lies and 27% experiencing 
cyberbullying. These figures suggest that 9th grade may be a particularly vulnerable transition year where students 
are at higher risk of feeling disconnected and less supported.

By 11th grade, survey results improved substantially. Sixty-six percent of students reported feeling connected to 
school, and 52% indicated academic motivation. 67% of respondents reported having caring adults at school, and 
70% said they felt safe at school. Reports of bullying and harmful peer behavior declined considerably: only 20% 
reported experiencing harassment or bullying, the same percentage who said they had been the subject of rumors or 
lies, and just 10% reported cyberbullying.

This data suggests a developmental trend where students report stronger relationships and school climate 
perceptions as they progress through high school, but also indicate the need for targeted supports in the middle 
grades, particularly in 7th and 9th, where indicators of safety, connectedness, and support are lowest and 
experiences with bullying are most prevalent.
       



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 15 of 20

Prompt 2 (MEANING): Describe key learnings, including identified needs and areas of strength determined through the 
analysis of data described in Prompt 1, including the available data disaggregated by student group.

Our CHKS data from Spring 2024 provides valuable insights into student well-being and school climate across 7th, 
9th, and 11th grades.

Areas of Strength:
School connectedness remains a key strength at the 11th grade level, where 66% of students report feeling 
connected to their school. Similarly, 67% of 11th graders feel they have caring adults at school, and 70% feel safe 
while on campus. These positive perceptions indicate that upper-grade students generally experience a supportive 
and safe environment. Feelings of safety are also relatively high in 11th grade compared to earlier grades.

Identified Needs:
There is a marked decline in school connectedness, academic motivation, and perceptions of caring adults in the 
middle grades, especially among 7th and 9th graders. For example, only 54% of 7th graders and 42% of 9th graders 
report feeling connected to school, with motivation dropping to 56% and 38% respectively. Caring adult perceptions 
also dip to 65% in 7th grade and further to 49% in 9th grade. Safety perceptions are lower in these grades as well, 
with just 67% of 7th graders and 57% of 9th graders feeling safe at school.

Bullying and cyberbullying continue to be concerns, particularly in middle school, where 50% of 7th graders report 
harassment or bullying, 78% have experienced mean rumors or lies, and 50% report cyberbullying. These issues 
decrease in the 9th and 11th grades but remain areas requiring attention.

Conclusion:
While the district demonstrates strengths in supporting upper-grade students’ connection, safety, and access to 
caring adults, challenges remain in the middle and early high school years. The data highlights the need to focus 
efforts on increasing school connectedness, academic motivation, and adult support for younger students, as well as 
addressing bullying and safety concerns in middle school. Targeted strategies to support students during these 
critical transitional years will be essential to improving overall student well-being and academic success.
       

Prompt 3 (USE): Describe any changes to existing plans, policies, or procedures that the LEA determines necessary 
in order to address areas of need identified through the analysis of local data and the identification of key learnings. 
Include any revisions, decisions, or actions the LEA has, or will, implement for continuous improvement purposes.

Based on the 2024 CHKS data analysis, we are prioritizing efforts to address the decline in school connectedness 
and academic motivation, particularly among 7th and 9th graders, as well as ongoing concerns around bullying, 
cyberbullying, and perceptions of adult support. To improve these areas, we will implement targeted strategies aimed 
at increasing student engagement and strengthening supportive relationships within the school community.

A major step toward these goals is the reopening of the middle school in Loyalton for the 2025-2026 school year. 
This will relocate 6th grade students from the elementary school, and 7th and 8th grade students from the high 
school to a dedicated space designed specifically for their developmental needs. We anticipate this change will 
positively impact students’ sense of belonging, school connectedness, and overall climate for these grade levels.
In addition, we will strengthen our anti-bullying programs and digital safety education to reduce incidents of 
harassment and cyberbullying. We will also implement targeted strategies to ensure students feel supported by 
caring adults who are actively engaged in their well-being.

Together, these revisions and actions reflect our commitment to continuous improvement, aiming to create a safer, 
more supportive, and motivating learning environment that addresses the specific needs identified through our local 
data.
       



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 16 of 20

Access to a Broad Course of Study (LCFF Priority 7)

LEAs provide a narrative summary of the extent to which all students have access to and are enrolled in a broad course 
of study by addressing, at a minimum, the following four prompts:

1. Briefly identify the locally selected measures or tools that the LEA is using to track the extent to which all students 
have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study, based on grade spans, unduplicated student groups, 
and individuals with exceptional needs served. (response limited to 1,500 characters)

We use our master schedules and student information system (PowerSchool) to monitor student enrollment in a 
broad course of study across grade spans and student groups, including unduplicated students and individuals with 
exceptional needs. These tools allow us to regularly review course offerings and participation to ensure equity and 
access. Additionally, classroom instruction is monitored through routine walkthroughs to assess whether instructional 
practices and materials support access to a diverse and comprehensive curriculum. This includes access to core 
academic subjects as well as enrichment opportunities such as the arts, CTE, and physical education. Data is 
disaggregated, when possible, to ensure all student groups are equitably served.       

2. Using the locally selected measures or tools, summarize the extent to which all students have access to, and are 
enrolled in, a broad course of study. The summary should identify any differences across school sites and student 
groups in access to, and enrollment in, a broad course of study, and may describe progress over time in the extent 
to which all students have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study. (response limited to 1,500 
characters)

Based on our locally selected tools such as master schedules, PowerSchool enrollment data, and reviews of 
instructional materials, all students have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study. Standards-aligned 
resources and scheduling confirm that students in Grades TK–6 receive instruction in all core subjects, including 
English Language Arts, Mathematics, Social Studies, Science, Visual and Performing Arts, Health, and Physical 
Education. In Loyalton, elementary students also benefit from weekly instruction in art and music, as well as garden-
based learning in the fall and spring months, enriching their educational experience and supporting a well-rounded 
curriculum.

For Grades 7–12, students have access to these subjects as well as Foreign Language, Applied Arts, and Career 
Technical Education (CTE) where available. While most subject areas are equitably accessible across school sites 
and student groups, there is a difference in CTE access. Downieville does not currently offer a formal, in-person CTE 
pathway, which limits local options for career technical preparation. To help mitigate this, the district utilizes online 
platforms and partnerships to expand course offerings beyond what our small teaching staff can provide. We 
continue to explore opportunities to expand access, particularly in areas like CTE, to ensure all students can engage 
in a broad and rigorous course of study.
       

3. Given the results of the tool or locally selected measures, identify the barriers preventing the LEA from providing 
access to a broad course of study for all students. (response limited to 1,500 characters)

One of the primary barriers to providing all students with access to a broad course of study is the LEA's small size 
and the associated funding limitations. Creating master schedules that offer a wide range of competitive courses is 
especially difficult when working with high schools serving only 20 and 150 students across grades 7–12. In grades 
TK–6, monitoring tools indicate that the instructional time required for foundational literacy, mathematics, and 
mandated physical education often limits students’ ability to fully engage in other subject areas such as science, the 
arts, and social studies. In the primary grades, students receiving intensive reading intervention may have reduced 
access to enrichment subjects. For grades 7–12, barriers include teacher credentialing constraints and the limitations 
of a seven-period schedule (and block schedule in Downieville), which restrict the ability to expand electives, Career 
Technical Education, and other enrichment opportunities. Despite these challenges, the LEA continues to leverage 
online platforms and partnerships to increase access wherever possible.       



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 17 of 20

4. In response to the results of the tool or locally selected measures, what revisions, decisions, or new actions will the 
LEA implement, or has the LEA implemented, to ensure access to a broad course of study for all students? (response 
limited to 1,500 characters)

ONLINE COURSES & EXPANDED ACCESS: In 2025–26, the LEA will continue expanding access to online learning 
opportunities through platforms such as Peak/FuelEd to provide a wider array of AP, elective, and credit recovery 
courses. This is especially critical for students at smaller school sites like ours, where in-person course offerings are 
limited.

DATA-INFORMED INSTRUCTION: We will deepen our commitment to data-informed instruction through targeted 
professional development focused on using assessment data to adjust teaching practices, identify gaps in access, 
and improve student outcomes across subjects.

SCHEDULING & SUPPORTS: To ensure greater access to college-prep and enrichment courses, we will reduce 
enrollment in low-level or remedial courses where appropriate and increase enrollment in rigorous coursework, 
embedding academic supports within the master schedule and general education classrooms when possible.

EQUITY IN ACCESS: We will also monitor course-taking patterns by site, grade span, and student group (including 
unduplicated pupils and students with exceptional needs) to identify and address inequities in access and 
participation.
       

Coordination of Services for Expelled Students – COE Only (LCFF Priority 9)

Assess the degree of implementation of the progress in coordinating instruction for expelled students in your 
county.

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):
1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Coordinating Instruction 1 2 3 4 5

1. Assessing status of triennial plan 
for providing educational services 
to all expelled students in the 
county, including:

[No response 
required]

[No response 
required]

[No response 
required]

[No response 
required]

[No response 
required]

a. Review of required outcome 
data.

X

5      

b. Identifying existing educational 
alternatives for expelled pupils, 
gaps in educational services to 
expelled pupils, and strategies 
for filling those service gaps.

X

5      

c. Identifying alternative 
placements for pupils who are 
expelled and placed in district 
community day school 
programs, but who fail to meet 
the terms and conditions of 
their rehabilitation plan or who 
pose a danger to other district 
pupils.

X

5      



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 18 of 20

Coordinating Instruction 1 2 3 4 5

2. Coordinating on development and 
implementation of triennial plan 
with all LEAs within the county.

X

5      

3. Establishing ongoing collaboration 
and policy development for 
transparent referral process for 
LEAs within the county to the 
county office of education or other 
program options, including 
dissemination to all LEAs within 
the county a menu of available 
continuum of services for expelled 
students.

X

5      

4. Developing memorandum of 
understanding regarding the 
coordination of partial credit 
policies between district of 
residence and county office of 
education.

X

5      

Coordination of Services for Foster Youth – COE Only (LCFF Priority 10)

Assess the degree of implementation of coordinated service program components for foster youth in your 
county.

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):

1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Coordinating Services 1 2 3 4 5

1. Establishing ongoing collaboration 
and supporting policy development, 
including establishing formalized 
information sharing agreements with 
child welfare, probation, Local 
Education Agency (LEAs), the 
courts, and other organizations to 
support determining the proper 
educational placement of foster 
youth (e.g., school of origin versus 
current residence, comprehensive 
versus alternative school, and 
regular versus special education).

X

5      



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 19 of 20

Coordinating Services 1 2 3 4 5

2. Building capacity with LEA, 
probation, child welfare, and other 
organizations for purposes of 
implementing school-based support 
infrastructure for foster youth 
intended to improve educational 
outcomes (e.g., provide regular 
professional development with the 
Foster Youth Liaisons to facilitate 
adequate transportation services for 
foster youth).

X

4      

3. Providing information and 
assistance to LEAs regarding the 
educational needs of foster youth in 
order to improve educational 
outcomes.

X

4      

4. Providing direct educational 
services for foster youth in LEA or 
county-operated programs provided 
the school district has certified that 
specified services cannot be 
provided or funded using other 
sources, including, but not limited to, 
Local Control Funding Formula, 
federal, state or local funding.

X

3      

5. Establishing ongoing collaboration 
and supporting development of 
policies and procedures that 
facilitate expeditious transfer of 
records, transcripts, and other 
relevant educational information.

X

5      

6. Facilitating the coordination of post-
secondary opportunities for youth by 
engaging with systems partners, 
including, but not limited to, child 
welfare transition planning and 
independent living services, 
community colleges or universities, 
career technical education, and 
workforce development providers.

X

4      

7. Developing strategies to prioritize 
the needs of foster youth in the 
community, using community-wide 
assessments that consider age 
group, geographical area, and 
identification of highest needs 
students based on academic needs 
and placement type.

X

5      



2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra County Office of Education Page 20 of 20

Coordinating Services 1 2 3 4 5

8. Engaging in the process of 
reviewing plan deliverables and of 
collecting and analyzing LEA and 
COE level outcome data for 
purposes of evaluating effectiveness 
of support services for foster youth 
and whether the investment in 
services contributes to improved 
educational outcomes for foster 
youth.

X

4      



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 1 
of 17

2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection 

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Contact Name and Title Email and Phone

Sierra–Plumas Joint Unified School 
District / Sierra County Office of 
Education           

Sean Snider          
District Superintendent

ssnider@spjusd.org          
530-993-1660

Introduction
The California State Board of Education (SBE) approved standards for the local indicators that support a local 
educational agency (LEA) in measuring and reporting progress within the appropriate priority area.  

This template is intended as a drafting tool and based on the Local Performance Indicator Quick Guide published by 
CDE in January 2024.

Performance Standards
The approved performance standards require an LEA to:

Annually measure its progress in meeting the requirements of the specific Local Control Funding Formula 
(LCFF) priority.
Report the results as part of a non-consent item at the same public meeting of the local governing board/body 
at which the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) is adopted.
Report results to the public through the Dashboard utilizing the SBE-adopted self-reflection tools for each 
local indicator.

This Quick Guide identifies the approved standards and self-reflection tools that an LEA will use to report its progress 
on the local indicators.

Local Indicators
The local indicators address the following state priority areas:

Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-Aligned Instructional 
Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities (LCFF Priority 1)

LEAs will provide the information below:



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 2 
of 17

Number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned instructional materials 
for use at school and at home

Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard (including deficiencies 
and extreme deficiencies)

Note: The requested information are all data elements that are currently required as part of the School Accountability 
Report Card (SARC).

Note: LEAs are required to report the following to their local governing board/body in conjunction with the adoption of 
the LCAP:

The LEA’s Teacher Assignment Monitoring and Outcome data available at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/tamo.asp.

The number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned instructional 
materials for use at school and at home, and

The number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard (including 
deficiencies and extreme deficiencies)

Implementation of State Academic Standards (LCFF Priority 2)

The LEA annually measures its progress implementing state academic standards; the LEA then reports the results to 
its local governing board/body at the same public meeting at which the LCAP is adopted and reports to educational 
partners and the public through the Dashboard.



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 3 
of 17

Parent and Family Engagement (LCFF Priority 3)

This measure addresses Parent and Family Engagement, including how an LEA builds relationships between school 
staff and families, builds partnerships for student outcomes and seeks input for decision-making.

LEAs report progress of how they have sought input from parents in decision-making and promoted parent participation 
in programs to its local governing board or body using the SBE-adopted self-reflection tool for Priority 3 at the same 
public meeting at which the LEA adopts its LCAP, and reports to educational partners and the public through the 
Dashboard.

School Climate (LCFF Priority 6)

The LEA administers an annual local climate survey that captures a valid measure of student perceptions of school 
safety and connectedness, in at least one grade within each grade span(s) the LEA serves (e.g., TK-5, 6-8, 9-12), and 
reports the results to its local governing board/body at the same public meeting at which the LCAP is adopted and to 
educational partners and the public through the Dashboard.

Access to a Broad Course of Study (LCFF Priority 7)

The LEA annually measures its progress in the extent to which students have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad 
course of study that includes the adopted courses of study specified in the California Education Code (EC) for Grades 
1-6 and Grades 7-12, as applicable, including the programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated 
students and individuals with exceptional needs; the LEA then reports the results to its local governing board/body at 
the same public meeting at which the LCAP is adopted and reports to educational partners and the public through the 
Dashboard.

Coordination of Services for Expelled Students – County Office of Education (COE) 
Only (LCFF Priority 9)

The COE annually measures its progress in coordinating services for foster youth; the COE then reports the results to 
its local governing board/body at the same public meeting at which the LCAP is adopted and reports to educational 
partners and the public through the Dashboard.

Coordination of Services for Foster Youth – COE Only (LCFF Priority 10)

The COE annually measures its progress in coordinating services for foster youth; the COE then reports the results to 
its local governing board/body at the same public meeting at which the LCAP is adopted and reports to educational 
partners and the public through the Dashboard.



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 4 
of 17

Self-Reflection Tools
An LEA uses the self-reflection tools included within the Dashboard to report its progress on the local performance 
indicator to educational partners and the public.

The self-reflection tools are embedded in the web-based Dashboard system and are also available in Word document 
format. In addition to using the self-reflection tools to report its progress on the local performance indicators to 
educational partners and the public, an LEA may use the self-reflection tools as a resource when reporting results to its 
local governing board. The approved self-reflection tools are provided below.

Appropriately Assigned Teachers, Access to Curriculum-Aligned Instructional 
Materials, and Safe, Clean and Functional School Facilities (LCFF Priority 1)

LEAs will provide the information below:

Number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned instructional 
materials for use at school and at home
Number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard (including 
deficiencies and extreme deficiencies)

Note: The requested information are all data elements that are currently required as part of the School 
Accountability Report Card (SARC). 

Note: LEAs are required to report the following to their local governing board/body in conjunction with the 
adoption of the LCAP: 

The LEA’s Teacher Assignment Monitoring and Outcome data available at 
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ds/ad/tamo.asp. 
The number/percentage of students without access to their own copies of standards-aligned instructional 
materials for use at school and at home, and 
The number of identified instances where facilities do not meet the “good repair” standard (including 
deficiencies and extreme deficiencies)

Academic 
Year

Total 
Teaching FTE

Clear Out-of-
Field

Intern Ineffective Incomplete Unknown N/A

2022-2023 24.7 66.1% 19.4% 2.7% 6.8% 5% 0% .2%

Access to Instructional Materials Number Percent

Students Without Access to Own Copies of Standards-Aligned Instructional 
Materials for Use at School and at Home

0 0

Facility Conditions Number

Identified Instances Where Facilities Do Not Meet The “Good Repair” Standard (Including 
Deficiencies and Extreme Deficiencies)

1



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 5 
of 17

Implementation of State Academic Standards (LCFF Priority 2)

LEAs may provide a narrative summary of their progress in the implementation of state academic standards based on 
locally selected measures or tools (Option 1). Alternatively, LEAs may complete the optional reflection tool (Option 2).

OPTION 1: Narrative Summary (Limited to 3,000 characters)
In the narrative box provided on the Dashboard, identify the locally selected measures or tools that the LEA 
is using to track its progress in implementing the state academic standards adopted by the state board and 
briefly describe why the LEA chose the selected measures or tools.

Additionally, summarize the LEA’s progress in implementing the academic standards adopted by the SBE, 
based on the locally selected measures or tools. The adopted academic standards are:

English Language Arts (ELA) – Common Core State Standards for  ELA
English Language Development (ELD) (Aligned to Common Core State Standards for ELA)
Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
Next Generation Science Standards
History-Social Science
Career Technical Education
Health Education Content Standards
Physical Education Model Content Standards
Visual and Performing Arts
World Language

       

Implementation of State Academic Standards (LCFF Priority 2)

OPTION 2: Reflection Tool

Recently Adopted Academic Standards and/or Curriculum Frameworks

1. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing professional learning for teaching to the recently adopted academic 
standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below.

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):
1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA
X

5      

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)
X

3      

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
X

2      

Next Generation Science Standards
X

4      

History-Social Science
X

4      



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 6 
of 17

2. Rate the LEA’s progress in making instructional materials that are aligned to the recently adopted academic 
standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below available in all classrooms where the subject is 
taught.

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):
1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA
X

5      

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)
X

5      

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
X

5      

Next Generation Science Standards
X

5      

History-Social Science
X

5      

3. Rate the LEA’s progress in implementing policies or programs to support staff in identifying areas where 
they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the recently adopted academic standards and/or 
curriculum frameworks identified below (e.g., collaborative time, focused classroom walkthroughs, teacher 
pairing).

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):
1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5

ELA – Common Core State Standards for ELA
X

4      

ELD (Aligned to ELA Standards)
X

3      

Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
X

4      

Next Generation Science Standards
X

3      

History-Social Science
X

3      



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 7 
of 17

Other Adopted Academic Standards

4. Rate the LEA’s progress implementing each of the following academic standards adopted by the state board 
for all students.

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):
1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5 N/A

Career Technical Education
X

4      

Health Education Content Standards
X

3      

Physical Education Model Content Standards
X

4      

Visual and Performing Arts
X

4      

World Language
X

3      

Support for Teachers and Administrators

5. Rate the LEA’s success at engaging in the following activities with teachers and school administrators 
during the prior school year (including the summer preceding the prior school year).

Rating Scale (lowest to highest):
1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Academic Standards 1 2 3 4 5

Identifying the professional learning needs of groups of teachers or staff as a whole
X

5      

Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers
X

5      

Providing support for teachers on the standards they have not yet mastered
X

3      

Optional Narrative (Limited to 1,500 characters)
6. Provide any additional information in the text box provided in the Dashboard that the LEA believes is 

relevant to understanding its progress implementing the academic standards adopted by the state board.

Parental Involvement and Family Engagement (LCFF Priority 3)

Introduction
Family engagement is an essential strategy for building pathways to college and career readiness for all students and 
is an essential component of a systems approach to improving outcomes for all students. More than 30 years of research 
has shown that family engagement can lead to improved student outcomes (e.g., attendance, engagement, academic 
outcomes, social emotional learning, etc.).



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 8 
of 17

Consistent with the California Department of Education’s (CDE’s) Family Engagement Toolkit: 1

• Effective and authentic family engagement has been described as an intentional partnership of educators, 
families and community members who share responsibility for a child from the time they are born to becoming 
an adult. 

• To build an effective partnership, educators, families, and community members need to develop the knowledge 
and skills to work together, and schools must purposefully integrate family and community engagement with 
goals for students' learning and thriving.  

The LCFF legislation recognized the importance of family engagement by requiring LEAs to address Priority 3 within 
their LCAP. The self-reflection tool described below enables LEAs to reflect upon their implementation of family 
engagement as part of their continuous improvement process and prior to updating their LCAP.

For LEAs to engage all families equitably, it is necessary to understand the cultures, languages, needs and interests of 
families in the local area. Furthermore, developing family engagement policies, programs, and practices needs to be 
done in partnership with local families, using the tools of continuous improvement.

Instructions
This self-reflection tool is organized into three sections. Each section includes research and evidence-based practices 
in family engagement:

1. Building Relationships between School Staff and Families 
2. Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes 
3. Seeking Input for Decision-Making

Based on an evaluation of data, including educational partner input, an LEA uses this self-reflection tool to report on its 
progress successes and area(s) of need related to family engagement policies, programs, and practices. This tool will 
enable an LEA to engage in continuous improvement and determine next steps to make improvements in the areas 
identified. The results of the process should be used to inform the LCAP and its development process, including 
assessing prior year goals, actions and services and in modifying future goals, actions, and services in the LCAP.

LEAs are to implement the following self-reflection process:

1. Identify the diverse educational partners that need to participate in the self-reflection process in order to ensure 
input from all groups of families, staff and students in the LEA, including families of unduplicated students and 
families of individuals with exceptional needs as well as families of underrepresented students. 

2. Engage educational partners in determining what data and information will be considered to complete the self-
reflection tool. LEAs should consider how the practices apply to families of all student groups, including families 
of unduplicated students and families of individuals with exceptional needs as well as families of 
underrepresented students. 

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the 
LEA’s current stage of implementation for each of the 12 practices using the following rating scale (lowest to 
highest):

1 – Exploration and Research 
2 – Beginning Development 
3 – Initial Implementation 
4 – Full Implementation 
5 – Full Implementation and Sustainability

4. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, respond to each of the prompts pertaining to 
each section of the tool.



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 9 
of 17

5. Use the findings from the self-reflection process to inform the annual update to the LCAP and the LCAP 
development process, as well as the development of other school and district plans.

Sections of the Self-Reflection Tool 

Section 1: Building Relationships Between School Staff and Families

Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the LEA’s 
current stage of implementation for each practice in this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest):

1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Practices
Rating Scale 

Number

1. Rate the LEA’s progress in developing the capacity of staff (i.e., administrators, teachers, 
and classified staff) to build trusting and respectful relationships with families.

5

2. Rate the LEA’s progress in creating welcoming environments for all families in the 
community.

5

3. Rate the LEA’s progress in supporting staff to learn about each family’s strengths, cultures, 
languages, and goals for their children.

5

4. Rate the LEA’s progress in developing multiple opportunities for the LEA and school sites 
to engage in 2-way communication between families and educators using language that 
is understandable and accessible to families.

5

Building Relationships Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters)

1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s current strengths and 
progress in Building Relationships Between School Staff and Families.

We place a strong emphasis on building positive partnerships with families, as outlined in LCAP Goal #3: “All families 
and the larger school community will have increased levels of engagement with our schools, and families will feel 
welcomed to be an active participant in their child’s education.”

All elementary teachers, as well as some junior high and high school teachers, hold parent-teacher conferences for 
every student to discuss strengths and areas for growth. In addition, our schools regularly conduct Student Study 
Team (SST), 504, and IEP meetings that involve teachers, administrators, families, and students- all centered 
around improving student outcomes. At Loyalton High School, staff meet individually with each student and their 
family to review the student’s personalized 4-year plan for graduation and postsecondary goals.

We maintain active school site councils, booster clubs, parent clubs, and welcome numerous parent volunteers who 
support our schools in meaningful ways. We’ve also strengthened communication through the use of electronic 
school message boards, which help keep families informed of upcoming events and key announcements.

In addition to traditional engagement efforts, we have broadened opportunities for family and community input 
through a variety of advisory and community forums. These include CTE advisory committee meetings, an ethnic 
studies curriculum advisory committee, and town hall meetings on important school topics such as the reopening of 
the middle school and improvements to the girls’ softball field.

Together, these actions reflect our ongoing commitment to fostering strong, inclusive relationships between school 
staff and families.



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 10 
of 17

       

2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for 
improvement in Building Relationships Between School Staff and Families.

Our focus areas for the 2025-2026 school year include continuing to improve our school and district websites, 
improving communication to ensure all families are aware of school activities and events, and efforts to improve 
parent involvement at the high school level.       

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe how the LEA will improve 
engagement of underrepresented families identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Building 
Relationships Between School Staff and Families.

To improve engagement of underrepresented families, we are committed to strengthening personal outreach and 
increasing inclusive communication. Although our bilingual aide transitioned into a different role within the district 
during the second half of the 2024–25 school year, we continue to utilize her as needed to make personal contact 
with Spanish-speaking families and ensure they feel connected to their child’s school and informed about their 
education.

Looking ahead, we will re-administer the EL Parent Survey and site-specific climate surveys to gather input and 
identify areas for continued growth. We will continue to increase bilingual communication and prioritize more one-on-
one meetings with families, particularly those from underrepresented groups.

Our Foster and Homeless Liaison will also continue to reach out personally to families under her purview, ensuring 
they are aware of and connected to school and community supports. In partnership with the School Attendance 
Review Board (SARB) team, we will continue to connect families with available resources to reduce barriers and 
strengthen their involvement in their child’s education.
       

Section 2: Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes

Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the LEA’s 
current stage of implementation for each practice in this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest):

1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Practices
Rating Scale 

Number

5. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing professional learning and support to teachers and 
principals to improve a school’s capacity to partner with families.

2

6. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing families with information and resources to support 
student learning and development in the home.

3

7. Rate the LEA’s progress in implementing policies or programs for teachers to meet with 
families and students to discuss student progress and ways to work together to support 
improved student outcomes.

5

8. Rate the LEA’s progress in supporting families to understand and exercise their legal 
rights and advocate for their own students and all students. 

4



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 11 
of 17

Building Partnerships Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters)

1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s current strengths and 
progress in Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes.

We have many strengths in the area of building partnerships with families to support student outcomes. Our 
communication systems ensure consistent and transparent information flow between the school and families. These 
include weekly all-calls, a text and email communication system, weekly menus, newsletters, updated school and 
district websites, Facebook, and parent-teacher conferences.

We have also implemented a variety of family engagement initiatives, such as Back to School Night, Open House, 
Senior Variety Show, and Tech-Wise Family Night, which are designed to involve parents in the educational process 
and empower them with tools to support their children’s learning at home. SPJUSD actively involves families in 
decision-making through committees and councils, promoting a sense of ownership and collaboration in school 
improvement efforts.

In 2025–26, we will begin sharing new, easy-to-read parent reports generated from our Amplify DIBELS assessment 
system, helping families better understand their child’s literacy progress and how they can support learning at home.

We also created an attendance clerk position to strengthen home-school partnerships around student attendance. 
This staff member makes personal contact with families when students are absent to identify challenges, offer 
support, and reinforce the importance of consistent attendance as a key component of academic success.

Additionally, we offer a range of supports such as counseling services, academic interventions, and community 
partnerships to address diverse family needs, creating a collaborative and inclusive environment. Collectively, these 
efforts help build strong school-family partnerships that directly enhance student learning and success.
       

2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for 
improvement in Building Partnerships for Student Outcomes.

One of our key focus areas for improvement in building partnerships for student outcomes is increasing the number 
of opportunities for families to engage with their child’s learning. In particular, our goal is to offer more parent 
workshops and family nights that are focused on providing families with tools and strategies to support student 
learning at home.

Through a new grant received by the County Office of Education, we are planning to host family math, science, and 
computer science nights across our schools. These events will be designed to engage students and their families in 
hands-on learning experiences while fostering stronger connections between school, home, and the curriculum.

By expanding these offerings, we hope to strengthen our partnerships with families and better equip them to support 
student achievement across subject areas.
       

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe how the LEA will improve 
engagement of underrepresented families identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Building 
Partnerships for Student Outcomes.

To improve engagement of underrepresented families, we will continue to prioritize personalized outreach and 
inclusive communication strategies. Although our bilingual aide position was vacant during the second half of the 
2024–25 school year due to a staffing change, we continue to utilize the staff member in her new role to support 
communication with Spanish-speaking families as needed. This personal outreach remains a key strategy for 
ensuring families feel informed, welcomed, and connected to their child’s education.



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 12 
of 17

We will re-administer the EL Parent Survey, along with school-specific climate surveys, to gather feedback and 
identify areas for continued improvement. We will also increase communication in both Spanish and English and 
expand opportunities for one-on-one meetings with families to strengthen relationships and promote student 
success.

In addition, our Foster and Homeless Liaison will continue to reach out personally to the families she supports, 
ensuring they are aware of and connected to school and community resources. We will also work with our School 
Attendance Review Board (SARB) team to provide families with needed support and to remove barriers that may be 
preventing full engagement in the educational process.
       

Section 3: Seeking Input for Decision-Making

Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, identify the number which best indicates the LEA’s 
current stage of implementation for each practice in this section using the following rating scale (lowest to highest):

1 - Exploration and Research Phase
2 - Beginning Development
3 - Initial Implementation
4 - Full Implementation
5 - Full Implementation and Sustainability

Practices
Rating Scale 

Number

9. Rate the LEA’s progress in building the capacity of and supporting principals and staff to 
effectively engage families in advisory groups and with decision-making. 

5

10. Rate the LEA’s progress in building the capacity of and supporting family members to 
effectively engage in advisory groups and decision-making. 

4

11. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing all families with opportunities to provide input on 
policies and programs, and implementing strategies to reach and seek input from any 
underrepresented groups in the school community. 

4

12. Rate the LEA’s progress in providing opportunities to have families, teachers, principals, 
and district administrators work together to plan, design, implement and evaluate family 
engagement activities at school and district levels. 

5

Seeking Input for Decision-Making Dashboard Narrative Boxes (Limited to 3,000 characters)

1. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s current strengths and 
progress in Seeking Input for Decision-Making.

We have many strengths when it comes to seeking input for decision-making. We have active School Site Councils, 
advisory boards, booster clubs, and parent groups where families are engaged and regularly contribute to decisions 
that impact their child’s school. We conduct surveys and host LCAP community input sessions to gather feedback on 
key priorities. In addition, we maintain open and transparent communication channels, providing families with timely 
updates and multiple opportunities to share input during public meetings.

We have expanded our engagement efforts in several meaningful ways. We hosted a public meeting in partnership 
with County Public Health to support the development of the Community Health Improvement Plan, inviting 
community members to share their perspectives and priorities. We held town hall meetings to solicit parent and 
community feedback on two major initiatives: the reopening of the middle school and ensuring that our girls have 
access to a dedicated softball field.



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 13 
of 17

To support digital literacy and responsible technology use, we hosted Tech-Wise Family Nights, where parents and 
students could engage in dialogue around managing screen time, device use, and balancing technology in family life. 
Additionally, we launched an Ethnic Studies Curriculum Advisory Committee to involve staff and community 
members in shaping the content and implementation of this important new course offering.

These efforts demonstrate our commitment to inclusive and responsive decision-making that values the voices of our 
educational partners at every level.
       

2. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe the LEA’s focus area(s) for 
improvement in Seeking Input for Decision-Making.

While we have strong systems in place for gathering input, we recognize the need to broaden participation and 
increase the number of families engaged in our decision-making processes. Based on feedback and participation 
data, our focus area for improvement is expanding outreach to engage more parents and guardians. This includes 
exploring flexible meeting times, virtual participation options, and more personalized communication strategies. We 
also want to provide information about how input is used, so families see the impact of their involvement.       

3. Based on the analysis of educational partner input and local data, briefly describe how the LEA will improve 
engagement of underrepresented families identified during the self-reflection process in relation to Seeking Input for 
Decision-Making.

We will continue to emphasize personal outreach as a key strategy for engaging families. Although our bilingual aide 
position was vacant for the second half of the year, we have continued to use her as needed to reach out to families 
and ensure they feel connected to their child’s school and informed about their education. Families have expressed 
appreciation that our surveys, emails, and text messages now go home in both Spanish and English, and that 
materials sent home in hard copy are also provided in Spanish when needed.

We will continue administering the EL Parent Survey and each school’s climate survey to gather input. Our Foster 
and Homeless Liaison will also continue personally connecting with families to help them access support services 
and stay informed. Additionally, we will work with the School Attendance Review Board (SARB) team to connect 
families with community resources and provide appropriate supports.
       

School Climate (LCFF Priority 6)

Introduction

The initial design of the Local Control Funding Formula recognized the critical role that positive school conditions and 
climate play in advancing student performance and equity. This recognition is grounded in a research base 
demonstrating that a positive school climate directly impacts indicators of success such as increased teacher retention, 
lower dropout rates, decreased incidences of violence, and higher student achievement.

In order to support comprehensive planning, LEAs need access to current data. The measurement of school climate 
provides LEAs with critical data that can be used to track progress in school climate for purposes of continuous 
improvement, and the ability to identify needs and implement changes to address local needs.

Introduction
LEAs are required, at a minimum, to annually administer a local climate survey. The survey must:

• Capture a valid measure of student perceptions of school safety and connectedness in at least one grade within 
each grade span the LEA serves (e.g. TK-5, 6-8, 9-12); and

• At a minimum, report disaggregated data by student groups identified in California Education Code 52052, when 
such data is available as part of the local school climate survey.



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 14 
of 17

Based on the analysis of local data, including the local climate survey data, LEAs are to respond to the following three 
prompts. Each prompt response is limited to 3,000 characters. An LEA may provide hyperlink(s) to other documents as 
necessary within each prompt:

Prompt 1 (DATA): Describe the local climate survey data, including available data disaggregated by student groups. 
LEAs using surveys that provide an overall score, such as the California Healthy Kids Survey, are encouraged to report 
the overall score for all students as well as available student group scores. Responses may also include an analysis of 
a subset of specific items on a local survey and additional data collection tools that are particularly relevant to school 
conditions and climate.

The California Healthy Kids Survey (CHKS) was administered in Spring 2024 to students in 7th, 9th, and 11th 
grades. The results reveal some consistent patterns across grade levels, with key shifts emerging between middle 
and high school years. Among 7th graders, 54% reported feeling connected to school, and 56% said they were 
motivated academically. Sixty-five percent felt there were caring adults at school, and 67% reported feeling safe. 
However, bullying appeared to be a significant issue at this grade level: 50% reported experiencing some form of 
harassment or bullying, 78% said they had been the subject of mean rumors or lies, and 50% reported experiencing 
cyberbullying.

In 9th grade, student perceptions of school climate dropped in nearly every category. Only 42% of 9th graders 
reported feeling connected to school, and just 38% said they were motivated academically. Fewer than half (49%) 
felt there were caring adults on campus, and only 57% reported feeling safe. Reports of harassment or bullying 
declined slightly to 38%, with 36% indicating they had been the subject of rumors or lies and 27% experiencing 
cyberbullying. These figures suggest that 9th grade may be a particularly vulnerable transition year where students 
are at higher risk of feeling disconnected and less supported.

By 11th grade, survey results improved substantially. Sixty-six percent of students reported feeling connected to 
school, and 52% indicated academic motivation. 67% of respondents reported having caring adults at school, and 
70% said they felt safe at school. Reports of bullying and harmful peer behavior declined considerably: only 20% 
reported experiencing harassment or bullying, the same percentage who said they had been the subject of rumors or 
lies, and just 10% reported cyberbullying.

This data suggests a developmental trend where students report stronger relationships and school climate 
perceptions as they progress through high school, but also indicate the need for targeted supports in the middle 
grades, particularly in 7th and 9th, where indicators of safety, connectedness, and support are lowest and 
experiences with bullying are most prevalent.
       



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 15 
of 17

Prompt 2 (MEANING): Describe key learnings, including identified needs and areas of strength determined through the 
analysis of data described in Prompt 1, including the available data disaggregated by student group.

Our CHKS data from Spring 2024 provides valuable insights into student well-being and school climate across 7th, 
9th, and 11th grades.

Areas of Strength:
School connectedness remains a key strength at the 11th grade level, where 66% of students report feeling 
connected to their school. Similarly, 67% of 11th graders feel they have caring adults at school, and 70% feel safe 
while on campus. These positive perceptions indicate that upper-grade students generally experience a supportive 
and safe environment. Feelings of safety are also relatively high in 11th grade compared to earlier grades.

Identified Needs:
There is a marked decline in school connectedness, academic motivation, and perceptions of caring adults in the 
middle grades, especially among 7th and 9th graders. For example, only 54% of 7th graders and 42% of 9th graders 
report feeling connected to school, with motivation dropping to 56% and 38% respectively. Caring adult perceptions 
also dip to 65% in 7th grade and further to 49% in 9th grade. Safety perceptions are lower in these grades as well, 
with just 67% of 7th graders and 57% of 9th graders feeling safe at school.

Bullying and cyberbullying continue to be concerns, particularly in middle school, where 50% of 7th graders report 
harassment or bullying, 78% have experienced mean rumors or lies, and 50% report cyberbullying. These issues 
decrease in the 9th and 11th grades but remain areas requiring attention.

Conclusion:
While the district demonstrates strengths in supporting upper-grade students’ connection, safety, and access to 
caring adults, challenges remain in the middle and early high school years. The data highlights the need to focus 
efforts on increasing school connectedness, academic motivation, and adult support for younger students, as well as 
addressing bullying and safety concerns in middle school. Targeted strategies to support students during these 
critical transitional years will be essential to improving overall student well-being and academic success.
       

Prompt 3 (USE): Describe any changes to existing plans, policies, or procedures that the LEA determines necessary 
in order to address areas of need identified through the analysis of local data and the identification of key learnings. 
Include any revisions, decisions, or actions the LEA has, or will, implement for continuous improvement purposes.

Based on the 2024 CHKS data analysis, we are prioritizing efforts to address the decline in school connectedness 
and academic motivation, particularly among 7th and 9th graders, as well as ongoing concerns around bullying, 
cyberbullying, and perceptions of adult support. To improve these areas, we will implement targeted strategies aimed 
at increasing student engagement and strengthening supportive relationships within the school community.

A major step toward these goals is the reopening of the middle school in Loyalton for the 2025-2026 school year. 
This will relocate 6th grade students from the elementary school, and 7th and 8th grade students from the high 
school to a dedicated space designed specifically for their developmental needs. We anticipate this change will 
positively impact students’ sense of belonging, school connectedness, and overall climate for these grade levels.

In addition, we will strengthen our anti-bullying programs and digital safety education to reduce incidents of 
harassment and cyberbullying. We will also implement targeted strategies to ensure students feel supported by 
caring adults who are actively engaged in their well-being.

Together, these revisions and actions reflect our commitment to continuous improvement, aiming to create a safer, 
more supportive, and motivating learning environment that addresses the specific needs identified through our local 
data.
       



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 16 
of 17

Access to a Broad Course of Study (LCFF Priority 7)

LEAs provide a narrative summary of the extent to which all students have access to and are enrolled in a broad course 
of study by addressing, at a minimum, the following four prompts:

1. Briefly identify the locally selected measures or tools that the LEA is using to track the extent to which all students 
have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study, based on grade spans, unduplicated student groups, 
and individuals with exceptional needs served. (response limited to 1,500 characters)

We use our master schedules and student information system (PowerSchool) to monitor student enrollment in a 
broad course of study across grade spans and student groups, including unduplicated students and individuals with 
exceptional needs. These tools allow us to regularly review course offerings and participation to ensure equity and 
access. Additionally, classroom instruction is monitored through routine walkthroughs to assess whether instructional 
practices and materials support access to a diverse and comprehensive curriculum. This includes access to core 
academic subjects as well as enrichment opportunities such as the arts, CTE, and physical education. Data is 
disaggregated, when possible, to ensure all student groups are equitably served.       

2. Using the locally selected measures or tools, summarize the extent to which all students have access to, and are 
enrolled in, a broad course of study. The summary should identify any differences across school sites and student 
groups in access to, and enrollment in, a broad course of study, and may describe progress over time in the extent 
to which all students have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study. (response limited to 1,500 
characters)

Based on our locally selected tools such as master schedules, PowerSchool enrollment data, and reviews of 
instructional materials, all students have access to, and are enrolled in, a broad course of study. Standards-aligned 
resources and scheduling confirm that students in Grades TK–6 receive instruction in all core subjects, including 
English Language Arts, Mathematics, Social Studies, Science, Visual and Performing Arts, Health, and Physical 
Education. In Loyalton, elementary students also benefit from weekly instruction in art and music, as well as garden-
based learning in the fall and spring months, enriching their educational experience and supporting a well-rounded 
curriculum.

For Grades 7–12, students have access to these subjects as well as Foreign Language, Applied Arts, and Career 
Technical Education (CTE) where available. While most subject areas are equitably accessible across school sites 
and student groups, there is a difference in CTE access. Downieville does not currently offer a formal, in-person CTE 
pathway, which limits local options for career technical preparation. To help mitigate this, the district utilizes online 
platforms and partnerships to expand course offerings beyond what our small teaching staff can provide. We 
continue to explore opportunities to expand access, particularly in areas like CTE, to ensure all students can engage 
in a broad and rigorous course of study.
       

3. Given the results of the tool or locally selected measures, identify the barriers preventing the LEA from providing 
access to a broad course of study for all students. (response limited to 1,500 characters)

One of the primary barriers to providing all students with access to a broad course of study is the LEA's small size 
and the associated funding limitations. Creating master schedules that offer a wide range of competitive courses is 
especially difficult when working with high schools serving only 20 and 150 students across grades 7–12. In grades 
TK–6, monitoring tools indicate that the instructional time required for foundational literacy, mathematics, and 
mandated physical education often limits students’ ability to fully engage in other subject areas such as science, the 
arts, and social studies. In the primary grades, students receiving intensive reading intervention may have reduced 
access to enrichment subjects. For grades 7–12, barriers include teacher credentialing constraints and the limitations 
of a seven-period schedule (and block schedule in Downieville), which restrict the ability to expand electives, Career 
Technical Education, and other enrichment opportunities. Despite these challenges, the LEA continues to leverage 
online platforms and partnerships to increase access wherever possible.       



–2025-26 Local Performance Indicator Self-Reflection for Sierra Plumas Joint Unified School District / Sierra County Office of EducationPage 17 
of 17

4. In response to the results of the tool or locally selected measures, what revisions, decisions, or new actions will the 
LEA implement, or has the LEA implemented, to ensure access to a broad course of study for all students? (response 
limited to 1,500 characters)

ONLINE COURSES & EXPANDED ACCESS: In 2025–26, the LEA will continue expanding access to online learning 
opportunities through platforms such as Peak/FuelEd to provide a wider array of AP, elective, and credit recovery 
courses. This is especially critical for students at smaller school sites like ours, where in-person course offerings are 
limited.

DATA-INFORMED INSTRUCTION: We will deepen our commitment to data-informed instruction through targeted 
professional development focused on using assessment data to adjust teaching practices, identify gaps in access, 
and improve student outcomes across subjects.

SCHEDULING & SUPPORTS: To ensure greater access to college-prep and enrichment courses, we will reduce 
enrollment in low-level or remedial courses where appropriate and increase enrollment in rigorous coursework, 
embedding academic supports within the master schedule and general education classrooms when possible.

EQUITY IN ACCESS: We will also monitor course-taking patterns by site, grade span, and student group (including 
unduplicated pupils and students with exceptional needs) to identify and address inequities in access and 
participation.
       







































Page 1 of 1 

CSBA POLICY GUIDE SHEET – June 10, 2025__First Reading 

 
Board Policy 6142.93 - Science Instruction 

Policy updated to expand the philosophical statement to specify the Governing Board's belief that 
science instruction include the place of humans in ecological systems, the causes and effects of climate 
change and the methods to mitigate and adapt to climate change, and experiments and other activities 
that foster critical thinking. Additionally, policy updated to clarify that the Board is required to adopt 
academic standards for science which meet or exceed the California Next Generation Science Standards 
and describe the knowledge and skills students are expected to possess at each grade level, with an 
instructional focus on understanding the process of science, the fundamental ideas within each discipline 
of science, and underlying themes that are common to all sciences. 

 
“NEW” Board Policy 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction 

Policy updated to expand the philosophical statement to specify the Governing Board's belief that 
history- social science instruction include a foundation for the appreciation of different ethnicities, the 
wise use of natural resources, and the responsible management of personal finance. Additionally, policy 
updated to specify that districts with high schools are required to annually observe, during the week that 
includes April 28, "Workplace Readiness Week" by providing information to students on their rights as 
workers, and that for students in grades 11 and 12, the "Workplace Readiness Week" observances are 
required to be integrated into the regular school program, consistent with the history-social science 
framework. 

 
Board Policy 6159 - Individualized Education Program 

Policy reviewed in conjunction with the accompanying administrative regulation and updated for 
technical revisions, including changing the term "students with disabilities" to "students with exceptional 
needs". 
 

Board Policy 6159.2 - Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School and Agency for Special Education 
Policy updated to provide that for any foster youth served by a nonpublic school or agency (NPS/A), the 
NPS/A will serve as the school of origin of the foster youth and that the foster youth will be allowed to 
continue in the school. Additionally, policy updated to include that within 14 days of becoming aware of 
any change to the certification status of an NPS/A, the district is required to notify parents/guardians of 
district students who attend the NPS/A of the change in certification status and include in that notice, a 
copy of procedural safeguards. In addition, policy updated to change the term "students with disabilities" 
to "students with exceptional needs". 

 
Board Bylaw 9224 - Oath or Affirmation 

Bylaw updated as part of CSBA's process to review policy materials that have not recently required 
updating based on changes to law, regulations, new guidance, or other directives, and has been amended 
for precision, consistency, and accuracy. 

 
Board Bylaw 9260 - Legal Protection 

Bylaw updated as part of CSBA's process to review policy materials that have not recently required 
updating based on changes to law, regulations, new guidance, or other directives, and has been amended 
for precision, consistency, and accuracy. 

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 





Page 1 of 3 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Instruction 
Policy 6142.93: Science Instruction 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice and the grade 
levels served by the district. 
 
Education Code 51210 and 51220 require that science instruction, including biological and physical 
aspects of science, be included in the course of study offered in grades 1-12. For grades 1-6, Education 
Code 51210 requires the course of study to include an emphasis on experimental inquiry; the place of 
humans in ecological systems; and the causes and effects of climate change and the methods to mitigate 
and adapt to climate change. For grades 7-12, Education Code 51220 requires the course of study to 
include an emphasis on basic concepts, theories, and processes of scientific investigation; the place of 
humans in ecological systems; the causes and effects of climate change and the methods to mitigate and 
adapt to climate change; and with appropriate applications of the interrelation and interdependence of 
the sciences. For more information regarding the requirements for courses of study, see AR 6143 - 
Courses of Study. 
 
Additionally, Education Code 51225.3 requires completion of two courses in science, including 
biological and physical sciences, to meet high school graduation requirements. See BP 6146.1 - High 
School Graduation Requirements. 
 
In addition, many districts integrate science, technology, engineering, and mathematics instruction 
(STEM), and sometimes art instruction (STEAM), to teach processes and concepts applied to real-world 
contexts. Further information about this interdisciplinary approach is available on the websites of the 
California Department of Education (CDE) and U.S. Department of Education. 

 
The Board of EducationThe Governing Board believes that science education should focus on giving 
students an understanding of the biological and physical aspects of science, including the place of humans 
in ecological systems, the causes and effects of climate change and the methods to mitigate and adapt to 
climate change, key scientific concepts, and methods of scientific inquiry and investigation through 
experiments and other activities that foster critical thinking. Students should become familiar with the 
natural world and the interrelationship of science, mathematics, technology, and engineering. As part 
of science instruction, students should learn how to apply scientific knowledge and reasoning. 
 
Philosophical and religious theories that are based, at least in part, on faith and are not subject to scientific 
test and refutation shall not be discussed during science instruction. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 33548, the Instructional Quality Commission (IQC) is 
required to consider incorporating media literacy content, which encompasses the foundational skills 
that lead to digital citizenship including the ability to access, analyze, evaluate, and use media and 
information, into the science curriculum framework when that framework is next revised. 
Additionally, pursuant to Education Code 33548, as amended by AB 2876 (Ch. 927, Statutes of 
2024), IQC is required to consider (1) including media literacy content and artificial intelligence 
(AI) literacy in its criteria for evaluating instructional materials, and (2) incorporating AI literacy 
content into the science curriculum framework when that framework is next revised. 

 
The district'sBoard shall adopt academic standards for science instruction shallthat meet or exceed the 
California Next Generation Science Standards (CA-NGSS).) and describe the knowledge and skills 
students are expected to possess at each grade level, with an instructional focus on understanding the 
process of science, the fundamental ideas within each discipline of science, and underlying themes that 



Page 2 of 3 

 

are common to all sciences. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that curricula used in district 
schools are aligned with these standards and the state curriculum framework. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. 
Education Code 52060 requires that the district's local control and accountability plan include goals 
related to, among other things, student achievement, student access to and enrollment in a broad 
course of study, and the implementation of State Board of Education-adopted academic content and 
performance standards. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that students have access to and are enrolled in a broad 
course of study including science courses. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The Los Angeles County Office of Education (LACOE) has developed a Strategic 
Science Teaching website that integrates literature and the 5E Learning Cycle, an inquiry-based 
learning cycle, to provide guidance regarding the delivery of integrated science instruction. It is 
recommended that districts stay apprised of future resources from LACOE related to curriculum-
embedded performance tasks aligned with the Next Generation Science Standards. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide certificated staff with opportunities to participate in 
professional development activities designed to enhance their knowledge of district-adopted academic 
standards, instructional strategies for teaching science, and changes in scientific theories. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is for use by districts that offer science laboratory classes and 
may be modified to reflect district practice. For further information about safety practices in school 
science laboratories, see the CDE's comprehensive, "Science Safety Handbook for California Public 
Schools," and AR 5142 - Safety. Additional resources are available on CDE's "Science Safety" website. 
 
Pursuant to 8 CCR 5191, whenever a school laboratory uses hazardous chemicals, it is required to have 
a written chemical hygiene plan to protect employees. See BP/AR 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances. In 
addition, Education Code 49340-49341 encourage educational efforts to increase student and staff 
awareness dealing with hazardous materials in school laboratories in order to minimize injuries, loss 
of property, and classroom disruptions. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement appropriate safety measures for science 
laboratory classes in accordance with Administrative Regulation 5142 - Safety, including, but not 
limited to, staff and student safety training, use of eye safety devices, hearing protection, first aid 
procedures, regular equipment maintenance, safe use of heat sources, safe use and disposal of hazardous 
chemicals, proper ventilation, prevention of exposure to bloodborne pathogens from sharp instruments, 
fire prevention and control, an emergency response plan, and evacuation procedures. Parents/guardians 
shall be informed of the types of science laboratory activities that will be conducted and encouraged to 
sign consent forms for their child's participation. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph should be revised to reflect measures that will be used 
to evaluate program effectiveness as agreed upon by the Board and Superintendent or designee. 
Pursuant to Education Code 60640, the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
includes administration of science assessments at grades 5, 8, and 10. Students with disabilities who are 
unable to participate in the science assessments, even with allowable testing variations and resources, 
may be administered the California Alternate Assessment in accordance with their individualized 
education program. See AR 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding the implementation and 
effectiveness of the science curriculum at each grade level. At a minimum, each report shall address 



Page 3 of 3 

 

the extent to which the program is aligned with the CA-NGSS, any applicable student assessment results, 
and feedback from students, parents/guardians, and staff regarding the program. 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: July 11, 2017 
revised: ??, 2025 





Page 1 of 4 
**NEW** 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Instruction 
Policy 6142.94: History-Social Science Instruction 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following optional policy may be revised to reflect district practice. 
 
Education Code 51210 and 51220 require that social sciences be included in the course of study offered 
in grades 1-12, including age-appropriate instruction drawing upon the disciplines of anthropology, 
economics, geography, history, political science, psychology, and sociology. For specific topics that 
must be included in the history-social science curriculum, see AR 6143 - Courses of Study. 
 
Additionally, to meet high school graduation requirements, Education Code 51225.3 requires 
completion of three courses of social studies; a one-semester course in ethnic studies beginning with 
students graduating in the 2029- 30 school year; and, as amended by AB 2927 (Ch. 37, Statutes of 
2024), a separate, stand-alone one-semester course in personal finance beginning with students 
graduating in the 2030-31 school year. For more information regarding high school graduation 
requirements, see BP 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements. 

 
The Governing Board believes that the study of history and other social sciences is essential to prepare 
students to engage in responsible citizenship, comprehend complex global interrelationships, and 
understand the vital connections among the past, present, and future, as well as to establish a foundation 
for the appreciation of different ethnicities, the wise use of natural resources, and the responsible 
management of personal finance. The district's history-social science education program shall include, at 
appropriate grade levels, instruction in American and world history, geography, economics, political 
science, anthropology, psychology, and sociology. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The State Board of Education (SBE) has adopted state content standards for history-social 
science which cover grades K-12, with the exception of grade 9 which, in current California practice, 
is traditionally the year in which students choose a history-social science elective. In addition to core 
content knowledge, the standards describe intellectual, reasoning, reflection, and research skills that 
should be learned through the content standards for grade ranges K-5, 6-8, and 9-12. 

 
The Board shall adopt academic standards for history-social science which meet or exceed state content 
standards and describe the knowledge and skills students are expected to possess at each grade level. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The History-Social Science Framework for California Public Schools, adopted by SBE 
on July 14, 2016, reflects the state content standards as well as the California Common Core State 
Standards for English Language Arts and Literacy in History/Social Studies, Science, and Technical 
Subjects and the California English Language Development Standards. The updated framework 
includes greater emphasis on literacy skills (i.e., reading, writing, speaking, listening, and other 
language skills) required for college and career readiness. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 33548, the Instructional Quality Commission (IQC) is required to 
consider incorporating media literacy content, which encompasses the foundational skills that lead 
to digital citizenship including the ability to access, analyze, evaluate, and use media and information, 
into the history-social science curriculum framework when that framework is next revised. 
Additionally, pursuant to Education Code 33548, as amended by AB 2876 (Ch. 927, Statutes of 
2024), IQC is required to consider (1) including media literacy content and artificial intelligence (AI) 
literacy in its criteria for evaluating instructional materials, and (2) incorporating AI literacy content 
into the history-social science curriculum framework when that framework is next revised. 



Page 2 of 4 
**NEW** 

 
Pursuant to Education Code 51226.3, as amended by AB 1821 (Ch. 658, Statutes of 2024), when SBE 
adopts new history-social science instructional materials, IQC is required to consider including (1) 
content on the treatment and perspectives of Native Americans during the periods of the Spanish 
colonization of California and the Gold Rush Era, and (2) content on the case of Westminster School 
District of Orange County v. Mendez, which prohibited school segregation in California in 1947. 
Additionally, pursuant to Education Code 51226.3, IQC is required to consider including the 
historical, social, economic, and political contributions of Asian Americans, Native Hawaiians, and 
Pacific Islanders in the United States and give examples of racism, discrimination, and violence 
perpetrated against these groups, in its next revision of the history-social science curriculum 
framework, related evaluation criteria, and accompanying instructional materials. 
 
Pursuant to Education Code 51225.32, as added by AB 2927, SBE is required to, on or before May 31, 
2026, adopt a curriculum guide and resources for a separate, stand-alone one-semester course in 
personal finance based on IQC's recommendation. If SBE has not adopted a curriculum guide and 
resources by May 31, 2026, districts are required to locally develop, for approval by the Governing 
Board, curriculum and resources to offer a separate, stand-alone one-semester course in personal 
finance that meets the requirements of Education Code 51225.3. 
 
Districts may find curricula and curriculum guides on the California Department of Education's Model 
Curricula and Curriculum Guides webpage, which currently includes materials related to personal 
finance, Cambodian American studies, Hmong history and cultural studies, Vietnamese American 
experiences, Native American studies, ethnic studies, Cesar Chavez, and human rights and genocide. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop and submit to the Board for approval a comprehensive, 
sequential curriculum aligned with the district standards and consistent with the state's curriculum 
framework for history-social science. The curriculum shall be designed to develop students' core 
knowledge in history and social science and their skills in chronological and spatial thinking, research, 
and historical interpretation. History-social science instruction shall also include an explicit focus on 
developing students' literacy in reading, writing, speaking, listening, and other language skills. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Instructional materials that will be used by the district must be adopted by the Board in 
accordance with Education Code 60200-60213 for grades K-8 and Education Code 60400-60411 
for grades 9-12. 
 
Education Code 60119 requires the Board to hold a public hearing on the sufficiency of standards-
aligned instructional materials in certain subjects, including history-social science; see BP 6161.1 - 
Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials. 
 
The state content standards for history-social science encourage schools to use supplementary materials 
as provided in the following paragraph. 

 
The Board shall adopt standards-aligned instructional materials for history-social science in accordance 
with applicable law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. Additionally, teachers are encouraged to 
supplement the curriculum, in accordance with Board Policy 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional 
Materials, by using biographies, original documents, diaries, letters, legends, speeches, other narrative 
artifacts, and literature from and about the period being studied. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph is optional. Education Code 51221.3, 51221.4, and 51226.3 
encourage the use of personal testimony (i.e., oral histories, videos, or other multimedia formats) 
during instruction on certain topics, including World War II, the Vietnam War, the Korean War, the 
Bracero program, human rights, the Holocaust, genocide, and violence awareness and prevention. Oral 



Page 3 of 4 
**NEW** 

history related to World War II and the Vietnam War is required to meet certain standards specified 
below. Pursuant to Education Code 51221.3 and 51226.3, oral history presented on other topics is 
encouraged, but not required, to meet similar standards. 

 
Personal testimony from persons who can provide first-hand accounts of significant historical events is 
encouraged and may be provided through oral histories, videos, or other multimedia formats. If oral 
history is used for instruction related to the role of Americans in World War II or the Vietnam War, 
such testimony shall exemplify the personal sacrifice and courage of the wide range of ordinary 
citizens who were called upon to participate in the war, provide views and comments concerning 
reasons for participating in the war, and provide commentary on the aftermath of the war in Eastern 
Europe and the former Soviet Union. (Education Code 51221.3, 51221.4) 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following paragraph applies to districts that serve students in grades 9-12. Pursuant 
to Education Code 49110.5, all public high schools are required to observe the week that includes 
April 28 as "Workplace Readiness Week" by providing information to students on their rights as 
workers, including specified topics. For students in grades 11 and 12, the "Workplace Readiness 
Week" observances are required to be integrated into the regular school program, consistent with the 
history-social science framework, but may also include special events after regular school hours. This 
integration is encouraged, but not required, to occur during "Workplace Readiness Week." 

 
District high schools shall annually observe, during the week that includes April 28, "Workplace 
Readiness Week" by providing information to students on their rights as workers, including topics 
specified in Education Code 49110.5. For students in grades 11 and 12, the "Workplace Readiness 
Week" observances shall be integrated into the regular school program, consistent with the history-
social science framework. (Education Code 49110.5) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 99200-99204 establish the California History-Social Science Project, a 
statewide professional development project designed to develop and enhance teachers' knowledge and 
instructional strategies to improve student achievement in history-social science. 
 
Education Code 51221.1, as added by SB 1277 (Ch. 890, Statutes of 2024), establishes the California 
Teachers Collaborative for Holocaust and Genocide Education, a statewide professional development 
program to (1) ensure that genocide, including Holocaust, education is taught in interdisciplinary and 
age-appropriate ways, and (2) identify and confront antisemitism and hate in modern society. 
 
Additionally, professional development resources may be located through state and national 
professional associations, such as the California Council for the Social Studies or the National Council 
for History Education.  

 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide a standards-based professional development program 
designed to increase teachers' knowledge of adopted instructional materials and instructional strategies for 
teaching history- social science. 
 

CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph should be revised to reflect indicators that will be used 
to evaluate program effectiveness as agreed upon by the Board and Superintendent or designee. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly evaluate and report to the Board regarding the 
implementation and effectiveness of the history-social science curriculum at each grade level, including, 
but not limited to, the extent to which the program is aligned with state standards, any applicable student 
assessment results, and feedback from students, parents/guardians, and staff regarding the program. 
 
 



Page 4 of 4 
**NEW** 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: ??, 2025 



Page 1 of 1 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Instruction 
Policy 6159: Individualized Education Program 

 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following Board policy and the accompanying mandated administrative regulation 
should be revised for consistency with the policies and regulations of the Special Education Local Plan 
Area in which the district participates. 

 
The Board of EducationThe Governing Board desires to provide full educational opportunities to all 
students with disabilities.  exceptional needs. Students with disabilitiesexceptional needs shall receive a 
free appropriate public education (FAPE) and, to the maximum extent possible, shall be educated in the 
least restrictive environment with nondisabled students.  
 
For each student with disabilitiesexceptional needs, an individualized education program (IEP) shall be 
developed which identifies the special education instruction and related services to be provided to the 
student.  The Superintendent or designee shall develop administrative regulations regarding the 
membership of the IEP team, the team's responsibility to develop and regularly review the IEP, the 
contents of the IEP, and the development, review, and revision processes. 
 
The district shall make FAPE available to individuals with disabilities ages 3-21 who reside in the district, 
including:  (Education Code 56040; 20 USC 1412; 34 CFR 300.17, 300.101, 300.104) 
 

1. Students who have been suspended or expelled from school 
 

2. Students who are placed by the district in a nonpublic, nonsectarian school 
 

3. Individuals age 18-21 years who are incarcerated in an adult correctional facility and were 
identified as being an individual with disabilities or had an IEP in their prior educational 
placement 

 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: September 8, 2020 
revised: ??, 2025 





Page 1 of 2 

 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Instruction 
Policy 6159.2: Nonpublic, Nonsectarian School And Agency Services For Special Education 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 56195.8 mandates districts to adopt policies for the special education 
programs and services they operate, including nonpublic, nonsectarian services provided to students 
with exceptional needs when no appropriate public education program is available to meet their special 
education needs. The nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency (NPS/A) must be certified as meeting 
state standards pursuant to Education Code 56366 and 56366.1. 
 
The following policy and accompanying administrative regulation should be revised to comply with the 
policies and regulations of the Special Education Local Plan Area in which the district operates. 

 
The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to provide a free appropriate public education to 
students with disabilitiesexceptional needs in accordance with law. When the district is unable to 
provide direct special education and/or related services to students with disabilitiesexceptional needs, 
the Board may enter into a contract with a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency (NPS/A) to meet 
student needs consistent with the comprehensive local plan of the Special Education Local Plan Area.  
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 56366 and 56366.1, a district contracting with an NPS/A must 
verify that the NPS/A meets certification requirements. 5 CCR 3067 allows the district to request, in 
writing, that the California Department of Education (CDE) review the certification status of an 
NPS/A. 
 
Education Code 56366.1 also requires districts to verify that the NPS/A provides staff training in the 
use of evidence-based practices and interventions specific to the unique behavioral needs of the NPS/A's 
student population. 

 
Prior to entering into a contract to place any student in an NPS/A, the Superintendent or designee shall 
verify that the school or agency is certified to provide special education and related services to 
individuals with disabilitiesexceptional needs and complies with staff training requirements in 
accordance with Education Code 56366 and 56366.1. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 56366.1, an NPS/A that is certified or seeking certification 
is required to provide assurances to CDE that for any foster youth it serves, the NPS/A will serve as 
the school of origin of the foster youth and that the foster youth will be allowed to continue the 
foster youth's education in the school. For such purposes, "school of origin" includes placement in 
an NPS/A. 

 
Additionally, the Superintendent or designee, such as the district's liaison for foster youth, shall verify 
that for any student served by an NPS/A who is a foster youth, the NPS/A agrees to serve as the school 
of origin of the foster youth and allow the foster youth to continue the foster youth's education in the 
NPS/A in accordance with Education Code 56366.1. 
 
In additionThe Superintendent or designee shall monitor, on an ongoing basis, the certification of any 
NPS/A with which the district has a contract to ensure that the certification has not expired. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 56366.45, within 14 days of becoming aware of any 
change to the certification status of an NPS/A, the district is required to notify parents/guardians of 
district students who attend the NPS/A of the change in certification status and include in that 
notice, a copy of procedural safeguards. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Within 14 days of becoming aware of any change to the certification status of an NPS/A, including, 
but not limited to, receiving notification of a determination to suspend or revoke the certification of 
the NPS/A pursuant to Education Code 56366.4, the district shall notify, through email or regular 
mail, the parents/guardians of any district student who attends the NPS/A of the change in certification 
status, which includes a copy of procedural safeguards. The district shall maintain a record of such 
notice and make the notice available for inspection upon request by the California Department of 
Education. (Education Code 56366.45) 
 
No district student with a disabilityexceptional needs shall be referred to, or placed in, an NPS/A unless 
the student's individualized education program (IEP) team has determined that the placement is 
appropriate for the student. (Education Code 56342.1) 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Education Code 56365, students enrolled in an NPS/A are deemed to be 
enrolled in public schools for state apportionment purposes. Districts then pay to the NPS/A the full 
amount of the school tuition or the agency fees for participating students pursuant to the contract. 

 
The district shall pay to the NPS/A the full amount of the tuition or fees, as applicable, for students 
with disabilitiesexceptional needs who are enrolled in programs or receiving services provided by the 
NPS/A pursuant to the contract. (Education Code 56365) 
 
In accordance with law, any student with disabilitiesexceptional needs placed in an NPS/A shall have 
all the rights and protections to which students with disabilitiesexceptional needs are generally entitled, 
including, but not limited to, procedural safeguards, due process rights, and periodic review of the 
student's IEP. 
 
During the period when any student with disabilitiesexceptional needs is placed in an NPS/A, the 
student's IEP team shall retain responsibility for monitoring the student's progress towards meeting the 
goals identified in the IEP. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that any contract with an NPS/A contains a requirement for 
the NPS/A to comply with district policy, procedures, and practices related to student rights, health, 
and safety, including the use of seclusion and restraint. All NPS/A staff that serve district students shall 
be made aware of, and trained in such policies, procedures, and practices. 

 
CSBA NOTE: The following optional paragraph may be modified to reflect district practice. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify the Board prior to approving an out-of-state placement for 
any district student. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may apply to the Superintendent of Public Instruction to waive any of the 
requirements of Education Code 56365, 56366, and 56366.6.  (Education Code 56366.2) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007  
revised: June 19, 2013 
revised: September 8, 2020 
revised: September 12, 2023 
revised: ??, 2025 



Page 1 of 1 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Board Bylaws 
Bylaw 9224: Oath Or Affirmation 
 

CSBA NOTE: The oath or affirmation required of Governing Board members pursuant to 
Article 20, Section 3, of the California Constitution is the same as that required by Government 
Code 3100-3109 for public employees. See E(1) 4112.3/4212.3/4312.3 - Oath or Affirmation for 
the text of the oath. Government Code 1303 provides that any person who exercises any 
function of a public office, including the office of a Board member, without taking the oath of 
office is guilty of a misdemeanor. Additionally, Government Code 1367 prohibits payment of 
any compensation or reimbursement for any expenses to any individual who has not taken the 
oath or affirmation. 
 
If an incoming Board member raises a concern about taking the oath or affirmation, it is 
recommended that the district consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal 
Services or district legal counsel. 

 
Prior to entering upon the duties of their office, all Board of Education membersthe office of a 
Governing Board member or exercising any function of a Board member, each Board member shall 
take the oath or affirmation required by law. (California Constitution, Article 20, Section 3; 
Government Code 1360)  
 

CSBA NOTE: In addition to the persons listed below, Education Code 60 specifies state- and 
local-level officers who may administer the oath. 

 
The oath or affirmation may be administered and certified by a Board member, the secretary or 
assistant secretary to the Board, the Superintendent, deputy or assistant superintendent, principal, 
orthe County Superintendent of Schools, the Superintendent of Public Instruction, or any other 
person authorized in Education Code 60. or Government Code 1225. 
 
The executed oath shall be filed with the County Clerk. (Government Code 1363) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: ??, 2025 





Page 1 of 2 

Board Policy Manual 
Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District & Sierra County Office of Education 

Board Bylaws 
Bylaw 9260: Legal Protection 

 

 
Liability Insurance 
 

CSBA NOTE: Education Code 35208 requires the Governing Board to insure against the personal 
liability of Board members for death, personal injury, or damage/loss of property caused by a 
Board member's negligent act or omission when acting within the scope of the Board member's 
office. Districts may self-insure pursuant to Education Code 35214. See BP/AR 3530 - Risk 
Management/Insurance for additional information regarding district insurance requirements. 

 
The Board of EducationGoverning Board shall provide insurance necessary to protect Board 
members and employees while actingfrom liability caused by a negligent act or omission that occurs 
within the scope of theirthe Board member's office or employment in accordance with Education 
Code 35208. 
 

CSBA NOTE: Pursuant to Government Code 820.9, Board members are not vicariously liable for 
injuries caused by the district's acts or omissions. Additionally, in Caldwell v. Montoya, the 
California Supreme Court determined that Board members are immune from suits pursuant to 
Government Code 820.2 when performing "discretionary acts," such as basic governmental policy 
decisions, within the scope of their duties. Personal and/or criminal liability may exist, however, 
for injuries caused by the individual's own "wrongful" conduct, for some civil rights violations, or 
knowing violations of the Brown Act. See BB 9323.2 - Actions by the Board. Because the 
determination as to whether personal liability exists is dependent on the specific facts of each case, 
it is recommended that the district consult CSBA's District and County Office of Education Legal 
Services or district legal counsel if a question arises when making such a determination. 

 
Protection Against Personal Liability 
 
No Board member shall be liable for any harm caused by his/herthe Board member's negligent act or 
omission when acting within the scope of districtthe Board member's responsibilities., including, but 
not limited to, Board responsibilities as specified in Board Bylaw 9000 - Role Of The act or omission 
mustBoard. Additionally, no Board member shall be vicariously liable for injuries caused by the 
district's acts or omissions. (Education Code 35208; Government Code 820.9) 
 
In addition, no Board member shall be liable for any harm caused by the Board member's act or 
omission if the Board member was acting within the scope of the Board member's responsibilities, 
made in conformity with federal, state, and local laws, and made in furtherance of an effort to 
control, discipline, expel or suspend a student, or maintain order or control in the classroom or 
school. (20 USC 6736)(20 USC 7946) 
 
This protection against liability shall not apply when: (20 USC 6736)(20 USC 7946) 
 

1. The Board member acted with willful or criminal misconduct, gross negligence, 
recklessness, or a conscious, flagrant indifference to the harmed person's right to safety. 
 

2. The Board member caused harm by operating a motor vehicle. 
 



Page 2 of 2 

3. The Board member was not properly licensed, if required, by the State for such activities. 
 

4. The Board member was found by a court to have violated a federal or state civil rights law. 
 

5. The Board member was under the influence of alcohol or any drug at the time of the 
misconduct. 
 

6. The misconduct constituted a crime of violence pursuant to 18 USC 16 or an act of 
terrorism for which the Board member has been convicted in a court. 
 

7. The misconduct involved a sexual offense for which the Board member has been convicted 
in a court. 

 
Nothing in this Board bylaw is intended to protect a Board member from criminal or civil liability 
for injury caused by the Board member's own wrongful conduct, for certain violations of law, 
including the Brown Act, or for liability from the requirement to reimburse the district under 
certain circumstances as specified in law. (Government Code 820.9, 825, 825.6, 54959, 54960) 
 
 
SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy adopted: April 10, 2007 
revised: ??, 2025 


	01_2025-06-24_SCOE & SPJUSD_Joint Meeting Agenda
	02_Shaffer Paving_quote
	03_Sierra COE 25-26 Annual Summary
	04_Math Science Computer Science Coordinator No. 225.1
	05_Enrollment Summary_2024-2025_Month 10
	06_CSBA BSE Results
	07_2025-06-10_SCOE & SPJUSD_Joint Meeting Minutes
	08_ConApp 25-26 Application for Funding_SCOE
	2025–26 Certification of Assurances
	2025–26 Protected Prayer Certification
	2025–26 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification
	2025–26 Application for Funding
	2025–26 Substitute System for Time Accounting

	09_ConApp 25-26 Application for Funding_SPJUSD
	2025–26 Certification of Assurances
	2025–26 Protected Prayer Certification
	2025–26 LCAP Federal Addendum Certification
	2025–26 Application for Funding
	2025–26 Substitute System for Time Accounting

	10_2025-2026_SPJUSD_CIF_prep_corrected
	11_AIG Application 2025-2026
	12_LCAP_updated (2)
	13_25-26 SCOE Adopted Budget handout
	14_25-26 SACS_SCOE
	15_25-26 SPJUSD Adopted Budget handout
	16_25-26 SACS_SPJUSD
	17_2025-26_Local Indicators_SCOE
	18_2025-26_Local Indicators_SPJUSD
	19_Contact Electric_quote
	20_Instructional Continuity Plan_2025-26
	21_Geotechnical soil sample
	22_Policy Packet_6-10-25_second reading 6-24-25



